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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS GROWTH ON 2005*

13.2

16.9% | 16.7*

14.1*

13.9%

%

Group sales

14.2*

New underlying Group profit New underlying | Diluted earnings Dividend
Group profit before tax diluted earnings per share per share
before taxt per sharet
2006 2006 2005
Continuing operations 60 weeks® 52 weeks* 52 weeks
Group sales (£Em)
(including value added tax) 43137 41,819 36,957
Group revenue (£m) 39,454 38,259 33,866
New underlying Group profit before taxt {£m) 2,277 2,251 1,925
Group profit before tax (Em) 2,235 2,210 1,894
New underlying diluted eamings per shareT (p) 20.30 20.06 17.58
Diluted earnings per share {p} 19.92 19.70 17.30
Dividend per share (p) 8.63 - 7.56
Group enterprise value (£m)
(market capitalisation plus net debt) 30,841 - 27,910
Return on capital employed (ROCE) 12.7% 12.6% 11.8%
Non-GAAP measure: new underlying profit £m £m
Profit before tax {excluding discontinuing operation) 2,235 1,894
Adjustments for:
1AS 32 and IAS 39 9 -
Total JAS 19 Income Statemant charge 303 268
‘Normal' cash contribution for pensions (270) (237)
New underlying Group profit before tax 2,277 1,925

*52-week comparison basis and excludes discentinuing operation.
t Adjusted for IAS 32, IAS 39 and the net difference between the 145 19 pension charge

and ‘normal’ cash contributions for pensions.

aResults for the year ended 25 February 2006 includes 52 weeks for the UK and Republic of Ireland and 14 months
for the majarity of the remaining International businesses, and excludes discontinuing operation.




Operating and financial review

Group summary

This operating and financial review (OFR)

ZOEOr?”“ 202:" Changfi analyses the performance of the Tesco Group
Group sales in the financial year ended 25 February 2006.
(including valve added tax) 43137 36,957 16.7 It also explains other aspects of the Group’s
New underlying profit results and operations, including strategy
before taxt 2277 1,925 18.3 and risk management.
Group profit before
taxation 2,235 1,8% 18.0 Long term strategy
::r:i:;girg‘:r?ﬂlfgd 2030  17.58 155 Tesco has a well-established and consistent
Diluted earnings strategy for growth, which is strengthening the
per share (p} 1992 17.30 15.1 core business and driving our expansion into new
Dividend per share (p) 8.63 7.56 14.2 markets. This four-part strategy was laid down in
1997 and it has been the foundation of Tesco’s
success in recent years. Its objectives are:
UK performance
20060 2005 Change » to grow the core UK business,
s £ fm % + to become a successful international retailer,
(‘\:cﬁxsd'mg value added tax) 32,657 29,511 107 « to be as strong in non-food as in food, and
Operating profit 1788 1,556 148 « to develop retailing services — such as Tesco
Pre-property Personal Finance, Telecoms and tesco.com
operating profit* 1,698 1,535 10.6
Pre-property Tesco has again delivered a strong performance,
operating margint 57%  5.7% with all four parts of the strategy contributing
well. We have sustained good growth in the UK,
Rest of Europe performance despite mare competitive conditions in the retail
20060 2005 Change market and against the exceptional growth of the
Em £m i previous two years.
Sales
(incluging value added tax) 5820 4,349 338 In our international operations we have also
Operating profit 263 243 8.7 made solid progress, completing our largest ever
Pre-property programme of new store openings in our existing
operating profit* 269 212 269 markets, and we have also announced our
Pre-property intention to enter the United States in 2007.
operating margint 53% 6% In non-food, more customers are choosing to
shop with us even in a period of more cautious
Asia performance consumner spending. Finally, our retailing services
20%?:0 2‘32,51" Chamﬁz have delivered another good year, with tesca.comn
Sales continuing its rapid growth, Tesco Personal
(inctuding value added tax) 4660 3,097 50.5 Finance making progress in challenging markets
Operating profit 229 153 49,7 and Telecomns serving over 1.5 million customers.
Pre-property
operating profit* 236 156 513
Pre-property
operating margint 5.4% 5.4%

1 Adjusted for IAS 32, 1AS 39 and the net difference between
the 1AS 19 pension charge and ‘normal’ cash contributions
far pensions.

* Operating profit excluding profit or loss on property-related items,

+ Pre-property operating margin is calculated using sales
excluding value added tax.

# Excludes discontinuing operation,

¢ Results for the year ended 25 February 2006 include 52 weeks
for the UK and Republic of Ireland and 14 months for the
majority of the remaining International businesses.
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Finest is the
premnium Tesco
brand with over
1,500 products,
including
non-food lines.
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>
Our Express stores
bring better quality
and lower prices to

local neighbourhoods.

Operating and financial review continued

Group performance

These results represent good progress across the
Group in a more challenging year. By investing to
improve the shopping experience for customers
in our businesses around the world, we have
been able to deliver another strong sales
performance, meet the demands of higher oil-
related and other external costs and improve
returns for shareholders.

Year end convergence We announced in April
2005 that due to the increasing contribution our
Internaticnal businesses make to Group results,
we had taken the decisicn to align our
international accounting period with the UKs
year-end in 2005/06. These results therefore
report on the performance of our international
business on the basis of a 60-week year,
including a 36-week second half to the end of
February, compared with the normal 52 weeks to
the end of December. The UK and the Republic

of Ireland's accaunting periods remain unchanged.

Where appropriate, for ease of comparison,
International and Group results are also reported
on a 52-week basis (based on the normal

12 month calendaryear for International).

Group Group sales, including VAT, increased by
16.7% at actual rates to £43.1bn. At constant
exchange rates, sales grew by 15.0%. On a 32-

week basis, Group sales increased by 13.2% at
actual rates to £41.8bn (last year £37.0bn) and
at constant exchange rates sales grew by 11.6%.

Group profit before tax increased by 18.0% to
£2,235m. On a 52-week basis, new underlying
pre-tax profit increased by 16.9% to £2,251m,
For comparison, using our pre-1FRS underlying
profit definition, profit increased by 13.7% to
£2,307m on a 52-week basis (last year £2,029m).

IFRSs From the beginning of the financial year
we fulty adopted International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs}. Prioryear (2004/05)
comparatives have been restated and these are
used as the basis for comparison throughout this
review, except for the adoption of IAS 32 and

IAS 39, for which we used the exemption
available under IFRS 1 in 2004/05, and which
were adopted for the first time in 2005/06.

The impact of IFRSs on profit after tax for the
whole of 2005/06, before IAS 32 and IAS 39,
is a reduction of £37m, broadly in line with the
guidance we provided at our IFRS Seminar in
February 2005. Together, IAS 32 and IAS 39
reduce pre-tax profit in the year by £13m.

The following table shows key results as reported
under IFRSs and the equivalent performance
using our previous accounting policies under

UK GAAP.

Key IFRS profit measures and UK GAAP equivalent measures

52-Week comparison basis

IFRS UK GAAP equivalent*

2006 2005 Growth 2006 2005 Growth
Group profit befare tax (Em} 2,210 1,894 16.7% 2,287 1,962 16.6%
New underlying profit (£m) 2,251 1,925 16.9% nia nfa nfa
Pre-iFRS Group underlying profitt {£m) nia nfa nfa 2,307 2,029 13.7%
UK operating profit (Em)# 1,788 1,556 14.9% 1,858 1,694 9.7%
Asia operating profit (Em)#* 200 153 30.7% 200 152 31.6%
Europe operating profit (Em)# 265 243 9.1% 272 218 24.8%
Joint ventures & Assaciates {(£EmM az 74 10.8% 160 135 18.5%
Underlying diluted EPS (p) 20.06 17.58 14.1% 20.43 18.30 11.6%

*tnder UK GAAP, Taiwan losses are included.

t Underlying pre-tax profit excluded net profit or loss on disposat of fixed assets, integration costs and goodwill amortisation.

t Under IFRSs Joint ventures and Associates profit is reported net of interest and tax.
¥ Under UK GAAP, aur operating profit measure excluded net profit or loss on disposal of fixed assets, integration costs

and goodwil! amortisation.
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We regularly
ask customers
for ideas on
how we can
improve.

International Total International sales grew

by 40.7% to £10.5bn (last year £7.4bn) and

by 31.8% at constant exchange rates. On a
52-week basis, International sales increased by
23% to £9.2bn and at constant exchange rates,
sales grew by 15.5%.

International contributed £492m to operating
profit, up 24.2% on last year. International
pre-property operating profit rose 28.8% on

a 52-week basis. At constant exchange rates,
International pre-property operating profit grew
by 21.6%. On a 52-week basis, International
operating profit increased by 17.4% to £465m.

At constant exchange rates profit grew by 10.8%.

In Asia, sales grew by 50.5% to £4.7bn (last year
£3.1bn). At constant rates, sales grew by 39.0%.
Operating profit increased by 49.7% to £229m
{last year £153m) and by 38.2% at constant
rates. On a 52-week basis, Asia operating profit
increased by 30.7% to £200m. At constant
exchange rates profit grew by 20.6%. Asia pre-
property operating profit rose 30.1% to £203m
on a 52-week basis.

In the Rest of Europe, sales rose by 33.8% to
£5.8bn (last year £4.3bn). At constant rates, sales
grew by 26.7%. Cperating profit increased by
8.2% to £263m (last year £243m) and by 3.9%
at constant rates. On a 52-week basis, Rest of
Europe operating profit increased by 9.1% to
£265m. At constant exchange rates profit grew
by 4.7%. Operating profit growth was impacted
by the existence of a one-off £31m property
profit in the prioryear. Rest of Europe pre-
property operating profit rose 22.7% to £271m
on a 52-week basis.

UK UK sales increased by 10.7% to £32.7bn
{last year £29.5bn), with like-for-like growth of
7.5% (including volume of 7.6%) and 3.2%
from net new stores. Deflation overall was 0.1%,
despite the effect of rising ol prices on our petrol
business. We saw deflation of 1.8% in our stores
as we continued to invest in lowering prices for
customers,

»
We have introduced
maore self-service
checkouts — offering
customers a choice
when they get to the
checkouts.

Petrol continues to have a significant impact on
sales growth, helped by our efforts to keep fuel
prices down, although its contribution to like-for-
like sales during the second half, against last
year's exceptionally strong growth, was lower
than in the first half.

Fourth quarter like-for-like sates growth,
excluding petrol, was 4.9%. Including petrol,
like-for-tike sales grew by 6.2%. Total sales grew
by 9.4% in the quarter, including 3.2% from
net new stores. In the final seven weeks of the
year, like-for-like sales growth was 4.0%
excluding petrol and adjusting for the different
timing of Easter. We saw slower like-for-like
growth in January but the rate of growth picked
up in February and again in the early weeks

of the current year.

Through good cost control and productivity we
have absorbed significant external cost increases
during the year, particularly during the second
half, arising mainly from higher oil-related costs
and increases in local business taxes.

Consequently, UK operating profit was 14.9%
higher at £1,788m (last year £1,556m). UK pre-
property operating profit rose 10.6% to £1,698m,

leaving the operating margin unchanged at 5.7%.

Joint ventures and Associates Our share

of profit (net of tax and interest) was £82m
compared to £74m last year. Tesco Personal
Finance profit was £139m, of which our share
was £70m, down 1,4% on last year, due

to the change in provisioning policy for bad debts
under IFRSs and the competitive nature of the
motor insurance market. On a pre-IFRS basis,
profit was slightly higher than last year, including
growth of 2.4% in the second half,

Tescoplc 3
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One in seven
custorners buy
from our clothing
department

each week.

Operating and financial review continued

Net finance costs were £127m (last year £132m), giving
interest cover of 18.6 times (last year 15.3 times). Tax has been
charged at an effective rate of 29.0% (last year 28.6%).

New underlying diluted earnings per share increased
by 14.1% to 20.06p {fast year 17.58p).

Dividend The Board has proposed a finat dividend of 6.10p
per share (last year 5.27p). This represents an increase of
15.7% and brings the full year dividend per share to 8.63p,
up 14.2% on last year. We have built dividend cover to
comfortable levels and this increase in the final dividend is

in line with earnings per share growth. We also intend to grow
future dividends broadly in line with underlying eamings per
share, instead of building dividend cover whilst delivering
strang dividend growth, which has been our dividend policy
for the last three years.

The finat dividend will be paid on 14 July 2006 to shareholders
on the Register of Members at the close of business on 5 May
2006. Shareholders will continue to have the right to receive the
dividend in the form of fully paid ordinary shares instead of cash.
The first day of dealing in the new shares will be 14 July 2006.

Cash flow and Balance Sheet The Group generated net cash
of £165m during the year, benefiting from strong cash flow
from operating activities of £3.4bn and the net proceeds of
£346m from our property joint venture with Consensus. Within
this, £239m of cash was released from working capital, which
was £199m lower than last year, This was due mainly to a
smaller rise in trade creditors than last vear (last year’s increase
was exceptionally large and the change in the International
year end reduced trade creditors}, higher non-food stocks
(linked to global sourcing) and increased debtors (resulting
from advance rent on new leasehold stores in Korea).

Net borrowings, at £4.5bn at year end, were higher than last
year, primarily due to IAS 32 and IAS 39. Excluding the impact
of IAS 32 and IAS 39, net debt was broadly unchanged at
£3.9bn. Gearing was 48%.

Group capita) expenditare during the year {excluding
acquisitions) was £2.8bn {last year £2.4bn). This included
£0.1bn of capital spent during the extra trading weeks in early
2006 for International. UK capital expenditure was £1.8bn (last
year £1.7bn), including £760m on new stores and £404m on
extensions and refits. Total Intemnational capital expenditure
rose to £1.0bn (tast year £0.7bn) reflecting the extra trading
weeks, plus our enlarged new store opening programme and
comprising £0.4bn in Asia and £0.6bn in Europe.

4 Tesco plc

»

We sell
three million
mugs a year.

We expect Group capital expenditure to be around £3.0bn
this year, reflecting a stable fevel of investrnent in the existing
business, together with the £250m of capital which we
announced in February would be invested in establishing

our operations in the United States.

Return on capital employed (ROCE) In January 2004, we
said that we had an aspiration to increase our 2002/03 post tax
ROCE of 10.2% by up to 200 basis points over five years on
then current plans. The excellent progress the business has
made since then means that ROCE has exceeded our target
of 12.2% this year — two years early.

On an equivalent (pre-IFRS) basis, ROCE increased by 260
basis points to 12.8% in just three years. This represents an
increase of almast 70% over just three years in the economic
profit made by the business (the extent to which return on
capital exceeds the estimated weighted cost of capital for
the Group). Operational improvement in the business has
detivered almost three-quarters of this increase in returns
and the balance reflects the benefits of our property funding
initiatives with Topland and Consensus.

We remain committed to delivering rising returns for
shareholders and to demonstrate this we have decided to set
a new ROCE target for the Group. We aim to improve ROCE by
a further 200 basis points from a combination of operational
improvement and more efficient use of the property elements
of our Balance Sheet. All four parts of our strategy will
contribute to this improvement.

Total shareholder return Total shareholder return (TSR},
which is measured as the percentage change in the share
price, plus the dividend paid, has increased by 45.8% over
the last five years, compared to an increase in the average
for FTSE 100 companies of 16.3%. Over the last three years,
Tesco’s TSR has grown 126.0% compared with the FTSE 100
average of 80.0%. During the last year, the retumn for Tesco
was 11.5% compared with the FTSE 100 average of 21.0%,
which was buoyed by the strong performance of oil, gas

and mining stocks.




>

Qur customers

in South Korea
can now take
advantage of our
financial services.

Property funding and conserving equity

We have sought freehold tenure for most of our new selling
space in recent years because leased developments have in
the past tended to give disproporticnate rewards to landlords,
making it hard to remodel or expand stores. As a result,
freehold properties now represent significantly more of our
property assets — around 85% of book value — compared with
historic levels of around 70%. A strength of our Balance Sheet
is this asset-backing; the net book value of our fixed assets is
£15.9bn, most of it in freehold property valued at historic cost.

These appreciating freehold assets, whose market value we
estimate to be around 50% higher than book value, provide us
with the platform we require as retailers to expand and develop
our stares for customers and they also represent an important
stare of value for our shareholders. Through capital expenditure
we are currently adding some £2bn of new freehold assets a year.

Over the last two years, through our joint ventures with
Topland, Consensus and Morley, Tesco has developed an
updated version of our property joint ventures, These pravide
us with the right platform to run our stores. At the same time,
they have enabled us to fund our growth efficiently by releasing
cash from our freehold property base, create a stream of
material property profits and enhance returns.

Looking forward, we plan to release more cash from property
in the same way, through a seguence of similar joint venture
deals, both in the UK and internationally. We intend to
maintain an overall asset mix of over 70% freehold. The total
scale of this sale and leaseback programme in terrns of cash
proceeds over the next five years is expected to be up to £5bn.

At least £1.5bn of these proceeds will be used to buy Tesco
shares in the market, initially to offset future dilution to
earnings per share caused by scrip dividend and share option
issuance. The balance will mainly be used to fund the growth
of the business.

»
Since 1992
Computers for
Schools have given
out over £100m
worth of computers
and IT equipment.

Pensions

The provision of Tesco's award-winning UK defined benefit
pension scheme for our staff remains an important priority. It
goes to the heart of ourvalues and helps us attract and retain
the best people. During the year, the Trustee board completed
its three-yearly valuation of the pension fund. In March 2005,
it had a small deficit of £153m in a scheme which now has
over £3bn of assets. As at February 2006, the scheme was
estimated to be fully funded, largely as a result of improved
asset performance. in recognition of the increasing cost of
pensions we have recently increased both the Company and
member contributions.

It is a young schema. With around 150,000 employed
members but enly abaut 15,000 pensioners, the scheme has
manyyears to ensure that the type of assets held match its
liabilities. The fund’s strategy is to invest in 50% equities, 20%
bonds, 10% property and 20% alternative asset classes,
including private equity and commuodities. It offers the
prospect, over time, of returns that should make the scheme
more cost efficient for the members and the business. In 2005,
the scheme’s assets appreciated by around 20%.

IFRSs require that we value pensian scheme liabilities using a
high quality corporate bond yield, and calculate the operating
charge in the Income Statement as if invested purely in bonds.
This has proven ta be an extremely volatile measure. During a
two-week period in January 2006, for example, bond yields fell
by 20 basis points, increasing our IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits’
liability by £200m (before tax). At February 2006, the 1AS 19
pension deficit was around £850m on a post-tax basis. Mainly
as a consequence of bond yields falling by 0.6% during
2005/06 as a whole, our IFRS pensions charge for next year
could increase by approximately £130m.

We will, of course, produce our accounts in full compliance with
IFRSs. However, we intend to include in our new underlying
profit number, the normal cash cost of funding the pension

to reflect how the fund is actually managed and funded.

Tesco plc
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Internationally we have This year we opened
substantial, successful, a 161,000 sq ft
local businesses, such state-of-the-art
as our Hymall joint fresh food depot
venture in China. in Teresin, Poland.

Operating and financial review continued

Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

We operate a balanced scorecard approach that is known internally within the Group as our Steering Wheel. This unites the Group's
resources around our customers, people, opetations, finance and, for the first time in 2006, the community. This enables the
business to be operated and monitored on a balanced basis with due regard for all stakeholders. Some of the KPlIs below are
tracked through our Steering Wheel and others are tracked as a monitor of investor return.

2006* 20051
Sales growth
Change in Group sales over the year (including value added tax) 13.2% 12.4%
UK sales growth 10.7% 11.9%
International sales growth 23.0% 13.1%
international sales growth (at constant exchange rates) 15.5% 18.3%
Profit before tax £2,210m £1,894m
New underlying profit before tax £2,2517m £1,925m
Operating margin
UK pre-property operating margin 5.7% 5.7%
International pre-property operating margin 5.7% 5.5%
Qperating margin is calculated from the operating profit expressed as a percentage
of Group revente (sales excluding value added tax). It is a measure of profit generation
from sales and is a comparable performance measure with other companies.
This is how much we made from trade in our stores, taking account of the cost of the products
sold, wages and salaries, expenses associated with running the stores, depots and head office,
and the cost of depreciation of the assets used to generate the profits.
Net cash inflow* £165m £24m
Net cash inflow is the cash received less cash spent during the financial peried, after financing activities.
Capitat expenditure® £2.8bn £2.4bn
This is the cash invested in purchasing fixed assets.
UK £1.8bn £1.7bn
International £1.0bn £0.7bn
Net borrowings and gearing®
Net borrowings £4.5bn# £3.9bn
Gearing 48% 43%
Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) 12.6% 11.5%
ROCE is calculated as profit before interest less tax divided by the average of net assets pius net debt plus
dividend creditor less net assets held for sale. ROCE is a relative profit measurement that not only incorporates
the funds shareholders have invested, but also funds invested by banks and other lenders, and therefore shows the
productivity of the assets of the Group.
New underlying diluted earnings per share 20.06p 17.58p

New underlying diluted eamings per share is the calculation of profit after tax and minority interest divided by the
dituted weighted average number of shares in issue during the year. It is the amount which could be paid out on each
share if the Company decided to distribute all its profits as dividends instead of retaining some for future expansion.

* 52-week comparison basis (except where stated) and excluding discontinuing operation.

¥ 60-week basis and excluding discontinuing operation.

t Growth on 2004 52-weeks pro forma.

t Excluding the first time adoption impact of 185 32 and IAS 39, net borrowings were broadly unchanged.

6 Tesco plc
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Our Value range is Antalya, Turkey
proving very popular We have introduced
with customers across ‘Every day low price’
our International into our stores
network. in Turkey.

2006 2005
Total shareholder return 45.8% 108.7%
Total sharehalder return is the notional return from a share and is measured as the percentage change in the share
price, plus the dividend paid. This is measured over the last five years.
Full year dividend per share 8.63p 7.56p

The growth of the dividend per share from one period to the next is important to shareholders since this represents
their actual cash return, and is usually paid twice a year.

We monitor a wide range of KPls, both financial and non-financial. Across the Group, KPIs are set locally, with oversight from the
Executive Directors, to ensure they are tailored to drive the pricrities of each business. Each business operates a Steering Wheel, our
balanced scorecard. This year we have rolled-out our Corporate Responsibility management system to our International operations.
Each business reports quarterly on social, ethical and environmental matters alongside their Customer, Operations, Finance and

People KPIs. More detail on each country follows in the ‘Operations, resources and relationships’ section.

The following are some KPIs for the UK operations which represent 75.7% of the Group’s sales.

2006 2005
UK market share
Grocery market share* 20.2% 19.2%
Non-food market share 70% 6.5%
*This is measured as the share of all spend by all shoppers through Taylor Nelson Sofres Superpane (Total Till Rol)) data.
Supplier viewpoint measure 94% 90%
We aim to monitor supplier relations threugh the Supplier Viewpoint Survey. The target is for over 90% of suppliers
to view Tesco as being trustworthy, reliable, consistent, clear, helpful and fair.
Employee retention 83% 81%
This measure shows the percentage of employees who have stayed with the business for ionger than one year.
It is one measure that we use to monitor employee loyalty and satisfaction and we aim to exceed 80% retention
of experienced staff.
Energy consurnption 5.5% 39%

For 2005/06 our target was to reduce energy consumption by 5% (2004/05 — 3.6%).

Tesce plc
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Qur Tescodiets
programme helps
customers to plan

>
We sold 100,000
cashmere jumpers in
just two weeks.

flexible healthy
meals each week.

Operating and financial review continued

Operations, resources and relationships

We have continued to make good progress with all four parts
of our strategy:

* maintain a strong core UK business

* become a successful international retailer
* be as strong in non-food as in food

+ develop retailing services

We have done this by keeping our focus on trying to improve
what we do for customers. We try to make their shapping
experience as easy as possible, lower prices where we can to
help them spend less, give them more choice about how they
shop ~ in small stores, large stores or on-line, and seek to bring
simplicity and value to sometimes complicated markets.

International Our International businesses delivered a solid
performance this year, despite challenging economic and
competitive conditions in some markets. With rising customer
numbers, good sales growth, growing local scale, increasing
store maturity and the benefits of central distribution,
performance and returns from our Intemational operations
are continuing to strengthen.

International returns are continuing to rise. On a constant
currency basis, cash return on investment (CRO1*) for
International has increased to 11.4%, despite a high level

of immature capital. Like-for-like CROI in our four largest
International businesses — Thailand, Korea, Republic of Ireland
and Hungary - where over 60% of cur International capital is
invested, is running at an average of 16%. This demonstrates
that our International model is not only delivering good growth
but also developing good returns as we build strong market
positions and our stores mature.

A total of 238 stores, with 5.4m sq ft of selling area, were
opened during the year, including 72 hypermarkets. In Asia we
opened 3.1m sq ft of space and in Rest of Europe 2.3m sq ft.
In Central Europe, we opened more new space than we did in
the UK. These numbers included the acquisition of 12 stores in
Korea from Aram-Mart, nine from Julius Mein in Poland and
eight Tanekin stores in Japan. 27 small stores were acquired
from Edeka in the Czech Republic after the year end.

* Cash raturn on investrment (CROI) is measured as earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation, expressed as a percentage of net invested capital.
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At the end of February, our International operations were
trading from 814 stores, including 341 hypermarkets, with a
total of 32.8m sg ft of selling space. Almost 56% of Group
sales area is now in International. Excluding the Edeka stores,
we plan to open 396 new stores in the current year, adding
6.6m sq ft of selling area.

The deal we announced in September to swap our store
assets in Taiwan, plus cash, for Carrefour’s hypermarkets in
the Czech Republic and Slovakia has been given clearance by
the competition authorities in Taiwan and the Czech Republic.
A decision in Slovakia is expected soon and, assuming the
combination of the four Carrefour stores with Tesco’s existing
network is permitted, we anticipate that the deal will be
completed during the current year.

Multi-format capability is developing well across our
International network. With our large destination stores now
established and with first class supply chain infrastructure in
place or planned for most of our main markets, a growing

part of our new space is coming through our smatler formats,
such as compact hypermarkets, discount supermarkets and
convenience stores. Smmaller formats serve the needs of
customers in smaller catchment areas and they also cost less to
build. For example, we now have Express stores in six countries
outside the UK, with 139 stores in Thailand alone, and discount
supermarkets in seven countries, including openings in the
Czech Republic, Malaysia and Thailand. Of the 419 stores
planned to apen outside the UK this year (including the Edeka
stores), 338 will be in smaller formats.

« We have now established a strong local team which has
begun to accelerate our expansion pregramme in China
beyond the Yangtse delta and manage the transfer of Tesco
know-how and systems into the business. Hymall now
trades from a portfofio of 39 hypermarkets with 12 more
planned in the current year, The first store in Guangzhou
has opened, the first in Beijing opens this Autumn and
sites have been secured in Shenzhen. Hymall’s sales have
continued to grow strongly and the business made a small
profit after tax and interest, of which our share was £2m.
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= In Japan, it was a challenging year. Sales grew but profits
reduced, mainly as a result of the cost of integrating the
remaining Fre'c stores in the first half and the eight Tanekin
units acquired in Tokyo in October. The first trial Express
format store opened three weeks ago.

« In Korea, Homeplus has continued to make very pleasing
progress, delivering increased sales, including strong like-
for-like, and excellent profit growth. During the year, we
increased our selling space by 29% by opening eight new
hypermarkets, including our first three compact hypers, and
completing the conversion of the 12 stores we acquired in
March 2005 from Aram-Mart, We are also now rolling out
the Express convenience format and we have 11 such
stores trading. Qur organic store development programme
is accelerating as planned, with a further 47 stores planned
this year.

+ |In Malaysia, we moved close to break-even and we are
making positive cash returns, helped by very strong sales
growth, both from new space and from our existing stores.
We have a good pipeline of new space to enable us to
build a strong position. We opened seven new stores in the
year, including our first Express store at Selayang, Selangor.

« Given the uncertainties arising from the announcement of
the asset swap deal with Carrefour last September, it has
been a challenging few months for the business in Taiwan.
Sales grew strongly and although losses increased, the
team has held the performance of the business together
remarkably well in difficult circumstances.

« In Thailand, we have had another excellent year, with
growth in sales, profit and returns. The successful
development of new formats continues and we now have
219 stores trading across four formats, including 139
Express stores, 14 Value stores and ten new supermarkets.
All the newer formats are continuing to perform well,
giving us many more opporturiities to develop our naticnal
store network.

in Central Europe, our strategic investments in lower prices,
higher product quality and faster develcprment of new space
have contributed to strong sales and profit growth across
the region. Successful regional initiatives to strengthen our
business — from joint purchasing of own-brand products to
the introduction of a Cherokee clothing range — have also

‘
We have introduced
‘Would | buy it?’

training to staff in
Poland to ensure all
of our products are of
the best quality.

contributed. Custormer numnbers are up significantly and this is
driving large market share gains.

= In the Czech Republic, the business has delivered strong

sales and profit growth despite very competitive market
conditions, We have also accelerated our new store
development, adding 20% to our sales area during the
year, with ten openings, including eight compact
hypermarkets, and one of our new ‘1 K' supermarket format
(1,000 sq my) stores.

The more challenging economic and retail environment
has held back our growth in Hungary but we have still
made solid progress. We have strengthened our market-
leading position by lowering prices, expanding our store
network and developing our infrastructure. We opened
18 new stores in the year, adding 22% to our total space,
including our first 30,000 sq ft compact hypermarket.

A further 30 stores, representing a further 880,000 sq ft
of new space, are planned for this year.

In Poland, the economic background is looking better
and signs of renewed consurner confidence, combined
with an improving offer in our stores, have been reflected
in strengthening like-for-like sales. We have made good
progress with the development of our 1K, 2K and 3K store
forrmats, with the early units trading well, giving us access
to a broader range of store development opportunities,

In the Republic of Ireland, we have achieved strong
growth in sales and, on a pre-IFRS basis, profit as well,
Under IFRSs, operating profit growth was impacted due to
the inclusion of a significant property profit in the prioryear
results. Sales growth has benefited from strong like-for-like
performance and an acceleration in the growth of our
space. We opened six new stores with 11 1,000 sq ft of new
sales area during the year, with a further eight new stores
planned this year.

Our business in Slovakia has delivered another very strong
performance, with sales and profits significantly up on last
year. Our new store programme is now supported by the
growth of our compact hypermarket format. We now have
18 such stores, with five more plannad this year. Our new
central distribution depot at Beckov, measuring 500,000 sq
ft, is fully operational and delivering significant benefits in
lower costs and better product quality.

Tesco plc
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Operating and financial review continued

« In Turkey, Kipa delivered a very strong performance. Sales
rose strongly and profit doubled. We now have eight
hypermarkets, including three trading very successfully
outside lzmir, with eight more planned for the current year.
The introduction into Kipa of a new suite of IT systems
called Tesco in a Box’ to run many key functions in the
business, including supply chain and replenishment, went
live last year and this implementation has been the model
for subsequent roll-out to Japan and China.

Core UK Business UK sales grew by 10.7% in the year,
including a like-for-tike increase of 7.5%. Growth in customer
numbers was the main driver of our sales. Customer spend per
visit (excluding Express) also rase in the year despite deflation
in our stores,

We have continued to invest in the things that matter for
customers:
» We have strengthened again our position as the UK's best
value retailer by investing in lower prices for our customers,

with price deflation of 1.8% during the year {excluding petrol).

= On-shelf availability has also improved again and is now at
its highest ever level. Qur measure of this, which is based
on our in-store picking of tesco.com orders, shows that
availability improved by a full percentage point compared
with last year.

« New technology has helped our ‘one-in-front’ checkout
queue performance to improve so that many more
customers wait a shorter time to be served. A total of 1.5m
customers a week, in more than 200 stores, now regularly
choose to use our seif-scan checkouts.

« At the sarme time, customers are recognising that they can
also shop mare easily and comfortably in clearer aisles as
we introduce more shelf-ready packaging to speed
replenishment of praducts.

» We've added 200 new Finest lines this year, over 100 new
Healthy Living products, including a Kids’ Healthy range,
nearly 100 Wholefoods natural snack and cupboard lines
as well as hundreds more standard own-brand and Value
items.

Record efficiency savings of £330m were delivered this year
by our Step-Change programme, which brings together many
initiatives to make what we do better for customers, simpler
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for staff and cheaper for Tesco. Most of these savings are
reinvested to improve our offer for customers. This year, we
have made partiéularly good progress with our efforts to control
energy costs. Other examples include:

* We have introduced mobile display units for pre-packed
bread into 400 stores, with a further 300 planned in the
first half of this year. Bread is now presented better for
customers, availability has improved and the replenishment
of stockis quicker and easier for staff.

» New ways of managing stockin stores to increase the
availability of praducts for customers, involving scanning
gaps using hand-held computers on a regular cycle, has
significantly reduced out-of-stocks and also reduced costs.

We have made further good progress with the developrment of
new space and store formats. A total of 2.0m sqg ft of new sales
area was opened during the year in all formats, of which over
660,000 sq ft was in extensions to existing stores. With Extra
and Express being our least mature formats and with both
now delivering above-average investment returns, these

are impaortant drivers of our growth. Going forward, we are
aiming to maintain our rate of growth in selling area, from

a combination of extensions, principally for non-food, and

naw stores.

During the year, we opened another 18 Extra hypermarkets,
most of them through extensions to existing stores, bringing
the total to 118. Extra now represents 31% of our total sales
area. The trading performance of the large Extra stores we
opened in 2005 — in Bar Hill, near Cambridge; Talbot Green,
Mid-Glarmorgan and Stough in Berkshire, all of which have
more than 100,000 sq ft of sales area, has been significantly
ahead of expectations.

More customers have access to our Express convenience stores
as we bring the Tesco offer and lower prices to neighbourhoods.
115 new Express stores opened during the year, bringing the
overall total to over 650. A further 130 new Expresses are
planned for 2006/07, as we focus on organic expansion.

On 6 April, we submitted a response to the Office of Fair
Trading on its proposal to refer the grocery sector to the
Competition Cammission. If an inquiry goes ahead, we believe
the Commission will find that competition in our industry works
well and continues to delivervalue, innovation and convenience
to consumers.,
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equipment to schools.

Non-food Against the background of subdued consumer
spending in the UK, our non-food offer has again made very
good progress. Sales growth, in the UK alone, was over 13%
during the year with total non-food sales increasing to £6.8bn
(last year £6.0bn). Volume growth was again even higher,
driven by our ability to pass on lower prices to customers,
funded by our growing scale and supply chain efficiency,
including more direct sourcing from Asia.

UK consumers have been more cautious in their shopping
behaviour for many months but they remain witling to spend
on our competitively priced, goed quality and well-presented
merchandise. As a result, we have seen strong growth in most
large nen-food categories, including product groups which
have seen flat or reduced overall consumer spending.

Our established categories, which benefit less from new space,
grew strongly, with health and beauty sales increasing by 10%
and stationery, news and magazines by 17%. Clothing sales
grew well in a difficult market — up by 16% — and we saw
strong market share gains by volurme and value. Sorme product
groups, to which we have been able to allocate more space

in our larger Extra stores, did particularly well. For example,
consumer electronics sales were up 34%, sports goods 31%
and books 52%.

With only just over a quarter of UK households currently able to
get to an Extra store easily, we are looking at ways to improve
access for our customers to our non-food offer:

e On-line Following the success of tesco.com and ourin-
store non-food offer, we are continuing to investigate
whetherwe could build a substantial on-line non-food
business.

» Homeplus The performance of our first Homeplus trial
non-food only store, which opened last October in Denton,
Manchester, has encouraged us to extend the trial. Further
trial stores will open shortly in Bristal, Southampton and
Telford. These stores, which will trade from mare than
30,000 sq ft sales area, will stock a wide range of non-food,

similar to the assortment offered in our Extra hypermarkets,

Retailing services Our efforts to bring simplicity and value to
sometimes complicated markets are behind the success of our
retaifing services businesses. Also underpinning this element
of our strategy is a strong economic medel, based around

leveraging existing assets — either our own or a partner’s — so
that we can simultaneously price our services competitively for
customners and also achieve high returns for shareholders.

+ tesco.com sales continued to grow strongly — up by 31.9%
in the year to almost £1bn, Profit also increased by 54.9%
to £56.2m. The business now has over 750,000 regular
customers, more than 200,000 orders a week and
represents over 3% of UK sales. For parts of the country
where Tesco has few stores or where those we have are
exceptionally busy, we have developed a tesco.com-only
store. The first opened in Croydon, South London in
February. Only a few locations are likely to be appropriate
for this format.

* |n Telecoms, we are a product retailer and also an operator
providing telecoms services to our customers. In both we
now have a very competitive offer — from pay-as-you-go
mobiles to home phones and we already serve over
1.5 million customers. Telecoms introduced many new
services during the year, which are now available in 350
stores, including a range of pay-monthly mobiles on-line
and Tesco internet phone. We opened our first dedicated
Telecoms centre (inside our Slough Extra) during the year.

« Tesco Personal Finance (TPF) has delivered a good
performance in a difficult financial services market. Cn a
pre-IFRS basis, total operating profit increased slightly to
£205m, of which our share is £103m. Net of interest and
tax, and the other reporting changes required by IFRSs,
profit reduced to £139m (last year £142m) of which our
share is £70m. After a flat first half, in which market
conditions in twa of TPF's core markets ~ credit cards and
motor insurance —were challenging, TPF saw a stronger
second half performance. TPF is providing excellent and
arowing returns in only its eighth year of operation. Over
the last two years, a total of £86m of surplus capital,
representing over 37% of the original investment in the
joint venture, has been returned to Tesco through two cash
dividend payments. This has reduced Tesco’s net investment
in the joint venture to £141m. TPF now have gver 5m
customer accounts, of which 1.8m are credit cards and
1.4m are motor insurance policies. Customner numbers
are up over 200,000 on last year.
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Operating and financial review continued

Resources and relationships

Customers Our customers have told us what they want from
an ‘Every little helps' shopping trip and this year 12,000 of
themn attended our Customer Question Time to offer ideas on
how we can improve. Clubcard also helps us to understand
what our customers want, whilst alfowing us to thank them
for shopping with us — this year we gave away over £320m

in Clubcard vouchers.

We don’t always get it right but we try to make their shopping
trip as easy as possible, reduce prices where we can to help them
spend less and give them the corwvenience of shopping when
and where they want — in small stores, large stores or on-line.

Employees With over 389,000 staff in 12 countries, we play
an important role in creating employment, fostering skills
and generating economic development.

Our people are our most important asset. Looking after our
staff so that they can lock after our customers is one of the
core values of the business, We are committed to providing
market-leading working conditions for our staff and we
encourage our suppliers to do the same.

In the LK, we offer our staff a market-leading package of pay
and benefits.

Employee Share Schemes Over 165,000 of our people have a
personal stake in Tesco. Our Shares in Success and Save as You
Farn schemes resuited in our people receiving benefits of
£481m this year.

Training and Development We are committed to developing
our people to bring out the best in everyone and do what we
can to enable all our pecple to reach their potential. All our
staff have access to training programmes and personal
development planning to ensure that they have the right
skills to do their job.

Diversity We try to ensure that at all ttimes and in every
aspect of employment, including recruitment, training,

and development, everyone receivas the same treatment,
regardless of factors such as gender, age, colour, creed, race,
ethnic origin, disability, marital status, religion or belief, trade
union membership or sexual preference and orientation.

Suppliers To be a successful, sustainable business we have
to ensure that our drive to bring cheaper prices is achieved
without compromising our standards, reducing quality,
damaging the environment or harming the suppliers and
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workers who produce the goods we sell. 5o we take a
partnership approach to working with suppliers — sharing our
knowledge and listening to suppliers’ feedback. This includes
providing technical expertise, advice and insight into customer
trends and making regular payment, on time.

We are one of four signatories to the UK Government's
statutory Supermarkets Code of Practice. Since the Code’s
introduction we have run tailored training for all Tesco buyers
to promote understanding and compliance. If problems do
arise in supplier relationships we aim to air and resolve them
through constructive discussion. To aid this process we
appointed a Code Compliance Officer to hear formal
complaints, confidentially if requested, and we hope that our
annual Supplier Viewpoint Survey encourages suppliers to
give us more feedback on our relationships. Our target is for
feedback to show that at least 90% of our suppliers view Tesco
as being trustworthy, reliable, consistent, clear, helpful and fair.

We carry out ethical audits and target ourselves to cover 100%
of our high risk own brand suppliers and ensure all commercial
teams have received training on supply chain labour standards.

Corporate responsibility As a responsible Comparty, Tesco
works hard to bring real benefits to the communities we
serve, the environment and the economy. This is recognised
through our inclusion in the FTSE4AGood and Dow Jones
Sustainability indices.

Our fundraising efforts have again delivered great results. Each
year we contribute the equivalent of at least 1% of our pre-tax
profits to charities and good causes and a total of £41m was
given during 2005/06 in donations, staff time and gifts in kind.
Qur Charity of the Year was Age Concem, for which staff and
custorners raised £2m.

Environment We are committed to playing our part in tackling
climate change by reducing our energy use and emissions from
our distribution fleet, In 2005/06, we reduced our energy use
per square foot by 15% which has saved 59,000 tonnes of
carbon dioxide emissions.

Against a baseline of 2000, we want to cut the average energy
use in our buildings (KwH/sq ft} in half by 2010, delivering a
huge reduction in carbon emissions. We built our first model
enetqy efficient store in Diss, UK, in 2005. The store uses 20%
less energy than comparable stores by using clear roof sections
to maximise natural light, wind turbines power the tills and cold
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air from chilled areas is re-used for air conditioning. Our second
model energy efficient store has now opened in Swansea.

Our investments will also include further recycling initiatives to
make recycling easy and attractive for customers, In 2003, we
recycled 71% of all store waste, saving nearly 27,000 tonnes
from landfill. We invested over £600,000 in new automated
recycling machines for customers at ur stores in Winchester,
Havant, Portsmouth, Southampton, Andover and Roysten and
we plan to install these at many more stores. We believe this
will enable us to double the amount our customers bring for
recycling and this additional material would account for around
10% of the total additional tonnage needed to meet the UK’s
EU packaging recycling targets by 2008,

We have set up a £100m fund within our business to be used
for innovation in sustainable environmental technology. We
will be installing wind turbines at some of our new stores,
alongside solar energy technology, geothermal power,
combined heat and power and trigeneration. We will also be
trialiing gasification, a revolutionary technology to turn waste
into clean, sustainable power,

Community We continue to play an active role in regeneration,
encouraging inward investment and creating rewarding jobs
and careers in our most deprived areas. Over the last seven
years we have completed 14 Regeneration Partnership
Schemes creating 3,500 jobs and helping 2,200 long-term
unemployed people backinto work. In 2005/06 we completed
two such schemes in Manchester and Leicester. To attract and
retain the best workfarce we offer training and development to
help people achieve their full potential. In 2004, we launched
our Apprenticeship in Retail scheme with just 16 staff taking
part from three stores, this year 445 general assistants from 92
stores will attain their apprenticeships and GCSE equivalent
gualifications in English and Maths.

People tell us they want us to use our size and reach to be

a force for good in society. To help us meet this challenge

we have decided that from 2006 we will operate a new
Community Plan. This will be part of our Steering Wheel,
setting out objectives that the business wilt deliver. It will
ensure we provide the right resources, energy and focus to
meet the expectations of our customers and other stakehalders
in this area. The key objectives are:

» to be a good neighbour; and

» to be responsible, fair and honest
in the way we do business.

Risks and uncertainties

Risk is an accepted part of doing business. The real challenge
for any business is to identify the principal risks and to develop
and monitor appropriate controls. A successful risk
management process balances risks and rewards and relies
on a sound judgement of their likelihood and consequence.

The Tesco Board has overall responsibility for risk management
and internal control within the context of achieving the Group's
objectives. Qur process for identifying and managing risks is set
out in more detail on page 22 of the Corporate Governance
Statement in this Annual Report. The key risks and mitigating
factors are set out below.

Business strategy If our strategy follows the wrong direction
or is not efficiently communicated then the business may suffer.

We need to understand and properly manage strategic riskin
order to deliver long-term growth for the benefit of all our
stakeholders. Our strategy is based on a four-part strategy:

to grow the core UK business, to become a successful
international retailer, to be as strong in non-food as in food
and to develop retailing services, Pursuit of this four-part
strategy has allowed the business to diversify. At a strategic
level diversification and pursuit of growth in emerging markets
has the effect of reducing overall risk by avoiding reliance on

a small number of business areas., However, by its very nature,
diversification also introduces new risks to be managed in
areas of the business that are less mature and fully understaod.

To ensure the Group continues to pursue the right strategy,
these aspects are reviewed on a continuous basis. We also
have structured pragrammes for engaging with all our
stakeholders including customers, employees, investors,
suppliers, government, the media and non-governmental
organisations. We also invest significant resources in ensuring
our strategy is communicated well and understood by the
parties who are key to delivering it. The business utilises a
Steering Wheel approach in all our countries and significant
business units, such as tesco.com, to help manage performance
and deliver business strategy.

Financial strategy and Group treasury risk The main
financial risks of the Group relate to the availability of funds to
meet business needs, the risk of default by counter-parties to
financial transactions, and fluctuations in interest and foreign
exchange rates.

The Treasury function is mandated by the Board to manage
the financial risks that arise in relation to underlying business
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Operating and financial review continued

needs. The function has clear policies and operating
parameters, and its activities are routinely reviewed and
audited. The function does not operate as a profit centre and
the undertaking of speculative transactions is not permitted.

Operational threats and performance risk in UK business
The UK operation still constitutes a substantial part of the
Group's profit generation so under-performance in the UK

is & bigger risk than elsewhere. Like all retail businesses our
business is susceptible to economic downturn that could affect
consumer spending.

We aim to deliver what customears want better than our
competitors by understanding and responding to their
behaviour. Al! of our business units have stretching targets
based on the Steering Whee! and the performance of all
husiness units is monitored continually and reported monthly
to the Board.

Our aim is to ensure an excellent understanding of customer
behaviour through our custorner insight team. This helps us
have broad appeal to all customers in our different markets,
minimising the impact of changes to the economic climate.

Competition The retail industry is highly competitive. The
Group competes with a wide variety of retailers of varying sizes,
and faces increased competition fram UK retailers as well as
international operators, here and overseas. Failure to compete
with competitors on areas including price, product range,
quality and service could have an adverse effect on the Group's
financial results.

We aim to have a broad appeal in price, range and store format
in a way that allows us to compete in different markets. We
track performance against a range of measures that customers
tell us are critical to their shopping trip experience. We
constantly monitor customer perceptions of ourselves and our
competitors to ensure we can respond quickly if we need to.

People capabilities Our greatest asset is our employees. It is
critical to our success to attract, retain and motivate the best
people with the right capabilities at all levels of operations.

We consider our people policies regularly and are committed
to investing in training and development and incentives for our
people such as profit-sharing. Our ‘Talent Planning’ process
helps individuals achieve their full potential. We also carry out
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succession planning to ensure that the needs of the business
going forward are considered and provided for.

We have a well-established partnership with the Union of Shap
Distributive and Allied Warkers (USDAW) in the UK and build
relationships with trade unions in our International operations.
There are clear processes for understanding and responding

to employees needs through our People Management Group,
staff surveys, regular performance reviews and regular
communication of business developments.

Reputational risk As the largest retailer in the UK,
expectations of the Group are high. Failure to protect the
Group's reputation and brand coutd lead to a loss of trust and
confidence. This could resutt in a decline in the customner base
and affect the ability to recruit and retain good people.

Like other companies we must consider potential threats to
our reputation and the consequences of reputational damage.
Emotional loyatty to the Tesco brand has helped us diversify
into new areas like retail services and non-food and we
recognise the commercial imperative to do the right thing

for all our stakeholders and avoid the loss of such loyalty.

We monitor this through independent surveys and our
community schemes such as Computers for Schools and
Charity of the Year contribute to society more broadly. The Tesco
Values are embedded in the way we do business at every level
and our Code of Ethics guides our behaviour in our dealings
with customers, emplayees and suppliers. We engage with
stakeholders in every sphere to take into account their views
and we try to ensure our strategy reflects them. We have high
level committees including the Corporate Responsibility
Committee and Compliance Committee to help guide and
monitor our policies.

Environmental risks We develop environmental policy
through engaging with key stakeholders and experts in
this field to achieve sustainable growth, minimise our
environmental impacts and ba a good neighbour. Policy
is reviewed regularty by the Compliance Committee and
Corporate Responsibility Committee. We recognise the
opportunities for both environmental improvement and
competitive advantage through energy savings and store
design, transportation efficiency, waste management and
recycling. We look for continuous improvement through
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innovations and better ways to help customers act responsibly
towards the environment.

Product safety The safety and quality of our products is

of paramount importance to Tesco as well as being essential
for maintaining customer trust and confidence. A breach in
confidence could affect the size of our customer base and
hence our financial results.

Tesco has detailed and established procedures for ensuring
product integrity at all times, especially for our own label
products. There are strict product safety processes and regular
management reports. We work in partnership with suppliers to
ensure mutual understanding of the standards required. The
business also manitors developments in areas such as health,
safety and nutrition in order to respond appropriately to
changing customer trends and new legislation. We have clear
processes for crisis management, pulling together expert
teams should we need to respond quickly on issues.

Ethical risks in the supply chain We do business with a large
number of own-brand suppliers in over 90 countries and the
supply chain is made of complex relationships — from individual
farmers and growers through to processors, manufacturers and
distributors. There is a risk that any part of the supply chain
might not adhere with the Group's high ethical standards,
which are set out on our website.

To minimise this risk we have a partnership approach to
waorking with suppliers, providing a certain and growing market
for their products, regular payrments and payments on time,
and our commitment to sharing our understanding of
customers and changing consumer behaviour, We also have

a programme of risk assessment and internal and external
auditing of suppliers on ethical issues to complement our
compliance work on product safety, quality and capability.

Fraud and compliance As the business grows in size and
geographical spread, the risk of occurrence of fraudulent
behaviour of its employees increases. While the vast majority
of our staff are completely honest, there remains the potential
for financial crimes at all levels of the business from shop-floor
to senior management, The Group takes extensive steps to
reduce this risk. Accounting procedures at all levels are clearly
sat out and audited across the business to reduce the risk of
fraud. The Group gives clear guidance on behaviour to
employees through the Values and the Code of Ethics. The
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Internal Audit department undertakes detailed investigations
into all areas of the business and highlights to the Audit
Committee its findings. The Compliance Committee
formulates and monitors the implementation of, and
compliance with, appropriate policies on key areas of ethical
behaviour, including fraud.

IT systems and infrastructure The business is dependent on
efficient Information Technology (IT) systems. Any significant
failure in the IT processes of our retail operations (e.g. barcode
scanning or supply chain logistics) would impact our ability to
trade. We recognise the essential role that IT plays across the
Group in allowing us to trade efficiently and that we can alsa
achieve commercial advantage through implementing IT
innovations that improve the shopping trip for customers and
make life easier for employees. We have extensive controls

in place to maintain the integrity and efficiency of aur IT
infrastructure and we share world-class systems across our
International operations to ensure consistency of delivery.

Regulatory and political environment We are subjectto a
wide variety of regulations in the different countries in which we
opetate because of the diverse nature of our business. Tesco is
subject to regulatory changes in key areas such as changes in
planning laws, trading hours and tex rules and to scrutiny by the
competition authorities. We consider these uncertainties in the
external environment when developing strategy and reviewing
performance. We remain vigilant to future changes in the UK and
abroad. As part of our day-to-day operations we engage with
governmental and non-governmental orgamisations to ensure the
views of our customers and employees are represented and try to
anticipate and contribute to important changes in public policy.

Activism and terrorism A major incident or terrorist event
incapacitating management, systems or stores could impact on
the Group’s ability to trade. In addition to excellent contingency
plans we have security systems and processes that reflect

best practice.

Pension risks The Group’s pension arrangements are an
important part of our employees’ overall benefits package,
especially in the UK. We see them as a strong contributor
to our ability to attract and retain good people, our Group’s
greatest asset.

The Tesco PLC Pensian Scheme is a defined benefit scheme
with around 150,000 members and about 15,000 pensioners.

Tesco plc
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Operating and financial review continued

During the year ended 25 February 2006, the Trustee board
was chaired by Mr R S Ager and comprised nine directors
including the three nominated by members. Management
of the assets is delegated to a number of independent fund
managers who have discretion to invest in Tesco PLC subject
to certain restrictions.

The Company has considered its pension risks and has taken
action by increasing contributions and by the Trustee reducing
risk in its investment strategy. The Group paid in a special
contribution of £200m in February 2005 and, since the results
of the 2005 Trustee’s Valuation (the valuation that is used to set
the contribution rate, details of which are included on page 5),
the rates of the Company’s and employees’ contributions

have increased. These increases recognise the higher cost of
providing pensions, partly as a result of the improvement in

life expectancy.

Joint venture governance and partnerships As we continue
to enter into new partnerships and grow existing joint ventures
the risk inherent in managing these partnerships increases. It is
more difficult to quarantee the achigvement of joint goals and
we rely on partners’ reputations. We choose partners with good
reputations and set out joint goals and clear contractual
arrangements from the outset. We monitor performance and
governance of our joint ventures and partnerships.

Financial review

The main financial risks faced by the Group relate to the
availability of funds to meet business needs, the risk of default
by counter-parties to financial transactions, and fluctuations in
interest and foreign exchange rates. These risks are managed
as described below. The Balance Sheet position at 25 February
2006 is representative of the position throughout the year.

Funding and liquidity The Group finances its operations by

a combination of retained profits, long and medium-term debt,
capital market issues, commercial paper, bark borrowings and
leases. The objective is to ensure continuity of funding. The
policy is to smooth the debt maturity profile, to arrange

16 Tesco ple

»
We treat our
suppliers the way
we like to be treated
and make sure we
are fair, honest

and responsible.

funding ahead of requirements and to maintain sufficient
undrawn committed bank facilities, and a stvong credit rating
so that maturing debt may be refinanced as it falls due.

The Group’s long-term credit rating remained stable during the
year, Tesco Group is rated A1 by Moody’s and At by Standard
and Poor’s. New funding of £529m was arranged during the
year, including a net £484m from property joint ventures and
£45m from medium-term notes {(MTNs). We renewed our
£10bn MTN programme on 28 February 2006. At the year end,
net debt was £4.5bn {last year £3.9bn) and the average debt
maturity was six years {last year eight years).

interest rate risk management The cbjective is to limit
our exposure to increases in interest rates while retaining the
opportunity to benefit from interest rate reductions. Forward
rate agreements, interest rate swaps, caps and collars are
used to achieve the desired mix of fixed and floating rate debt.
The policy is to fix or cap a minimum of 40% of actuat and
projected debt interest costs. At the year end, £1.5bn of debt
was in fixed rate form (last year £2.6bn) with a further £0.9bn
of debt capped or collared, therefore 53% (2005 - 87%)

of net debt is fixed, capped or collared. Fixed rate debt
includes £472m of funding linked to the Retail Price Index
{2005 ~ £454m).

This debt reduces interest risk by diversifying our funding
portfolio. The remaining balance of our debt is in floating
rate form.

The average rate of interest paid on a historic cost basis during
the yearwas 5.2% (fast year 5.4%).

Foreign currency risk management Our principal objective

is to reduce the effect of exchange rate volatility on short-term
profits. Transactional currency exposures that could significantly
impact the Income Statement are hedged, typically using
forward purchases or sales of foreign currencies and currency
options. At the year end, forward foreign currency transactions
equivalent to £548m were outstanding (2005 — £479m) as
detailed in note 20.
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We hedge the majority of our investments in our international
subsidiaries via foreign exchange transactions in matching
currencies. Our objective is to maintain a low cost of borrowing
and hedge against material movements in our Balance Sheet
value. During the year, currency movements increased the net
value of the Group’s overseas assets by £27m (last year £19m).
We translate overseas profits at average exchange rates which
we do not currently seek to hedge.

Credit risk The objective is to reduce the risk of loss arising
from default by parties to financial transactions across an
approved list of counterparties of high credit quality. The
Group's positions with these counterparties and their credit
ratings are routinely monitored.

Tesco Personal Finance (TPF) TPF lending is predominantly
to individuals through its credit card and unsecured personal
loan products. TPF has also developed a significant insurance
business, with mator insurance a major component. TPF riskis
managed by observing and adopting industry best practices
and drawing upon the expertise and systems of the Royal
Bank of Scotland Group, including its subsidiary Direct Line.
All policies pertaining to risk within TPF are subject to the
governance procedures of the Royal Bark of Scotland Group
and ratified by the TPF Board, which has representation from
both Tesco and the Royal Bank of Scotland Group. This has
delivered a portfolio of products with strong asset quality. This
asset quality is maintained through proactive risk management,
bath at the time of acquisition and cngoing account
maintenance,

The Tesco Group would support its 50% share of any further

funding TPF might require to sustain liquidity ratios, However,
we believe that provisions for bad debts and insurance losses
(supported by re-insurance of significant risks) are at

prudent levels.

Insurance We purchased Assets, Earnings and Combined
Liability protection from the open insurance market at
‘catastrophe’ level only. The risk not transferred to the insurance
market is retained within the business by using

our captive insurance companies, Tesco Insurance Limited

in Guernsey and Valiant Insurance Company Limited in the
Republic of Ireland. Tesco Insurance Limited covers Assets

and Earnings, while Valiant Insurance Limited covers

Combined Liability.

Statement of compliance

This review has been prepared in accordance with the
Directors’ Report Business Review Requirements in section
234Z7B of the Companies Act 1985. It also incorporates much
of the guidance set cut in the Accounting Standards Board’s
Reporting Statement on the Operating and Financial Review.

The OFR’s intent is to provide information to shareholders
and should not be relied an by any other party or for any
other purpose.

Where this review contains forward-looking statements,

these are made by the Directors in good faith based on the
information available to them at the time of their approval of
this report. These statements should be treated with caution
due to the inherent uncertainties underlying any such forward-
looking information.

Other information

Additional financial and nen-financial information, including
press releases and year end presentations, can be accessed
on our website, www.tesco.com/corporate and also in our
Corporate Responsibility Review 2006. ’
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their annual report to shareholders
on the affairs of the Group and Company, together with the
audited financial statements of the Group and the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended

25 February 2006.

Principal activity and business review

The principal activity of the Group is retailing and associated
activities in the UK, the Republic of Ireland, Hungary, Poland,
the Czech Republic, Slovakia, Turkey, Thailand, South Korea,
Taiwan, Malaysia, Japan and China. A review of the business
is cantained in the Annual Review and Summary Financial
Statermnent 2006 which is published separately and, together
with this document, comprises the full Tesco PLC Annual
Report and Financial Statements.

Group results

Group revenue rose by £5,588m to £39,454m, representing
an increase of 16.5%.

Group profit before tax increased by £341m, to £2,235m. Profit
for the yearwas £1,576m, of which £1,570m was attributable to
equity holders of the parent.

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend

aof 6.10p per ordinary share, to be paid on 14 July 2006 to
members on the Register at the close of business on 5 May
2006. Together with the interim dividend of 2.53p per ordinary
share paid in December 2005, the total dividend for the year
will be 8.63p compared with 7.56p for the previous year, an
increase of 14.2%.

Fixed assets

Capital expenditure amounted to £2,802m compared with
£2,450m the previous year. In the Directors’ opinion, the
properties of the Group have a market value in excess of
the carrying value of £13,748m included in these financial
staternents. In the year we received £484m from our new
property joint ventures with Consensus and Morley,
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Share capital

The authorised and called-up share capital of the Company,
together with details of the shares allotted during the year,
are shown in note 24 of the financial statements. Detatls of
treasury shares held by Tesco PLC are shown in note 25 of the
financial statements.

Company’s shareholders

The Company has been notified that as at the date of this
report FMR Corporation/Fidelity International held 5.02% of
the issued share capitat of the Company.

Except for the above, the Company is not aware of any ordinary
shareholders with interests of 3% or more in the issued share
capital of the Company.

Directors and their interests

The names and biographical details of the present Directors
are set out in the separately published Annual Review and
Summary Financial Statement 2006.

Mr C LAHRen, Mr R Brasher, Mr P A Clarke and Mr A T Higginson
retire from the Board by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The interests of Directors and their immediate families in the
shares of Tesco PLC, along with details of Directors’ share
options, are contained in the Directors’ remuneration report
set out on pages 25 to 38.

At no time during the year did any of the Directors have a
material interest in any significant contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

A gualifying third party indemnity provision as defined in
Section 309B(1) of the Companies Act 1985 (as amended)
is in force for the benefit of each of the Directors and

the Company Secretary (who is alsc a Director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company) and remains in force for

Mr G F Pimlott who retired as a Non-executive Director

in the year ended 25 February 2006,




Empioyment policies

The Group depends on the skills and commitment of its
employees in order to achieve its objectives. Staff at every level
are encouraged to make their fullest possible contribution to
the success of Tesco.

A key business priority is to deliver an ‘Every little helps’
shopping experience for custorners, Ongoing training
programmes seek to ensure that employees understand the
Group's customer service objectives and strive to achieve them,

The Group’s selection, training, development and promotion
policies ensure equal opportunities for all employees regardless
of factors such as gender, marital status, race, age, sexual
preference and orientation, colour, creed, ethnic origin, religion
or belief, or disability. All decisions are based on merit.

Internal communications are designed to ensure that
employees are well informed about the business of the Group.
These include a UK staff magazine calted ‘one team’ and the
equivalents in our overseas businesses, videos and staff
briefing sessions.

Staff opinions are frequently researched through surveys and
store visits. We work to deliver ‘Every little helps' for all our
people across the Group.

Employees are encouraged to become involved in the financial
performance of the Group through a variety of schemes,
principally the Tesco employee profit-sharing scheme (Shares-
in-Success), the savings-related share option scheme (Save-As-
You-Earn) and the partnership share plan (Buy-As-You-Earn).

Political and charitable donations

Cash donations to charities amounted to £15,047,768
(2005 — £4,576,210). Contributions to community projects
including gifts-in-kind, staff time and management costs,
amounted to £41,768,741 (2005 — £21,762,931}.

There were no political donations (2605 — nil). During the year
the Group made contributions of £54,219 (2005 - £40,929)

in the form of sponsarship for political events: Labour Party —
£13,278; Conservative Party - £7,076; Liberal Democrat Party —
£6,286; Fianna Fail — £2,033; Fine Gael — £341; Progressive
Democrats — £205; USDAW ~ £25,000.

Supplier payment policy

Tesco PLC is a signatory to the CBI Code of Prompt Payment.
Copies of the Code may be obtained from the CBI, Centre
Point, 103 New Oxford Street, London WC1A 1DU. Payment
terms and conditions are agreed with suppliers in advance.

Tesco PLC has no trade creditors in its Balance Sheet. The
Group pays its creditors on a pay on time basis which varies
according to the type of product and territory in which the
suppliers operate.

Going concern

The Directors consider that the Group and the Company have
adequate resources to remain in operation for the foreseeable
future and have therefore continued to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements. As with all
business forecasts, the Directors' statement cannot guarantee
that the going concern basis will remain appropriate given the
inherent uncertainty about future events.

Auditors

A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
auditors of the Company and the Group will be proposed at
the Annual General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting

A separate circular accompanying the Annual Review and
Summary Financial Statement 2006 explains the special
business to be considered at the Annual General Meeting
on 7 July 2006.

By Order of the Board
Miss Lucy Nevilie-Rolfe
Company Secretary

24 April 2006

Tesco PLC
Registared Number: 445790
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Corporate governance

Directors’ report on corporate governance
p

Tesco PLC is committed to the highest standards of corporate
governance. We recognise that good governance helps the
business to deliver our strategy, generate shareholder value and
safeguard their long-term interests, We believe that the revised
Combined Code provides a useful guide from which to review
corparate governance within the Group. This statement
describes the Board's approach to corporate governance.

Board composition and independence

As at 25 February 2006, the Board of Tesco PLC comprised
six Executive Directors, seven independent Non-executive
Directors and Mr D E Reid, Non-executive Chairman.

MrR F Chase is Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent
Non-executive Director. Ms C McCall joined the Board
during the financial year ended 25 February 2006 and her
appointment was approved by shareholders at the AGM

in June 2005.

Both Mr C LAllen and Dr H Einsmann have served on the
Board for more than two three-year terms. The Chairman
conducted a rigorous review with each Director to assess their
independence and contributions to the Board and confirmed
that they both continue to be effective independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr C LAllen brings experience as a

CEO with knowledge of the media industry and the recent
Remuneration Committee review confirmed the quality of
his leadership as Chairman. Through his wealth of business
experience, Dr H Einsmann contributes a different
dimension to the Board and he also provides coaching

for directors overseas.

The Chairman has primary responsibility for running the Board.
The Chief Executive, Sir Terry Leahy, has executive responsibilities
for the operations, results and strategic development of the
Group. Clear divisions of accountability and responsibility exist
and operate effectively for these positions.

The Board requires all Non-executive Directors to be
independent in their judgement. The structure of the Board
and the integrity of the individual Directars ensure that no one
individual or group dominates the decision-making process.

Biographies for the Board Directors can be found on
pages 40-41 of the Annual Review and Summary Financial
Staterment 2006.

Board responsibilities

The Board meets eight times a year and annually devotas two
days to a conference with senior executives on performance
and longer-term planning, giving consideration both to the
opportunities and risks of future strategy. The Board has set
out clearly the Schedule of Matters Reserved for Board Decision
in order to ensure overall contral of the Group’s affairs. These
include the approval of financial statements, major acquisitions
and disposals, authority levels for expenditure, treasury policies,
risk management, Group governance policies and succession
plans for senior executives,
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All Directors have access to the services of the Company
Secretary and may take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense in conducting their duties. The Company
provided insurance cover and indemnities for its Directors and
officers this year.

New Directors receive a parsonalised induction programme
designed to develop their knowledge and understanding of
the Group. On appointment the Director will liaise with the
Company Secretary and Chairman to ensure the programme
is appropriately tailored to their experience, background and
particular areas of focus. It usually includes an overview of the
business model, Board processes, ohe-to-one meetings with
the Executive team and briefings with senior managers, an
introduction to Board Committees that the new appointee will
serve on, a briefing on social, ethical and environmental (SEE)
issues for the business, and site visits at home and abroad. The
need for Director training is reqularly assessed by the Board.

Board processes

The Board govems through clearly identified Board
Committees to which we delegate powers. These are the
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nominations Committee. They are properly
authorised under the constitution of the Company to take
decisions and act on behalf of the Board within the guidelines
and delegations laid down by the Board. The Board is kept
fully informed of the work of these Committees. Any issues
requiring resolution will be referred to the full Board.

A summary of the operations of these Committees is set out
below. The three statutory Committees (Audit, Remuneration
and Norminations) are underpinned by their Non-executive
Director membership providing independent insight to
governance. Copies of each of the Committee’s Terms

of Reference are available on the website
www.tesco.com/corporate or at the AGM,

Executive Committee The Board delegates responsibility

for determining and implementing the strategic ptan and for
management of the Group to the Executive Commmittee. This
Committee meets formally every week and its decisions are
communicated throughott the Group on a regular basis. The
Executive Cormmittee is chaired by the Chief Executive and
comprises the Executive Directors and Ms L Neville-Rolfe, the
Company Secretary. It has authority for decision making in all
areas except those set out in the Schedule of Matters Reserved
for Board Decision. The Executive Committee is responsible for
implementing Group strategy and policy, for monitoring the
performance of the business and reporting on these matters
in full to the Board.

The Executive Committee has also set up further operational
groups or boards aimed at seeing through the key elements
of the strategic plan and managing the UKand International
operations, joint ventures, property acquisitions, finance,
funding and people management. These groups are heavily
populated with Executive Directors and senior management
from relevant functions.




Nominations Committee In the light of assessment of Board
capability, the Nominations Committee leads the process for
Board appointments, re-election and succession of Directors
and the Chairman. The Committee is chaired by Mr D E Reid
and its members during the year were Mr C L Allen,

Mr R F Chase, Mrs X R Cook, Mr E M Davies, Dr H Einsmann,
Mr K J Hydon and Sir Terry Leahy. Where matters discussed
relate to the Chairman, the Senior Independent Non-executive
Director chairs the meeting. The Nominations Committee met
onhce in the year ended 25 February 2006 to discuss the
ongoing shape and capability of the Board. Following Graham
Pimlott's retirement some minor changes were made to
Committee membership. Mrs K R Cook resigned from the Audit
Committee to join the Remuneration Committee and Ms CM
McCall joined the Audit Committee. The most recent additions
to the Board have made good progress with their induction
programmes and the other Non-executive Directors continue to
invest time in developing their understanding of the business.

All Directors have to submit themselves for re-election at least
every three years if theywish to continue serving and are
considered by the Board to be eligible. New Directors will be
submitted for election by shareholders in their first year.

Remuneration Committee The Remuneration Committee’s
role is to determine and recommend to the Board the
remuneration policy for the Executive Directors. it monitors the
level and structure of remuneration for senior management
and seeks to ensure that the levels and structure of
rermuneration is designed to attract, retain and motivate the
Executive Directors needed to run the Company. Mr C LAllen
¢chairs the Committee, which is composed entirely of
independent Non-executive Directors. Committee members
for the full yearwere Mr R F Chase, MrE M Davies and

Dr H Einsmann. Mrs KR Cook joined the Committee in
September 2005, The responsibilities of the Rernuneration
Committee and an explanation of how it applies the Directors’
remuneration principtes of the Combined Code, are set out

in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 25 to 38,

Audit Committee The Audit Committee’s primary
responsibilities are to review the financial statements, to
review the internal contro! systems including risk management,
to review the programme of Internal Audit, to consider the
appointment of the external auditors and their independence
and to review the Committee’s own effectiveness. The annual
schedule also includes a review of Protector Line, the
Company’s ‘whistle-blowing’ procedure.

Mr K J Hydon, who has recent and relevant financial
experience, chairs the Committee. The other Committee
members for the full financial year were Mr R F Chase and
Mr E M Davies. Mrs KR Cook resigned from the Audit
Committee to join the Remuneration Committee and was
replaced by Ms C McCall in September 2005. The Committee
consists entirely of independent Non-executive Directors.

At the invitation of the Committee, the Chairman of the Board,
the Finance Director, the Company Secretary, the Head of
Internal Audit and representatives of the external auditors
normally attend meetings. The Committee meets privately
with the external auditors at least once a year.

The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference are reviewed
annually and represent current best practice, This year the
Committee met four times. To facilitate the members’
understanding of the Group's international affairs, a special
meeting was held in Asia in 2005. The need for training is kept
under review and is formally considered by the Commiittee
annually. [n 2005, the Committee set aside a full day to up-skill
the whole Board on topics such as changing regulation,
corporate governance, fraud and auditor ethical standards.
Training is also provided to meet specific individual needs.

Board performance evaluation The Board regularly reviews
its own performance. In 2005 the Chairman led a thorough
independent review of the performance of the Board and its
key Commmittees. The review concluded that the Board is highly
effective and that there had been significant improvements in
the Board’s culture, dynamics and administrative processes
during the year. Good progress has been made in implementing
the recommendations of this review and the Board agreed to
conduct an in-house review for the year ended 25 February
2006. The Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary, met
with each of the Directors individually. The Directors again
found this to be an open, constructive and useful process and
the review found the Board to be highly effective.

The Chief Executive reviews the performance of each
Executive Director, The Chairman reviews the performance of
the Chief Executive and each Non-executive Director. During
the year, the Chairman met with the Non-executive Directors
without the Executive Directors present to discuss Board
issues and how to build the best possible team, The Senior
independent Non-executive Director, MrR F Chase, met with
the Non-executive Directors in the absence of the Chairman,
to assess the Chairman's effectiveness.

The Board scheduled eight meetings in the year ended
25 February 2006 and ad hoc meetings were convened to
deal with urgent matters. The following table shows the
attendance of Directors at regular Board meetings and of
members at the Audit, Nominations and Remuneration
Committees during the year.
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Corporate governance continued

Board Nominations  Remuneration Audit
Members attendance during the year ended 25 February 2006 fmeetings Committee Committee Committee
Number of meetings held 8 1 5 4
Non-executive Directors
Mr D E Reid (Chairman) 8 1 N/A N/A
Mr C LAllen 7 1 5 N/A
Mr R F Chase (Senios Independent) 8 1 5 4
Mrs KR Cook? g 1 2 -
Mr E M Davies 8 1 5 3
Dr H Einsmann 8 1 4 NA
Mr K J Hydon 8 1 N/A 4
Ms C McCall2 7 1 N/A 1
Executive Directors
Siv Terry Leahy 2! i N/A N/A
Mr R Brasher 8 N/A N/A N/A
Mr P A Clarke 8 N/A N/A NIA
Mr A T Higginsen 8 N/A N/A N/A
MrT JR Mason 8 N/A N/A MN/A
Mr D T Potts 8 N/A N/A N/A
Notes:

INJA' indicates the Director is not a member of the Committee. Directors leave the rneeting where matters refating to them are baing discussed. It is expected that all Directors
attend Board and Committee meetings unless they are prevented from doing se by prior commitments and all Directers attend the AGM,

1 Mrs K R Cook resigned from the Audit Committee in Septernber 2005 and was appointed to the Remuneration Committee in October 2005.

2 Ms C McCall joined the Audit Committee in September 2005,

Risk management and internal control

Accountabilities Accepting that risk is an inherent part of
doing business, our risk management system is designed to
both encourage entrepreneurial spirit whilst also providing
assurance that risk is understood and managed. In terms of
broad accountabilities, the Board has overall responsibility for
risk management and internal control within the context of
achieving the Group's objectives. Executive management is
responsible for defining and maintaining the necessary control
systems. The role of Internal Audit is to monitor the overall
systern and report on its effectiveness.

Background The Group has a five-year rolling business plan
to support the delivery of the Company’s strategy of long-term
growth in returns for shareholders.

Every business unit and support function derives its objectives
from the five-year plan and these are cascaded to managers
and staff by way of personal objectives. Key to delivering
effective risk management is ensuring our people have a
good understanding of the Group’s strategy and our policies,
procedures, values and expected performance. We have a
structured internal communications programme that provides
employees with a clear definition of the Group's purpose, goals
and accountabilities, and the scope of permitted activities for
each unit, line managers and individuals. This ensures that all
our people understand what is expected of them and that
decision-making takes place at the appropriate level.
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We recognise that our people may face ethical dilermmas in the
normal course of business so we provide clear guidance based
on the Tesco Values. The Values set out the standards that we
wish to uphold in how we treat people. These are supported
by the Code of Ethics which offers guidance on relationships
between the Group and its employees, suppliers and
contractors. The Company is a signatory to the DTl Code of
Conduct and met its obligations for implementing the Code.

We operate a balanced scorecard approach that is known
within the Group as our Steering Wheef. This unites the
Group’s resources around our customers, people, operations,
communities and finance. This enables the business to be
operated and monitored on a balanced basis with due regard
for all stakeholders.

Risk management The Board maintains a Key Risk Register
which we review formally twice a year, The register is populated
with risks identified through discussions principally between
the Head of internal Audit and the Board of Directors although
the views of senior management are also invited, Collectively
the Board conduct an assessment of risk severity, considering
impact and likelihood and the adequacy of mitigating
measures taker: by the business. A balanced approach allows
the degree of controliability to be taken into account when we
consider the effectiveness of mitigation, recognising that some
necessary activities carry inherent risk. Our risk management
process recognises that there are opportunities to improve

the business to be built into our future plans.

Qur key risks are set out on pages 13 to 16 of the Operating
and financial review.




This process is cascaded through the Group with every
International CEO and local Board conducting and maintaining
their own risk register and assessing their own control systems.
The same process also applies functicnally in those parts of
the Group requiring greater overview. For example, its terms of
reference require the Audit Committee to oversee the Finance
Risk Register, A further example is that of the Corporate
Respansibility Risk Register which specifically considers social,
ethical and environmentat (SEE) risks. Oversight of these risks
is the responsibility of the Corporate Responsibility Committee.
The Board incorporates SEE risks on the Key Risk Register
where they are considered material or appropriate.

With reference to the ABI guidelines on social responsibility,
we confirm that the Board takes regular account of the
significance of SEE matters. We recognise that certain
stakeholders take a keen interest in how companies

manage SEE matters and so we report more detail on our
policies and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) in our
Annual Corporate Responsibility Review and on our website
{www.tesco.comicorporate). To provide further assurance, the
Corporate Responsibility KP!s are audited on a regular basis
by Internal Audit.

Internal controls Accountability for managing risk at an
operational level sits with management. We have a Group-wide
process for establishing clearly the risks and responsibilities
assigned to each level of management and the expected
controls required to be operated and monitored.

The CEQs of subsidiary businesses are required to certify by
way of annual statements of assurance that the Board’s
governance policies have been adopted in practice and in
spirit. For certain joint ventures, the Board places reliance upon
the systems of internal control operating within our partners’
infrastructure and the obligations upon partners’ Boards
relating to the effectiveness of their own systems.

Monitoring The Board oversees the monitoying system and
has set specific responsibilities for itself and Board or Executive
Committees as set out below. The Audit, Finance, Compliance
and Corporate Responsibility Committees’ reports are
distributed to the Board and a formal discussion on each is
held at least once a year. These all provide assurance that the
Group is operating legally, ethically and in accordance with
approved financial and operational policies, We continue

to review how the Turnbull Guidance has been applied. In
addition, internal and external audit play key roles in the
monitoring process.

« Audit Committee Annually, the Audit Committee reports
to the Board on its review of the effectiveness of the
internal controf systems for the accounting year and the
period to the date of approval of the financial statements.
Throughout the year the Committee also receives regular
reports from the internal and external auditors and has
dialogue with senior managers on their control
responsibilities.

It should be understood that such systems are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material mis-statement or loss.

« Internal Audit The Internal Audit department is fully
independent of business aperations and has a Group-wide
mandate. It operates a risk-based methodology, ensuring
that the Group’s key risks receive appropriate regular
examination. Its responsibilities also include maintaining
the Key Risk Register and facifitating risk management
and internal control with the Board, Audit Committee
and senior management throughout the Group. Internal
Audit facilitates oversight of risk and control systems of
Group companies through a number of risk committees
established on either a geographic or business basis.

The Head of Internal Audit also attends all Audit
Committee meetings.

« External Audit PricewaterhouseCoopers LLF, the
Company’s external auditors, contribute a further
independent perspective on certain aspects of the internal
financial contro! system arising from their work, and report
to both the Board and the Audit Committee.

The engagement and independence of external auditors
is considered annually by the Audit Committee before they
recommend their selection to the Board. The Committee
has satisfied itself that PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are
independent and there are adequate controls in place to
safequard their objectivity. Such measures include the
requirement to rotate audit partners every five years. We
have a non-audit services policy which sets out criteria for
employing external auditors and identifies areas where

it is inappropriate for PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to work.

Non-audit setvices work carried out by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is predominantly transaction
work and corporate tax services, PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP also follow their own ethical guidelines and continually
review their audit team to ensure their independence is not
compromised.

* Finance Committee Membership of the Finance
Committee includes Non-executive Directors with relevant
financial expertise, Executive Directors and members of
senior management. The Committee usually meets twice a
year and its role is to review and agree the Finance plan on
an annual basis, to review reports of the Treasury function
and to review and approve Treasury limits and delegations.

+ Compliance Committee Membership of the Compliance
Committee includes two Executive Directors, the Company
Secretary and members of senior management. It normally
meets six times a year and its remit is to ensure that the
Group complies with all necessary laws and regulations in
all of its operations world-wide, The Committee has
established a schedule for the regular review of operational
activities and legal exposure and it formulates and
rmonitors the implementation of, and compliance with,
appropriate policies.

Every International business in the Group also has a local
Compliance Committee designed to ensure compliance
with their local laws and regulations.

Tesco plc
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Corporate governance continued

Specialist functions such as the Corporate and Legal
Affairs department and the Trading Law and Technical
department provide assurance and advice on legal
compliance, health and safety, and SEE matters. These
functions repart on their work on a regular basis and
escalate matters as appropriate.

« Corporate Responsibility Committee The Committee
is chaired by the Company Secretary and membership
is made up of senior managers from across the business.
It meets at Jeast four times a year to support, develop
and monitor policies an SEE issues, reviewing threats and
opportunities for the Group. We have, this year, decided to
monitor our corporate responsibility work and KPls under
a specific ‘Cammunity’ segrment on our Steering Wheel.
The Board formally discussed the work of the Committee
twice in the last year. The Executive Committee regularly
discusses SEE matters.

s Management In our fast moving business, trading is
tracked on a daily and weekly basis, financial performance
is reviewed weekly and menthly, and the Steering Wheel is
reviewed quarterly. All key businesses in the Group operate
a Steering Wheel and report against target KPIs on a
quarterly basis enabling managerment to measure
performance.

All major initiatives require business cases, normally
covering a minimum period of five years. Post-investment
appraisals, carried out by management, determineg the
reasons for any significant variance from expected
performance.

Relations with stakeholders

Listening and engaging helps us fully understand the issues
that are impartant to our stakeholders. We learn from their
experience, identify new risks and opportunities and ensure
that our long-term strategy is sustainable. We might not be
able to satisfy all stakeholder cancerns all the time but through
engagement we can do our best to balance competing
demands. We know that customers need to be able to trust
our business and they will only trust us if we do the right thing
by all our stakeholders. Qur programme of engaging with
stakeholders, including customers, staff, suppliers, investors,
non-governmental organisations and others is set outin more
detail in the Corporate Responsibility Review and on our
website. We carry out external research to help us understand
how well we are communicating with these groups.
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We are committed to maintaining a good dialogue with
shareholders through proactively organising meetings and
presentations as well as responding to a wide range of
enquiries. We seek shareholder views on a range of issues from
strateqy to corporate governance and discuss SEE issues with
the socially responsible investment community. We recognise
the importance of communicating appropriately any significant
Company developments. This shareholder communication is
mainly co-ordinated by the Investor Relations department.
During the year, the Graup met with 78 of its leading
shareholders representing over 45% of the issued shares of
the Company. To complement this programme, the Chairman
meets with major shareholders independently from the
Executive team. Shareholders are also offered the opportunity
to meet with the Senior Independent Non-executive Director.
The Board is kept informed of the views of shareholders
through regular updates.

Inevitably institutional sharehclders may be in more regular
contact with the Group than others, but care is exercised to
ensure that any price-sensitive information is released to all
shareholders, institutional and private, at the same time in
accardance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

We regard the AGM as an excellent opportunity to
communicate directly with all shareholders. The whole Board
attends the meeting and are available to answer questions
from sharehalders present. [n arder to encourage shareholder
participation, in line with the Myners recommendations, we
offer electronic proxy voting and voting through the CREST
electronic proxy appointment service, At our AGM last year,

all resolutions were voted by way of electronic poll. We will be
using electronic polling again this year as it is a more efficient
and fairer process, ensuring that each vote represents the
number of shares held.

Every shareholder may choose to receive a full Annual Report
and Financial Statements or the Annual Review and Summary
Financial Staterment. At the half-year, all shareholders receive
an Interim Report. These reports, together with publicly-made
trading statements, are available on the Group’s website,
www.tesco.com/icorporateinfo

Compliance

The Board considers that Tesco PLC complied in all respects
with the 2003 Revised Combined Code on Corporate
Governance for the year ended 25 February 2006.




Directors’ remuneration report yearended 25 February 2006

This is the report of the Remuneration Committee on behalf
of the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee (the Committee) is governed
by farmal Terms of Reference. They are reviewed annually and
are available from the Company Secretary or can be viewed
at www.tesco.com

Composition of the Committee

The Committee is composed entirely of independent
Non-executive Directors. The members of the Committee

are Mr C LAllen (Chairman of the Committee), Mrs K Cook
{(appointed on 10 October 2005), MrE M Davies,

Dr H Einsmann, and Mr R F Chase. No member of the
Remuneration Committee has any personal financial interest in
the matters being decided, other than as a shareholder and no
day-to-day invelvement in running the business of Tesco PLC.

Miss L Neville-Rolfe is Secretary to the Committee and attends
meetings. Mr D E Reid, Non-executive Chairman and Sir Tetrry
Leahy, Chief Executive of the Group, both attend the meetings
at the invitation of the Committee except when their own
remuneration is being discussed. The Committee is supported
by Mrs C M Chapman, Personnel Director of Tesco Stores Ltd
and has continued to use the services of Delitte & Touche LLP
as an external, independent advisor. Deloitte & Touche LLP
also provided advisory services in respect of share schemes,
pensions and taxation to the Group during the year. Members’
attendance at Committee meetings is listed in the Directors'
Corporate Governance report on page 22.

The role of the Committee
The Remuneration Committee’s key objectives are to:
« determine and recornmend to the Board the remuneration
policy for the Chairman and Executive Directors;
« monitor the level and structure of remuneration for senior
management; and

+ ensure the level and structure of remuneration is designed
tao attract, retain, and motivate the Executive Directors
needed to run the Company.

Activities of the Committee

The Committee normally meets three times a year and
circulates minutes of its meetings to the Board. The rolling
schedule for the Committee includes: a review of overall
remuneration arrangements; an overview of best practice;
Executive and Non-executive Directors’ salary and totai
remuneration benchmarking; consideration of the relationship
of reward between Executive Directors and senior managers;
determining the level of awards and grants to be made under the
Group incentive plans; agreeing targets for next year; considering
feedback from shareholders; and an annual review of its own
effectiveness. In addition to the routine business, this year the
Committee also completed a review of pension provisions.

Executive Directors’ remuneration policy

The Company has a long-standing policy of rewarding talent
and experience, We also seek to provide incentives for
delivering high growth and high returns for shareholders.

The Committee believes that a significant proportion of total
remuneration should be performance-related and at risk of
forfeiture. In addition, performance-related reward should

be delivered largely in shares to closely align the interests

of shareholders and Executive Directors. In determining

the balance between the fixed and variable elements of the
Executive Directors' remuneration packages, the Committee
has regard to policy and also market practice. Our current
policy is for performance-related elements to form a major part
of the total remuneration opportunity for Executive Directors.
The table below shows the balance of fixed and performance-
related elements for different levels of performance.

The remuneration strategy for Executive Directors and other key
executives is tailored to reward the delivery of strong year-on-
year earnings growth as welk as sustained performance in the
longer term. Long-term performance is rewarded through
delivery of shares and short-term performance through a
combination of cash and an element of compulsory deferred
shares. This ensures continued emphasis on strong annual
performance combined with long-term executive share
ownership, providing a better link between the incentives
received and shareholder value delivered,
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

We remain committed to driving strong financial perfermance
and during the year the Committee reviewed the level of
reward and emphasis on performance. The review tock into
account the international nature of the business and the need
to incentivise Executive Directors to continue to drive forward
future growth and international expansion plans. It also
considered the high regard in which the Tesco management
team is held in the market and the concern this poses about
retaining them at a crucial time in the Group's growth. The
Committee is mindful of the need to ensure that the talented
management team is competitively rewarded to retain their
skills and experience in order to drive forward further value
growth for Tesco shareholders.

As a result the Committee made a number of changes to
ensure that the total remuneration package remains
competitive compared to the market and to increase the
overall emphasis on performance. In doing so the Committee
has maintained the balance between short-term and long-
term remuneration, but with a greater emphasis on shares.
This has been achieved by increasing the maximum that can
be earned under the deferred share element of the annual
bonus as well as providing Executive Directors with the
opportunity to earn additional shares under the Performance
Share Plan if performance exceeds the upper levels of the
Return On Capital Employed (ROCE) performance hurdles.

The Company operates in a highly competitive retail
environment. Business success depends on the talents of the
key team, but outstanding business performance comes from
tearnwork. Building and retaining that team at senior levels
within the Group is vital to success. The Committee also
ensures that the remuneration refationship between the
Executive Directors and senior executives of the Company
below this level is appropriate. In particular, any exceptional
remuneration arrangements for senior executives are advised
to the Committee.

Total remuneration

The total remuneration levels of Executive Directors are
reviewed annually by the Committee. The Committee considers
external independent remuneration surveys to ensure it has
proper regard to competitive market practice. We are conscious
of the risks involved in paying unjustified amounts and
therefore monitor carefully the basic salary and total
remuneration that each Director receives.

The total Executive Directors' remuneration package comprises
the following elements:

* base salaries determined by the responsibilities, skills
and experience of the individual against a benchmark
determined by reference to other large retailers, major FTSE
100 companies and certain Major consurner companies
operating interationally;

« annual bonuses paid part in ¢ash and part in shares with
a compulsory deferral of the share efement for three years;
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» long-term performance share plan based on a stretching
three-year ROCE target. Shares must be held for a further
12 months after vesting;

» performance-related share option awards via the Share
Option Scheme open to all senior managers,

» benefits (which comprise car benefits, chauffeurs, life
assurance, disability and health insurance, gym/leisure club
membership and staff discount); and

* pensions.

Executive Directors are also eligible to participate in the
Company’s all-employee savings related share option scheme
(SAYE), Shares in Success and Buy-As-You-Earn schemes on
the same terms as alt other UK employees.

Basic pay

Basic pay must be appropriate to attract and retain talented
individuals. It must reflect individual capability, and any
changes in responsibilities as the Company faces new
opportunities and challenges. As the Company continues

to diversify into new product areas and services, as well as
expand internationally, the Committee seeks to reflect this in
the benchmarks that are used. We aim to reflect salary levels
at the top performing retailers, the leading FTSE companies
as well as to give consideration to international competitors
in order to attract the best people and maintain excellent
performance. We also take into account pay conditions
throughout the Company in deciding annual salary increases.

Annual cash bonus and deferred annual bonus

The Company operates an annual bonus scheme based on
achievernent of stretching eamings per share (EPS) targets,
assessment of total shareholder returns (TSR) and specific
corporate objectives. The Committee sets performance targets
annually and confirms achievement of performance and awards
to be made. Executive Directors can earn up to 100% of salary
paid in cash at the end of the year and a maximum of 100%
of salary paid in shares with compulsory deferral for three

years. The share element for the 2004/05 award was delivered in
the form of nil-cost share options. The cash element is earned
through achievement of previously agreed EPS growth targets
and progress on specific corporate objectives.

It is not possible to disclose future targets for reasons of
commercial sensitivity. By way of illustration of the approach
taken on target-setting, the corporate objectives are based on
our balanced scorecard, the Steering Wheel, described in more
detail on page 22. The objectives in the ‘Finance’ segment
include increasing sales from new space, specific profit targets
for international businesses and for retailing services. The
‘Customer’ segment objectives include like-for-like sales growth
and development of the non-food business. The ‘Operations’
segment includes strategic objectives focussed on areas such
as international growth and operating safely and responsibly in
every country. The ‘People’ segment objectives relate to talent
management and capability.




For the TSR performance, the Committee considers
performance against the FTSE 100 and a comparator group
that includes Ahold, Carrefour, J Sainsbury, Metro, Morrisons,
Safeway Inc, Target and Walmart,

For 2005/06, the Executive Directors have been awarded 100%
of the annual cash bonus and 97% of the deferred shares
element of the annual bonus. This reflected the high level

of business performance as described in the Operating and
financial review, achievement of corporate objectives, and the
fact that while TSR performance over three and five years
remained very strong, performance over one year had been
slightly less strong.

Performance Share Plan

The Performance Share Plan {(PSP) provides the opportunity
to earn rewards for achieving superior long-term performance.
By ensuring a focus on long-term business success and
encouraging the Executive Directors to build up a shareholding
in the Company the plan further aligns the interests of
shareholders and Executive Directors.

Awards under the PSP can be made up to 150% of salary. In
the year ended 25 February 2006 awards were made ‘over’
Tesco PLC shares equal to 100% of salary and will vest (together
with reinvested dividends) according to the achievement of

the ROCE targets. The first 75% of the award will vest on a
straight-line basis at the end of the three-year performance
period, with 25% vesting for baseline performance and the

full 75% vesting for maximum performance against target. Any
vested shares must then be retained for a further 12 months,

The Board set out abjectives for profitable deployment of
capital in a Placing Announcement of 13 January 2004. The
2005/06 award, in respect of 75% of base salary, will vest
based on the achievernent of 11.7% ROCE (derived from
profit before interest less tax) at the end of the three-year
performance period. This reflects the five year objective of
raising post tax ROCE by up to 200 basis paints from the base
of 10.2% in the year ended February 2003.

The remaining 25% of the award will vest for superior ROCE
performance. The Committee agreed that it was appropriate
to exercise judgement on whether vesting should occur to
encourage Executives to make investment decisions in the
long-term interests of the business without being unduly
influenced by the impact on the ROCE target. When determining
whether some, or ali, of the remaining 25% of the award will
vest, the Committee will take into account a number of factors
including:

+ the level of ROCE;

» the expected ROCE for additional and existing capital
investment;

» whether capital spend is in line with strategic objectives
and balances short-term and long-term investiment
needs; and

» whether this reflects other developments in the
market place.

If the Committee exercises its judgement to allow some,

or all, of the remaining 25% of the award to vest then we will
describe in the Directors’ Remuneration Report those factors
taken into account.

Share options

Share options with a value of 200% of salary were granted to
the Executive Directors. Options are granted with an exercise
price equal to the market value at the date of grant and any
gain is therefore dependent on increasing the share price
between the date of grant and exercise. Vesting of the options
is dependent on the achievernent of performance conditions,
with the first 100% subject to the achievement of EPS growth
of at least RPI plus 9% over three years and the balance
vesting for achieving RPI plus 15%. There is no

re-testing of performance,

Share options are an important part of the incentive framework
for hundreds of senior managers within the Company. The
Committee acknowledges that some companies are moving
away from share options as a result of accounting changes and
has kept the arrangements under review for this reason. The
Committee concludes that the share option plans remain in the
best interests of shareholders as they provide a clear, simple
incentive arrangement for a large group of senior management,
including Executive Directors, and they reward increases in
absolute sharehcldervalue.

Share ownership guideline

Executive Directors are normally expected to build and
maintain a shareholding with a value at least equal to their
basic salary. New appointees will typically be allowed around
three years to establish this shareholding. Full participation
in the PSP is conditional upon this.

Summary of remuneration elements

All awards made to Executive Directors under the Annual
bonus and PSP and all aptions granted under the Executive
Share Option Scheme are subject to the satisfaction of
performance conditions. If performance is lower than the
maximum targets set, the short-term bonus and long-tetm
incentives will reduce accordingly. This year the Committee
has increased the potential level of performance pay in light
of its annual review of the packages payable in benchmark
comnpanies. It has also reviewed and revised the associated
performance conditions and considers that the proposed mix
of performanice conditions best supports the Group's business
strategy — it provides a set of comprehensive and robust
measures of management’s effort and success in creating
shareholdervalue. A sumnmary of the elements of the package
is set out in the following table.
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Part of remuneration Performance measure

Purpose

Base salary

Individual contribution to the business success

To attract and retain talented people

Earnings per share and specified
corporate objectives

Annual cash bonus
(up to 100% of salary}

Motivates year-on-year earnings growth
and delivery of business priorities

Annual deferred share element of
bonus (up to 100% of salary)

Total shareholder return, eamings per share
and specified corporate objectives

Generates focus on medium-term targets and
by incentivising share price and dividend growth
ensures alignment with shareholder interests

Performance Share Plan

{up to 150% of salary) year period

Return en capital employed over a three-

Assures a focus on long-term business success
and shareholder returns

Share options

Earnings per share relative to retail price index

Incentivises earnings growth and Executive
Director shareholding

Other elements

+ Shares In Success. The Group operates a profit sharing
scheme for UK employees (Shares in Success) for the
benefit of employees, inciuding Executive Directors. The
scheme is available to employees with at least one years
service at the year end and is recognised as a powerful
incentive and retention tool for all employees. Shares in the
Company are aflocated to participants in the scheme on a
pro-rata basis to base salary earned, up to HMRC approved
limits (currently £3,000 per annum). The amount of profit
allocated to the scheme is determined by the Board, taking
account of Company performance.

= Save as You Eam. Since 1981, the Group has operated
a HMRC approved savings-related share option scheme
(SAYE) for the benefit of employees including Executive
Directors. Under this scheme, employees save up to a limit
of £250 on a four-weekly basis via a bank/building society
with an option to buy shares in Tesco PLC at the end of a
three or five-year peried at a discount of up to 20% of the
market value, There are no performance conditions
attached to SAYE options.

e Buy As You Earn, Since January 2002, the Group has
operated the partnership shares element of a HMRC
approved share investment plan for the benefit of
employees including Executive Directors. Under this
scheme, employees save up ta a limit of £110 on a four-
weekly basis to buy shares at market value in Tesco PLC.

Pensions

The retention of key management is critical to the future
success of the business and to the growth of shareholdervalue.
The provision of post-employment benefits is central to our
ability to foster loyalty and retain experience which: is why the
Company wants to ensure that the Tesco PLC Pension Scheme
is a highly valued benefit.

All Executive Directors are members of the Tesco PLC Pension
Scheme which provides a pension of up to two-thirds of base
salary on retirement, normally at age 60, dependent on service.
The defined benefit Final Salary Scheme is now closed to

new entrants but has been replaced by a new defined benefit
pension scheme which accumulates each year based on career
average earnings.

The Remuneration Committee has considered the implications
of the new regulations that are contained within the Finance
Act 2004 and which are effective from April 2006. From that
date, for Executive Directors whose current pension benefits are
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not ‘capped’, the intention is to offer the maximum pension
that can be provided up to the Lifetime Allowance from the
approved pension scherne. The balance of their pension
entitlernent will be delivered through an unfunded unapproved
retirement benefits scheme (URBS). The intention is to ‘secure’
the URBS (SURBS) by using a fixed charge over a cash deposit
in a designated account. This will provide no greater security
than under the approved scheme. In particular, in the unlikely
event that the approved scheme were to be wound up with

a deficit, members would be no better off under the new
arrangements than those paid out of the existing approved
scheme. Under these circumstances, to ensure parity, members
of the SURBS will receive the same proportion of their total
entitlement as those in the approved scheme. By delivering
pension in this way, we expect the Income Statement and
Balance Sheet positions to be broadly cost neutral.

As part of this review the Remuneration Committee decided
that from 2005/06 cnwards, Executive Directors should pay
a contribution to their pension. For 2005/06 the level of
contribution s 2.5% of salary, with contributions increasing
progressively over the following two financial years to a total
of 7% in order to bring these in line with contribution levels
of senior management.

Further details of the pension benefits earned by the Directors
can be found on page 31.

Performance graph

The graph below highlights the Group's TSR performance
over the last five financial years, relative to the FTSE 100 index
of companies. This index has been selected to provide an
established and broad-based comparator group of retail and
non-retail companies of similar scale to Tesco.




Service agreements

The Executive Directors have service agreements with
entitiement to notice of 12 months by the Company and
six months' notice by the Executive.

If an Executive Director’s employment is terminated (other than
pursuant to the notice provisions in the service agreement or
by reason of resignation or unacceptable performance or
conduct) the Company will pay, by way of liquidated damages,
a sum calculated on the basis of basic salary and the average
annual bonus paid for the last two years. No account will be
taken of pension or any other benefit or emolument.

Termination payments will be subject to mitigation. This means
that liquidated damages amounts will be paid in instalments
to permit mitigation and earlier payment will be made based
on long service in line with Company policy which respects

and rewards loyalty. if the termination occurs within one

year of retirement, the termination payment would be

reduced accordingly.

The Committee has agreed that, in future, new appointments
of Executive Directors will normally be on a notice period of
12 months. The Committee reserves the right to vary this
period to 24 months for the initial period of appointment and
for the notice period to then revert to 12 months. The service
agreements are available to shareholders to view on request
from the Company Secretary.

Qutside appointments

The Company recognises that its Executive Directors are likely
to be invited to become Non-executive Directors of other
companies. Such Non-executive duties can broaden experience
and knowledge which can benefit Tesco PLC. Subject to
approval by the Board, Executive Directors are allowed to
accept Non-executive appointments and retain the fees
received, provided that these appointments are not likely to
lead to conflicts of interest, Executive Directors’ biographies
can be found in the Annual Review and Surmmary Financial
Statement and fees retained for any Non-executive
Directorships are set out below.

Company in which
Non-executive

Fee retained by
the Directorin

Birector Directorship held 2005706 (£'000)
Mr P A Clarke Whitbread PTc* 7.5
Mr A T Higginson British Sky Broadcasting 47
MrT JR Mason G Cap Media Ple** 32

* Appointed 1 January 2006

** Rasigned 14 March 2006

Non-executive Directors have letters of appointment setting
out their duties and the time commitment expected. The
letters are available to shareholders to view from the Company
Secretary. The Chairman meets with each Non-executive
Director separately to review individual performance. All Non-
executive Directors are subject to re-election by shareholders
every three years at the Annual General Meeting and their
appointment can be terminated by either party without notice.

Non-executive Directors received a basic fee of £50,000 plus a
fee of £5,000 per Committee for membership of the Audit and
Remuneration Committee. The Chair of the Remuneration
Committee and Chair of the Audit Committee received a
further £3,000 for their additional responsibilities.

The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors is
determined by the Chairman and the Executive Committee
after considering external market research and individual
contribution. From 1 April 2006, Non-executive Directors wil!
receive a basic fee of £55,000. For membership of the Audit
and Remuneration Committee, Non-executive Directars receive
an additiona! fee of £8,000 per committee. To reflect the
increased workload and responsibilities of chairing these
Committees, the Chair of the Remuneration Committee and
Chair of the Audit Committee receive £15,000 in addition to
their basic fee. The Senior Independent Non-executive Director,
Mr R F Chase, who is also the Deputy Chairman, received a total
fee of £100,000 this year, The Chairman and the Executive
Committee agreed to increase this fee to £110,000 from

1 April 2006,

The Remuneration Committee determines the Chairman’s
remuneration, having regard to packages awarded to
Chairmen of other companies of a similar size and complexity.
Mr D E Reid, Non-executive Chairman, received an annual fee
of £500,000 this year and has the benefit of the use of a
company car. The Chairman's fee has remained the same since
appointment in 2004. The Remureration Committee decided
to increase this fee to £540,000 from 1 April 2006.

Compliance

In carrying out its duties, the Committee gives full
consideration to best practice. The Committee is constituted
and operated throughout the period in accordance with the
principtes outlined in the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority derived from Schedule A and B of the Combined
Code. The auditor’s report set out on page 41, covers the
disclosures referred to in this report that are specified for audit
by the Financial Services Authority. This report also complies
with disclosures required by the Director Remuneration Report
Regulations 2002. Details of Directors’ emoluments and
interests, including executive and savings-related share
options, are set out on pages 30 to 38.

Mr C LAllen
Chairman of the R
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Directors’ remuneration report continued Tables 1 to 8 are audited information.

Table 1 Directors’ emoluments

Fixed emoluments

Perfarmance-related emoluments

Share Short-term
Incentive Deferred Total Total
Salary Benefits {a) Plan Short-term Shares Long-term {b) 2006 2005
£000 £000 E000 £000 £000 £Q00 £000 £000
Executive Directors
Sir Terry Leahy 1,096 97 3 1,130 1,096 557 3,979 3,194
Mr R Brasher 499 36 3 550 534 - 1,622 1,268
Mr P A Clarke 628 83 3 645 626 234 2,219 1,791
Mr AT Higginson 628 86 3 645 626 312 2,300 1,812
MrTJ R Mason 628 42 3 645 626 312 2,256 1,824
Mr D T Potts 628 45 3 645 626 272 2,219 1,792
Non-Executive Directors
Mr C LAllen 58 - - - - - 58 58
Mr R F Chase 100 - - - - - 100 100
Mrs K Cock 55 - - - - - 55 22
Mr E M Davies 60 - - - - - 60 57
Dr H Einsmann 55 - - - - - 55 55
Mr K .J Hydon 58 - - - - - 58 58
Ms C McCall (©) 53 - - - - - 53 -
Mr G F Pimfott (d) i7 - - - - - 17 73
Mr D E Reid (Chairman) 500 86 - - - - 586 539
Total 5,063 475 18 4,260 4,134 1,687 15,637 12,643

(&) Benefits are made up of car benefits, chauffeurs, disability and health insurance, staff discount and gymieisure club membership.

&)

=

The long-term performance-related emolurnents relate to the additional 12.5% enhancements allocated on long-term awards made in 2001 and short-term awards made

in 2003 under the old bonus scheme. The long-term bonus awarded on 12 October 2005 under the Performance Share Plan was awarded in the form of nil cost options.

Dretails of this award are shown in Table 6.

(© Ms C McCall was appointed on 1 March 2005, The figures in Table 1 are calculated from the date of Ms McCall's appointment.

(d} Mr G F Pimlott retired during the year.
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Table 2 Pension details of the Directors

Transfer Transfer
Age at Increase Transfer value value
25 February Totat tnerease in accrued value of total of total Increase
2006/ accrued in accrued pension of previous accrued accrued in transfer
Years of pension at pension during the column at pension at pension at value less
Company 25 rebruary during the year (net of 25 February 26 February 25 February Directors’
service 2008{a) year inflaticn) 2006 2005 2006  contributions
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Sir Terry Leahy (b} 5027 546 67 54 654 5,117 6,715 1,583
Mr R Brasher 44/19 183 48 44 367 1,025 1,554 522
Mr © A Clarke 45/31 259 31 24 213 1,874 2,365 482
Mr AT Higginson (¢) 48/8 173 33 29 294 1,318 1,806 479
Mr T J R Mason 4824 283 33 26 263 2,341 2,942 592
Mr D T Potts 48733 286 33 26 272 2,425 3,051 617
(a) The accrued pension is that which would be paid annually on retirement at 60, based on service to 25 February 2006.
{b) Sir Terry Leahy is entitled to retire at any age from 57 to 60 inclusive, with an immediate pension of two-thirds of base salary.
Part of his pension may be provided on an unfunded bass within a separate unapproved arrangemant,
) Part of Mr A T Higginson's benefits, in respect of pensionable earnings in excess of the earnings limit imposed
by the Finance Act 1989, are provided on an unfunded basis within a separate unapproved arrangement.
AR transfer values have been calculated in accardance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN11.
Table 3 Gains made on share options
Value Value
fisabl Ii
Number of shares at exercise price (pence) rea 15;00; red ‘?0%';
104.0 209.5 205.0 247.0 25%9.0 Total £000 £000
Sir Terry Leahy 248,256 (b) - - - - 248,256 496 162
Mr R Brasher - - - - - - - -
Mr P A Clarke - 77,683 {0 14,634 (2} 299,595 () - 391,912 339 707
Mr A T Higginson - - - - - - - 1,094
MrT.J R Mason - - - - - - - 895
Mr D T Potts - - - 299,595 (2} 328,185 (a) 627,780 383 846
Date exercisable 1310/98 2004103 26/6/03 26/4/04 1514/05
Market price
at exercise
Date of exercise {pence)
(2} 21.07.2005 314.25
(&} 11.10.2005 303.75
(3] 23.02.2006 324.50

The value realisable from shares acquired on exercise is the difference between the market value at exercise and the exercise price
of the option, although the shares may have been retained. The share price at 25 February 2006 was 335.50 pence. The share price
during the 52 weeks to 25 February 2006 ranged from 294.75 pence to 335.75 pence,
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Table 4 Share options held by Directors and not exercised as at 25 February 2006
Executive share option schemes (1984), (1994) and {1996} and Discretionary Share Option Ptan {2004)

Options as Options Options Cptions as Date
at 26 Feb granted exercised at25 Feb  Exercise price fram which

Date of grant 2005 in year (b} in year {¢) 2006 (pence) exercisable Expiry date

Sir Terry Leahy 13.10.1995 248,256 - 248,256 - 104.0 13101998  13.10.2005
30.09.1998 126,832 - - 126,832 164.0  30.09.2001 30.09.2008
30.11.1999 228,901 - - 228,901 1730 30112002  30.11.2009
20.04.2000 17,673 - - 17,673 2095  20.04.2003  20.04.2010
26.06.2000 780,487 - - 780,487 205.0  26.06.2003  26.06.2010
26.04.201 647,773 - - 647,773 247.0  26.04.2004  26.04.2011
15.04.2002 642,471 - - 642,471 259.0 15042005 15.04.2012
14.04.2003 939,747 - - 939,747 1975 14.04.2006 14.042013
30.04.2004 766,041 - - 766,041 253,25 30.04.2007 30.04.2014
22.04.2005 - 658,673 - 658,673 31275  22.04.2008 22.04.2015

Total 4,398,181 658,673 248,256 4,808,598

Mr R Brasher 30.09.1998 14,088 - - 14,088 164.0 30092001  30.09.2008
24.05.1999 120,220 - - 120,220 17942 24052002 24.05.2009
09.11.1999 22,039 - - 22,039 184.0  09.11.2002  09.11.2009
20.04.2000 189,546 - - 189,546 2095  20.04.2003  20.04.2010
26.06.2000 106,613 - - 106,613 205.0 26.06.2003  26.06.2010
26.04.2001 101,215 - - 101,215 2470  26.042004  26.04.20M1
15.04.2002 100,386 - - 100,386 259.0 15.04.2005 15.04.2012
14.04.2003 151,900 - - 151,900 1975 14.042006 14.04.2013
30.04.2004 296,150 - - 296,150 253.25 30.04.2007  30.04.2014
22.04.2005 - 255,795 - 255,795 31275 22.04.2008 22.04.2015

Total . 1,102,157 255,795 - 1,357,952

Mr P A Clarke 20.04.2000 77.683 - 77,683 - 209.5 20.04.2003  20.04.2010
26.06.2000 14,634 - 14,634 - 205.0 26.06,2003  26.06.2010
26.04.2001 299,595 - 299,595 - 2470 26042004  26.04.2011
15.04.2002 328,185 - - 328,185 259.0 15.04.2005  15.04.2012
14.04.2003 501,266 - - 501,266 197.5 14.04.2006 14.042013
30.04.2004 434,353 - - 434,353 253.25  30.04.2007 30.04.2014
22.04.2005 - 379,856 - 379,856 31275 22042008  22.04.2015

Total 1,655,716 379,856 391,912 1,643,660

Mr AT Higginson 26.04,2001 348,178 - - 348,178 247.0 26.04.2004  26.04.2011%
15.04.2002 358,301 - - 358,301 259.0 15.04.2005 15.04.2012
14.04.2003 523,544 - - 523,544 197.5  14.04.2006  14.04.2013
30.04.2004 434,353 - - 434,353 253.25  30.04.2007 30.04.2014
22.04.2005 - 379,856 - 379,856 3%2.75 22.04.2008 22.04.2015

Total 1,664,376 379,856 - 2,044,232
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Table 4 Share aptions held by Directors and not exercised at 25 February 2006 continued
Executive share option schemes (1984}, (1994) and (1996) and Discretionary Share Qption Ptan (2004)

Options as Options Options QOptions as Date
at 26 Feb granted exercised al 25 Feb  Exercise price from which
Date of grant 2005 inyear (b) in year {c) 2006 (pence) exercisable Expiry date
Mr T} R Masen 26.04.2001 348,178 - - 348,178 2470 26042004  26.04.2011%
15.04.2002 358,301 - - 358,301 259.0 15.04.2005 15.04.2012
14.04.2003 523544 - - 523,544 197.5  14.04.2006  14.04.2013
30.04.2004 434,353 - - 434,353 253.25 30.04.2007 30.04.2014
22.04.2005 - 379,856 - 379,856 312,75  22.04.2008  22.04.2015
Total 1,664,376 379,856 - 2,044,232
Mr D T Potts 26.04.2001 299,595 - 299,595 - 247.0  26.04.2004  26.04.2011%
15.04.2002 328,185 - 328,185 - 259.0  15.04.2005 15.04.2012
14.04.2003 501,266 - - 501,266 197.5 14042006 14042013
30.04.2004 434,353 - - 434,353 25325 30.04.2007 30.04.2014
22.04.2005 - 379,856 - 379,856 312,75 22.04.2008  22.04.2015
Total 1,563,399 379,856 627,780 1,315,475
{a) No options lapsed in the year.
(b} The vesting of these options is subject to performance conditions measured over thrae years as set out on page 27.
(¢) The market price at exercise is shown in Table 3.
Table 5 Share options held by Directors and not exercised at 25 February 2006
Savings-related share option scheme {1981)
Value Value
As at Options Options As at Exercise realisable realisable
26 Feb granted exercised 25 Feb price 2006 2005
Date of grant 2005 in year in year (c) 2006 (pence)} £000 £000
Sir Terry Leahy 26.10.2000 1,704 - 1,704 - 198.¢ 2 -
08.11.200 1,671 - - 1,671 198.0 - -
08.11.2002 2,066 - - 2,066 159.0 - -
06.11.2003 1,625 - - 1,625 195.0 - -
04.11.2004 1,424 - - 1,424 232.0 - -
02.11.2005 - 1,298 - 1,298 248.0 - -
Total 8,490 1,298 1,704 8,084 2 4
Mr R Brasher 26.10.2000 1,704 - 1,704 - 198.0 2 -
(8.11.2001 1,673 - - 1,671 198.0 - -
08.1%.2002 2,066 - - 2,066 159.0 - -
06.11.2003 1,625 - - 1,625 195.0 - -
04.11,2004 1,424 - - 1,424 232.0 - -
02.11.2005 - 1,298 - 1,298 248.0 - -
Total 8,430 1,298 1,704 8,084 2 4
Mr P A Clarke 26.10.2000 1,704 - 1,704 - 198.0 2 -
08.11.2001 1,671 - - 1,671 198.0 - -
08.11.2002 2,066 - - 2,066 159.0 - -
06.11.2003 1,625 - - 1,625 195.0 - -
04.11,2004 1,424 - - 1,424 232.0 - -
02.11.2005 - 1,298 - 1,298 248.0 - -
Total 8,490 1,298 1,704 8,084 2 4
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Table 5 Share options held by Directors and not exercised at 25 February 2006 continued

Savings-related share eption scheme (1981)

Value Value

As at Cotions Options As at Exercise realisable realisable

26 Feb granted exercised 25 Feb price 2006 2005

Date of grant 2005 inyear in year {c} 2006 {pence) £000 £'000

Mr AT Higginson 26.10.2000 1,704 - 1,704 - 198.0 2 -
08.11.2001 1,671 - - 1,671 198.0 - -

08.11.2002 2,066 - - 2,066 159.0 - -

06.11.2003 1,625 - - 1,625 195.0 - -

04.11.2004 1,424 - - 1,424 232.0 - -

02.11.2005 - 1,298 - 1,298 248.0 - -

Total 8,490 1,298 1,704 8,084 2 4
MrTJR Mason 26.10.2000 1,704 - 1,704 - 198.0 2 -
08.11.200% 1,003 - - 1,003 198.0 - -

08.11.2002 2,066 - - 2,066 159.0 - -

06.11.2003 1,625 - - 1,625 195.0 - -

04,11.2004 1,424 - - 1,424 232.0 - -

02.11.2005 - 1,298 - 1,298 2480 - -

Total 7,822 1,298 1,704 7,416 2 4
Mr D T Potts 26.10.2000 1,704 - 1,704 - 198.0 2 -
08.11.2001 1,671 - - 1,671 198.0 - -

08.11.2002 2,066 - - 2,066 159.0 - -

06.11.2003 1,625 - - 1,625 195.0 - -

04.11.2004 1,424 - - 1,424 232.0 - -

02.11.2005 - 1,298 - 1,298 2480 - -

Total 8,490 1,298 1,704 8,084 2 -

{a) Save as you earn options are not subject to performance conditions.

(b) All options are exercisable from 1 February in the year which is six years from the year of grant.

Al options expire six months from their exercise date, i.e. on 1 August of the relevant year.

{c) MrAT Higginson exercised options on 8 February 2006 at a market price of 327 pence.
All other Directors exercised options on 1 February 2006 at a market price of 315 pence.

(d) No options lapsed in the year.
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Table 6 Share options held by Directors and not exercised at 25 February 2006
Perfarmance Share Plan 2004

As at As at Date
26 Feb Options 25 Feb from which

Date of grant 2005 granted (a) 2006 exercisable Expiry date
Sir Terry Leahy 28.07.2004 304,794 - 304,794 28.07.2008 28.07.2014
12.10.2005 - 373,245 373,245  12.07.2009 12102015

Total 304,794 373,245 678,039
Mr R Brasher 28.07.2004 118,367 - 118,367 28.07.2008 28.07.2014
12.10.2005 - 181,668 181,668 12.07.2009 12.10.2015

Total 118,367 181,668 300,035
Mr P A Clarke 28.07.2004 175,774 - 175,774 28072008 28.07.2014
12.10.2005 - 243,047 213,047  12.07.2009 12102015

Jotal 175,774 213,047 388,821
Mr A T Higginson 28.07.2004 175,774 - 175,774  28.07.2008 28.07.2014
12.10.2005% - 213,047 213,047  12.07.2009 12.10.2015

Total 175,774 213,047 388,821
MrT J R Mason 28.07.2004 175,774 - 175,774  28.07.2008  28.07.2014
12.10.2005 - 213,047 213,047  12.07.2009  12.10.2015

175,774 213,047 388,821
Mr D T Potts 28.07.2004 175,774 - 175,774  28.07.2008  28.07.2014
12,10.2005 - 213,047 213,047  12.07.2009  12.10.2015

Total 175,774 213,047 388,821

{a) The options granted are nil cost options, The share price on award was 253.45 pence for the 2004 award and 302.75 pence for the 2005 awarnd,
The vesting of these options are subject to performance conditions based on ROCE targets measured over three years.

{b) No options lapsed in the year.
(c) No options were exercised in the year.

Table 7 Share options held by Directors and not exercised at 25 February 2006

Executive Incentive Plan 2004

As at As at Date

26 Feb Options 25 Feb frorm which
Date of grant 2005 granted (a) 2006 exercisable Expiry date
Sir Terry Leahy 20.05.2005 - 250,626 250,626 20.05.2008 20.05.2015

Mr R Brasher 20.05.2005 - 97,330 97,330  20.05.2008 20.05.2015 !

Mr P A Clarke 20.05.2005 - 144,536 144,536  20.05.2008  20.05.2015
Mr AT Higginson 20.05.2005 - 144,536 144536  20.05.2008 20.05.2015
Mr T J R Mason 20.05.2005 - 144,536 144,536 20052008 20.05.2015
Mr D T Potts 20.05.200% - 144,536 144,536  20.05.2008  20.05.2015

{(a) The options granted are nil cost options. The share price on award was 311.¢ pence. The number of shares under option was increased at the time of the interim dividend
10 reflect dividend equivatents in lieu of the interim dividend, at a market price of 312.5 pence.

(b No options lapsed in the year.
(c) No options were exercised in the year.
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Table 8 Directors’ interests in the long-term incentive plan

No of shares Shares Shares No of shares Value Market price

Year of Award at 26 Feb awarded released at 25 Feb released Release on release
Name release date 2005 during year during year 2006 £000 date {pence}
Sir Terry Leahy 2006 16.04.99 110,210 16,763 127,673 - 416 16.02.06 325.75
2006 11.04.01 135,925 20,542 156,467 - 510 16.02.06 325.75

2006 10.04.02 236,907 5,952 - 242,859 - 10.04.06 -

2006 04.05.04 442,170 11,109 - 453,279 - 04.05,06 -

2007 08.05.00 105,783 15,988 - 121,774 - 08.05.07 -

2007 10.04.02 402,016 60,761 - 462,777 - 10.04.07 -

2007 09.04.03 338,796 8,512 - 347,508 - 09.04.07 -

2008 11.04.01 153,755 23,238 - 176,993 - 11.04.08 —

2008 09.04.03 538,087 81,326 - 619,413 - 09,04.08 -

2008 04.05.04 294,780 7,406 - 302,186 - 04.05.08 -

Mr R Brasher (b} 2005 08.05.01 23,740 - 23,740 - 74 12.05.05 309.88
2005 14.05,03 48,967 - 48,967 - 152 12.05.05 309.88

2006 07.05.02 25,550 629 26,179 - 85 16.02.06 32575

2006 27.05.04 56,631 1,422 58,053 - 189 16.02.06 325.75

2007 14.05.03 32,645 819 - 33,464 - 14.05.07 -

2008 27.05.04 37,754 948 - 38,702 - 14.05.07 -

Mr P A Clarke 2006 10.04.02 121,015 3,039 - 124,054 - 10.04.06 -
2006 04.05.04 250,714 6,298 - 257,012 - 04.05.06 -

2007 08.05.00 43,481 6,570 - 50,051 - 08.05.07 -

2007 10.04.02 205,554 31,035 - 236,589 - 10.04.07 -

2007 09.04.03 180,714 4,540 - 185,254 - 09.04.07 -

2008 11.04.01 71,10 10,747 - 81,857 - 11.04,08 -

2008 09.04.03 287,016 43,379 - 330,395 - 09.04.08 -

2008 (4.05.04 167,143 4,199 - 171,342 - 04,05.08 -

Mr A T Higginson 2006 16.04.99 69,266 10,468 79,734 - 260 16.02.06 325.75
2006 11.04.01 73,058 11,041 84,099 - 274 16.02.06 32575

2006 10.04.02 132,120 3,319 - 135,439 - 10.04.06 -

2006 04.05.04 250,754 6,298 - 257,012 - 04.05.06 -

2007 08.05.00 61,505 9,295 - 70,600 - 08.05.07 -

2007 10.04.02 224,199 33,885 - 258,084 - 10.04.07 -

2007 09.04.03 188,747 4,742 - 193,489 - 09.04.07 -

2008 11.04.01 82,643 12,490 - 95,133 - 11.04.08 -

2608 09.04.03 289,773 45307 - 345,080 - 09.04.08 -

2008 04.05.04 167,143 4,199 - 171,342 - 04.05.08 -
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Table 8 Directors’ interests in the long-term incentive plan continved

Mo of shares Shares Shares No of shares Value Market price

Year of Award at 26 Feb awarded released at 25 Feb released Release on release
Name release date 2005 during year during year 2006 £000 date (pence)
MrT J R Mason 2006 16.04.99 68,296 10,322 78,618 - 256 16.02.06 325.75
2006 11.04.01 73,058 11,041 84,099 - 274 16.02.06 325.75

2006 10.04.02 132,120 3,319 - 135,439 - 10.04.06 -

2006 04.05.04 250,714 6,298 - 257,012 - 04.05.06 -

2007 08.05.00 61,505 9,295 - 70,800 - 08.05.07 -

2007 10.04.02 224,199 33,885 - 258,084 - 10.04,07 -

2007 09.04.03 188,747 4,742 - 193,489 - 09.04.07 -

2008 11.04.01 82,643 12,490 - 95,133 - 11.04.08 -

2008 09.04.03 299,773 45,307 - 345,080 - 09.04.08 -

2008 04.05.04 167,143 4,199 - 171,342 - 04,05.08 -

Mr D T Potts 2006 16.04.99 34,101 5,153 39,254 - 128 16.02.06 325.75
2006 11.04.01 62,859 9,500 72,559 - 236 16.02.06 32575

2006 10.04,02 121,015 3,039 - 124,054 - 10.04.06 -

2006 04.05.04 250,714 6,298 - 257,012 - 04.05.06 -

2007 08.05.00 47,432 7,168 - 54,600 - 08.05.07 -

2007 10.04.02 205,354 31,035 - 236,389 - 10.04.07 -

2007 09.04.03 180,714 4,540 - 185,254 - 09.04.07 -

2008 11.04.01 71,110 10,747 - 81,857 - 11.04.08 -

2008 09.04.03 287,016 43,379 - 330,395 - (9.04.08 -

2008 04.05.04 167,143 4,199 - 171,342 - 04.05.08 -

(3) The last awards under this Plan were made in May 2004. Long-Term awards from 2002 ave classed as four-year cycles and Short-Term awards from 2004 are classed as twe-
year cycles as n¢ election for enhancement is possible yet. Long-Term awards can be enhanced from the 4th year, extending the cycle 10 seven years. Short-Term awards can
be enhanced from the 2nd year, extending the cycle to five years.

{b} Bonus shares shown for Mr R Brasher were awarded before he joined the Board, under the senior management scheme, and cannot be retained for an additional three year
period and enhanced.

Date of award 16.04.99 8.05.00 11.04.01 8.05.01 10.04.02 7.05.02 9.04,03 14.05.03 4.05.04 27.05.04
Award price {pence) 168.83 174.00 259.25 24750 243.00 261.50 197.25 202.88 248.75 249,88
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Directors’ remuneration report continued Table 9 is unaudited information
p

Table 8 Disclosable interests of the Directors, including family interests

25 Feb 2006 26 Feb 2005
or on retirement if earlier or on retirerent if eatlier
Outiuns_to Cptiens to
acquire acquire
Ordinary ordinary Ordinary ordinary
shares {a} shares {b} shares {a) shares [5)
Executive Directors

Sir Terry Leahy 6,073,840 5,745,347 5,754,819 4,711,465
Mr R Brasher 226,814 1,763,401 282,264 1,229,014
Mr P A Clarke 1,447,286 2,185,101 1,428,082 1,839,980
Mr A T Higginson 1,649,690 2,585,673 1,573,861 1,848,640
MrT J R Mason 1,627,031 2,585,005 1,756,715 1,847,972
Mr D T Potts 1,791,777 1,856,916 1,702,441 1,747,663

Non-Executive Directors
Mr C LAllen - - - -
Mr R F Chase 51,662 - 56,396 -
Mrs K Cock - - - -
Mr £ M Davies 2,400 - 2,400 -
Br H Einsmann 158,673 - 92,150 -
Mr K 4 Hydon 30,093 ~ 30,093 -
Ms € McCall 6,365 ~ - -
Mr G F Pimlott () 34,212 - 34,212 -
Mr D € Reid (Chairmar 193,264 ~ 193,014 -

{a) Ordinary shares shown in this table include shares held as part of incentive plans shows in Table 8. Between 25 February 2006 2nd 24 April 2006, 402 shares were

purchased by Executive Directors as part of the BAYE scheme.

{b) Options to acquire ordinary shares shown above comprise options under the executive share option schernes, options under the savings-related share option scheme

¢{1981] and nit cost options under the PSP and Executive Incentive Plan.
(c) Balance for Mr G F Pimlatt shown as 3t retirement date.
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Directors’ responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements

The Directors are required by the Companies Act 1985 to
prepare financial statements for each finarcial year which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit
or loss of the Group for the financial year. Under that law

the Directors are required to prepare the Group financial
staternents in accordance with IFRSs as endorsed by the
European Union (EU) and have elected to prepare the
Company financial statements in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards.

In preparing each of the Group and Company financial
staterments, the Directors are required to:
+ select suitable accounting policies and apply them
consistently;
+ make reasenable and prudent judgements and estimates;
» forthe Group financial statements, state whether they have

been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as endorsed
by the EU;

« for the Company financial statements state whether
applicable UX Accounting Standards have been followed.

40 Tesco plc

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time,
the financial position of the Company and Group and which
enable themn to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985.

The Directots are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the Annual Review and Summary Financial Statement and
Annual Report and Financial Statements published on the
Group's carporate website. Legislation in the UK concerning the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other junsdictions,

The Directors have general respensibility for taking such steps
as are reasonably open to them to safequard the assets of the
Group and of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irreqularities.




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Tesco PLC

We have audited the Group financial statements of Tesco PLC
for the year ended 25 February 2006 which comprise the Group
Income Statement, the Group Balance Sheet, the Group Cash
Flow Statement, the Group Statement of Recognised income
and Expense and the related notes. These Group financial
statermnents have been prepared under the accounting policies
set out therein.

We have reported separately on the parent company financial
statements of Tesco PLC for the year ended 25 February 2006
and on the information in the Directors’ remuneration report

that is described as having been audited.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report
and the Group financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(FRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union are set cut in the
Statement of Diractors’ responsibilities.

Qur responsibility is to audit the Group financial staternents

in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This
report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only
for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with
Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no ather
purpose. We do net, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or inte whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to yau our opinion as to whether the Group financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the Group
financial staternents have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the
Directors’ report is not consistent with the Group financial
statements, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration and

other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement
reflects the company’s compliance with the nine provisions of
the 2003 FRC Combined Code specified for our review by the
Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report
if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the
Board’s statements on intemal control cover alt risks and
controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and
control procedures,

We read other information contained in the annual report

and considerwhether it is consistent with the audited Group
financial statements. The other information comprises only
the Operating and financial review, the Directors’ report,

the Corporate governance statement and the unaudited
information in the Directors’ remuneration report. We consider
the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the
Group financial statements. Qur responsibilities do not extend
to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
Group financial statements. It also includes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgments made by the Directors
in the preparation of the Group financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the Group financial statements are
free from rmaterial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the Group financial statements.

Opinion
n our opinion:
* the Group financial staternents give a true and fairview, in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurepean Union,
of the state of the Group’ affairs as at 25 February 2006
and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended;
and

+ the Group financia! statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985

and Arficle 4 of the IAS Regulation. )
ki Cripars
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
London 24 April 2006
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GI'OUp income statement vearended 25 February 2006*

2006* 2005
notes £m Em
Continuing operations
Revenue (Sales excluding VAT) 7 39,454 33,866
Cost of sales (36,426) (31,231
Gross profit 3,028 2,635
Administrative expenses (825} (732)
Profit arising on property-related items 23 77 49
Operating profit z 2,280 1,952
Share of post-tax profits of Joint ventures and Associates 13 82 74
Finance income 5 114 103
Finance costs 5 241) (235)
Profit before tax 3 2,235 1,894
Taxation 6 (649} (541)
Profit for the period from continuing operations 1,586 1,353
Discontinuing operation
Loss for the period from discontinuing cperation 7 (10) {6}
Profit for the year 1,576 1,347
Attributable to:
Equity heiders of the parent 1,570 1,344
Minority interests 6 3
1,576 1,347
Earnings per share from continuing and discontinuing aperations
Basic ] 20.07p 17.44p
Diluted 9 19.79p 17.22p
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic 9 20.20p 17.52p
Diluted 9 19.92p 17.30p

* Results for the year ended 25 February 2006 include 52 weeks for the UK and the Republic of reland and 14 months for the majority of the remaining International businesses.
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Group statement of recognised income and expense vear ended 25 February 2006*

2006 2005
notes £m £m
Gains on revaluation of available-for-sale investments 14 2 -
Foreign currency translation differences 25 11
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes 23 (442) (230)
Gainsf(losses) on cash flow hedges:
— net fairvalue gains 44 _
— reclassified and reported in the Income Statement (5) -
Tax on items taken directly to equity 5 133 92
Net expense recognised directly in equity (243) (112N
Profit for the period 1,576 1,347
Total recognised income and expense for the period 1,333 1,220
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1,327 1,217
Minority interasts 6 3
1,333 1,220
Effect of changes in accounting policy (adoptien of IAS 32 and 1AS 39): 33
Equity holders of the parent (314)
Minority interests _
(314)

* Results for the year ended 25 February 2006 include 52 weeks for the UK and the Republic of Ireland and 14 months for the majority of the remaining International businesses.

,
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Group balance sheet 25 rebruary 2006

2006 2005
notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangible assets 10 1,525 1,408
Property, plant and equipment 1 15,882 14,521
Investment property 12 745 565
Investments in Joint ventures and Associates 13 476 416
Other investments 1 4 7
Deferred tax assets 3 12 14
18,644 16,931
Current assets
Inventories 15 1,464 1,309
Trade and other receivables % 892 769
Derivative financial instruments 20 70 -
Cash and cash equivalents 17 1,325 1,146
3,751 3,224
Non-current assets classified as held for sale and assets of the disposal group 7 168 -
3,919 3,224
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 (5,083) (4,974)
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 19 {1,646) (482)
— Derivative financial instruments 0 (239} —
Current tax liabilities (462) 221}
Provisions 2 (2} (3}
(7,432} (5,680}
Liabilities directly associated with the disposal group 7 {86) -
(7,518) (5,680)
Net current liabilities (3,599) (2,456)
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
— Borrowings 19 (3,742) (4,563)
— Derivative financial instruments and other liabilities 20 (294) -
Post-employment benefit obligations 3 {1,211) {735)
Other non-current liabilities 18 (29) 21
Deferred tax liabilities 6 (3200 {496)
Provisions 21 (5 (6}
(5,601) {5,821)
Net assets 9,444 8,654
Equity
Share capital 24025 395 389
Share premium account 25 3,988 3,704
Other reserves 25 40 40
Retained earnings 5 4,957 4,470
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 9,280 8,603
Minority interests 25 64 51
Total equity 9,444 8,654

Terry Leahy <

Andrew Higginson
Directors
The financial statements on pag

0 101 were authorised for issue by the Directors on 24 April 2006.
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Group cash flow statement vesr ended 25 February 2006

2006 2005
notes £m Em
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 78 3,412 3,009
Interest paid (364} (350)
Corporation tax paid (429) {483)
Net cash from operating activities 2,619 2,176
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired (54) 81}
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary, net of cash acquired - 5
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and investrnent properties (2,561) (2,197}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 664 823
Purchase of intangible assets (139) (167)
Net increase in loans to Joint ventures (16} {10
Equity investments made (34) {152)
Dividends received 82 135
Interest received 96 83
Net cash used in investing activities (1,962) (1,501
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary share capital 123 146
Repayments of borrowings (109) (18)
New finance leases - 161
Repayments of obligations under finance leases {6) (349}
Dividends paid (441) (448)
QOwin shares purchased (59} (143)
Net cash used in financing activities (492) 651)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 165 24
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,146 1,100
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 16 22
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,327 1,146
Less cash hetd in disposal group 7 () -
Cash and cash equivalents not held in disposal group 17 1,325 1,146

* Results for the year ended 25 February 2006 include 52 weeks for the UK and the Republic of Treland and 14 months for the majority of the remaining International businesses.

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

2006 2005

nates £m £m
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 165 24
Cash outflow from decrease in debt and lease financing 115 206
Loans and finance leases acquired with subsidiaries - a7n
Net debt inciuded within the disposal group 55 -
Other non-cash mavernents (357) 1
(Increase)idecrease in net debt before the impact of IAS 32 and 3% (22) 224
IAS 32 and 39 adjustments to net debt (588) -
(Increase)/decrease in net debt (610) 224
Opening net debt 29 (3,899) (4,123)
Closing net debt 29 (4,509) (3,899)

NB. This is not a primary staterment and does not form part of the cash flow statement,
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Notes to the financial statements

Note 1 Accounting policies

General information

Tesco PLC is a public limited company incorporated in the
United Kingdom under the Companies Act 1985 (Registration
number 445790). The address of the registered office is

New Tesco House, Delamare Road, Cheshunt, Hertfordshire,
EN8 95L, UK.

As described in the Operating and financial review, the main
activity of the Group is that of retailing and associated activities.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) and International Financial Reporting Interpretation
Committee (IFRIC) interpretations as endorsed by the
European Union, and those parts of the Companies Act 1985
applicable to companies reporting under IFRSs.

These are the Group’s first consolidated financial statements
prepared under IFRSs and IFRS 1 ‘First time adoption of IFRS’
has been applied. An explanation of how the transition from
UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP) to
IFRSs has affected the reported financial position, financia
performance and cash flows of the Group are provided in notes
32 and 33.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling,
rounded to the nearest million. They are prepared on the
historical cost basis modified for the revaluation of certain
financial instruments.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements and in preparing an opening IFRSs
Balance Sheet at 29 February 2004 for the purposes of
transition to IFRSs, with the exception of IAS 32* and

IAS 391 forwhich a one-year exemption has been taken,
as allowed by IFRS 1.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements ¢onsist of the financial
statements of the ultimate parent Company (Tesco PLC),
entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) and the
Group’s share of interests in joint ventures and associates.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
staternents of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to
bring the accounting policies used into line with those of
the Group.

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity whose operating and financing policies
are controlled, directly or indirectly, by Tesco PLC.

The accounts of the parent Company's subsidiary undertakings
are prepared to dates around the Group year end apart from
Tesco Taiwan Co. Limited, which for this reporting period have
been prepared to 31 December 2005. Tesco Taiwan Co. Limited
has a different year end to the Group as a result of the pending

* 'Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation’.
t ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement’.
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asset swap transaction with the Carrefour Group; keeping the
year end as 31 December will facilitate an easier integration
into the Carrefour Group.

The financiatl statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Intragroup balances and any unrealised gains and losses or
income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial staternents.

Joint ventures and Associates

Ajoint venture is an entity in which the Group holds an interest
on a long-term basis and which is jointly controlled by the Group
and one or more otherventurers under a contractual agreement.

An associate is an undertaking, not being a subsidiary or joint
venture, over which the Group has significant influence and
can participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the entity.

The Group’s share of the results of joint ventures and
associates is included in the Group Income Statement using the
equity method of accounting. Investments in joint ventures and
associates are carried in the Group Balance Sheet at cost plus
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets
of the entity, less any impairment in value. The carrying values
of investments in joint ventures and associates include acquired
goodwill.

if the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture or associate
equals or exceed its investment in the joint venture or associate,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations to do so or made payments on behalf of
the joint venture or associate.

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with joint ventures
and associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the entity.

Use of assumptions and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results rmay differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.




Note 1 Accounting policies continued

Material estimates and assurmptions are made in particular with
regard to establishing uniform depreciation and amortisation
periods for the Group, impairment testing, parameters for
measuring pension provisions, determination of the fairvalue
of obligations under put options, the likellhood that tax assets
can be realised and the classification of certain operations as
held for sale.

Following a review of useful economic lives and residual values
the estimated economic life of land premia has been revised
from 40 years to infinite. The impact on the current year
Income Statement is to reduce the annual land premia
amortisation charge from £21m to nil.

Revenue
Revenue consists of sales through retail outlets and sales of
development properties.

Revenue is recorded net of returns, vouchers and value-added
taxes, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer. Commission income is
recorded based on the terms of the contracts.

Other income

Jnterest income is recognised for the period to which it relates
on the accruals basis. Dividends are recognised when a legal
entitlement to payment arises.

Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after profit or loss from property-
related items but before the share of results of joint ventures
and associates, finance inceme and finance costs.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business that represents a separate line of business or
geographical area of operations, Classification as a
discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or earlier,

if the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held
for sale, under IFRS 5 ‘Non-current Assets held for sale’.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment assets are carried at cost less
accumulated deprediation and any recognised impairment
invalue.

Depreaciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the
anticipated usefil economic lives of the assets.
The following depreciation rates are applied for the Group:
« Freehold and leasehold buildings with greater than
40 years unexpired — at 2.5% of cost
= Leasehold properties with less than 40 years unexpired
are depreciated by equal annual instalments over the
unexpired period of the lease

« Plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings and motor vehicles —
at rates varying from 10% to 33%.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets of,
where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease.

All tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment in
accordance with 1AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’ when there are
indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of qualifying assets are capitalised. Qualifying
assets are those that necessarily take a substantial peried of
time to prepare for their intended use. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in the Income Statement in the period in which
they occur.

Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rental income
andfor for capital appreciation rather than for the purpose
of Group operating activities. Investment property assets
are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
recognised impairment in value. The depreciation policies for
Investment property are consistent with those described for
owner-occupied property.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as a lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the Group’s net investment in the lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as a lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair vatue or, if lower, at the present value
of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease. The corresponding liability is included
in the Balance Sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligations so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the rernaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged to the Income Statement,

Rentals payable under operating Jeases are charged to the
Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

Tesco plc
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 1 Accounting policies continued

Sale and leaseback

A sale and leaseback transaction is one where a vendor sells
an asset and immediately reacquires the use of that asset by
entering into a lease with the buyer. The accounting treatment
of the sale and feaseback depends upon the substance of the
transaction (by applying the lease classification principles
described above) and whether or not the sale was made at
the asset’s fairvalue.

For sale and finance leasebacks, any apparent profit or loss
from the sale is deferred and amortised over the lease term.
For sale and operating leasebacks, generally the assets are sold
at fairvalue, and accordingly the profit or loss from the sate is
recognised immediately.

Following initial recognition, the lease treatment is consistent
with those principles described above.

Business combinations and goodwill
All business combinations are accounted for by applying the
purchase method,

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities
of an acquired entity are measured at their fairvalue. The interest
of minority shareholders is stated at the minority’s proportion
of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognised.

Goodwill arising on consalidation represents the excess of the
cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary, joint venture or
assoCiate at the date of acquisition. If the cost of acquisition is
less than the fairvalue of the Group's share of the net assets
of the acquired entity (.e. a discount on acquisition) then the
difference is credited to the Income Statement in the period
of acquisition.

At the acquisition date of a subsidiary, goodwill acquired is
recognised as an asset and is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units expected to benefit from the business
combination’s synergies and to the lowest level at which
management manitars the goodwill. Goodwill arising on the
acquisition of joint ventures and associates is included within
the carrying value of the investment.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually by
assessing the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit
to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised.
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Any impairment is recognised immediately in the Income
Statement and is not subsequently reversed.

On disposal of a subsidiary, joint venture or associate, the
attributable amount of goodwilt is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before 29 February 2004

{the date of ransition to IFRSs) has been retained at the previous
UK GAAP amounts subject to being tested for impairment at
that date. Goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP prior
to 1998 has not been restated and will not be included in
determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets, such as software or pharmacy
licences, are measured initially at cost and are amortised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,

Internally-generated intangible assets ~ Research and
development expenditure
Research costs are expensed as incurred.

Development expenditure incurred on an individual project
is carried forward only if alt the criteria set out in 1AS 38
‘Intangible Assets’ are met, namely:

« an asset is created that can be identified (such as software
OF New processes);

« itis probable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits; and

« the development cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Following the initial recognition of development expenditure,
the cost is amortised over the project’s estimated usefui life,
usually at 14%-25% of cost per annum.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
excluding goodwill

At each Balance Sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does
not generate cash flows that are independent from other
assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.




Note 1 Accounting policies continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fairvalue less costs to sell,
and value in use. [n assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit}
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit} is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of the recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined if no impairment
loss had been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating
unit) in prioryears. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and properties held
for, orin the course of, development and are valued at the
lower of cost and fairvalue less costs to sell. Inventories are
valued at retail prices and reduced by appropriate margins to
take into account factors such as average cost, obsolescence,
seasonality and damage.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash
at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less,

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through sale
rather than continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the sale is highly probable and the asset {or disposal
group) is available forimmediate sale in its present condition.
Management must be committed to the sale and it should be
expected to be completed within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets {and disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Pensions and similar obligations

The Group accounts for pensions and other post-employment
benefits (principally private healthcare) under IAS19 ‘Employee
Benefits'.

In respect of defined benefit plans, obligations are measured
at discounted presentvalue (using the projected unit credit
method) whilst plan assets are recorded at fair value. The
operating and financing costs of such plans are recognised
separately in the Income Statement; service costs are spread
systematically aver the expected service lives of employees and
financing costs are recognised in the periods in which they
arise. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in
the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense as allowed
by the December 2004 amendment to 1AS 19, which has been
adopted early by the Group.

Payments to defined contribution schernes are recognised as
an expense as they fall due.

Share-based payments

Employees (including Directors) of the Group receive part of
their remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange
for shares or rights over shares (equity-settled transactions).

The fairvalue of employee share option plans is calculated at
the grant date using the Black-Scholes model. In accordance
with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payrment’, the resulting cost is
charged to the Income Staternent over the vesting period.
The value of the charge is adjusted to reflect expected and
actual levels of vesting.

Income tax
The tax expense included in the [ncome Staternent comprises
current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by
the Balance Sheet date.

Tax is recognised in the Income Staternent except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which
case it is recognised in equity.

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet liability
methed, providing for terporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Tesco plc
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 1 Accounting policies continued

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period wher the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Income
Staternent, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case deferred tax is also dealt with
in equity.

Deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits wili be
available against which deductible temporary differences

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset against each other
when they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
jurisdiction and when the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rate on the date of the transaction. At each Balance
Sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the Balance Sheet date. All differences are taken to the Income
Statemment for the period.

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated
into Pounds Steriing according to the functional currency
concept of IAS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates’. Since the majority of cansolidated companies operate as
independent entities within their local economic environment,
their respective local currency is the functional currency.
Therefore, assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the Group Balance Sheet; profits
and lpsses are translated into Pounds Sterling at average
exchange rates for the relevant accounting periods. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and
transferred ta the Group's translation reserve. Such translation
differences are recognised as income or expenses in the period
in which the operation is disposed of.

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries that report in
the currency of a hyperinflationary economy are restated in
terms of the measuring unit current at the Balance Sheet date
before they are translated into Pounds Sterling.
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Goadwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acguisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liahilities are recognised on the
Group’s Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are not interest-bearing and are stated at
their nominal value, reduced by appropriate allowances

for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

Investments

Investments are classified as either held-for-trading or
available-for-sale, and are measured at subsequent reporting
dates at fairvalue. For available-for-sale investments, gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised directly
in equity, until the security is disposed of oris determined to be
impaired; at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is included in the net profit or loss for

the period.

Financial liabilities and Equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that gives a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all
of its liabilities.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially recorded
at the value of the amount received, net of attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between cost and redemption value being
recognised in the Income Statement over the period of the
borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at their
nominal value.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.




Note 1 Accounting policies continued

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting -
Accounting policy for year ended 25 February 2006

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising
from operational, financing and investment activities. The
Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes, however if derivatives do not qualify
for hedge accounting they are accounted for as such.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative financial
instruments are stated at fairvalue. The fairvalue of derivative
financial instruments is determined by reference to market
values for similar financial instruments, or by discounted

cash flows ar by the use of option valuation models. Where
derivatives do net qualify for hedge accounting, any gains
orlosses on remeasurement are immediately recognised in
the Income Statement. Where derivatives qualify for hedge
accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship and the item being
hedged. To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship
rmust be documented and tested for effectiveness.

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group is required
to document from inception the relationship between the

item being hedged and the hedaging instrument. The Group

is also required to document and demonstrate an assessment
of the relationship between the hedged itern and the

hedging instrument, which shows that the hedge will be highly
effective on an ongoing basis, This effectiveness testing is
perfarmed at each period end to ensure that the hedge
rermnains highly effective.

Fair value hedging

Derivative financial instruments are classified as fairvalue
hedges when they hedge the Group's exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability. Any gain or
loss from remeasuring the hedging instrument is recognised
immediately in the Income Statement. Any change in the fair
value of the hedged itern, attributable to the hedged risk, is
adjusted against the carrying value of the hedged item and
recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

Derivative financial instruments qualifying for fairvalue hedge
accounting are principally interest rate swaps.

Cash flow hedging

Derivative financial instruments are classified as cash flow
hedges when they hedge the Group’s exposure to variability
in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk
associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecasted transaction,

The effective element of any gain or loss from remeasuring the
derivative instrument is recognised directly in equity.

The associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity
and recognised in the Income Statement in the same period or
periods during which the hedged transaction affects the Income
Statement. Any eternent of the remeasurement of the derivative
instrument which does not meet the criteria for an effective
hedge is recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

Derivative instruments qualifying for cash flow hedging
are principally forward foreign exchange transactions and
currency options.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging
instrurnent expires oris sold, terminated or exercised, or no
longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that point in time, any
cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised
in equity is retained in equity until the forecasted transaction
occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
transferred to the Income Statement.

Net investment hedging

Derivative financial instruments are classified as net investment
hedges when they hedge the Group’s net investment in an
overseas operation. The effective element of any gain or loss
from remeasuring the derivative is recognised directly in equity.
Any ineffective element is recognised immediately in the
Income Statement. Gains and losses accumulated in equity are
included in the Income Statement when the foreign operation
is disposed of.

Derivative instruments qualifying for net investment hedging
are principally forward foreign exchange transactions.

Derivative financial instruments — Accounting policy for year
ended 26 February 2005

Derivative instruments utilised by the Group are interest rate
swaps, floors and caps, forward start interest rate swaps,

cross currency swaps, forward rate agreements and forward
exchange contracts and options. Termination payments made
or received in respect of derivatives are spread over the life

of the underlying exposure in cases where the underlying
exposure continues to exist. Where the underlying exposure
ceases to exist, any termination payments are taken to the
Income Statement.
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Note 1 Accounting policies continved

Interest differentials on derivative instrurnents are recognised
by adjusting net finance costs. Premia or discount on derivative
instruments is amortised over the shorter of the life of the
instrument or the underlying exposure.

Currency swap agreements are valued at closing rates of
exchange. Forward exchange contracts are valued at
discounted closing forward rates of exchange. Resulting gains
orlosses are offset against foreign exchange gains or losses
on the refated borrowings or, where the instrument is used to
hedge a committed future transaction, are deferred until the
transaction occurs or is extinguished.

Treatment of put option on minority interest

The Group has an agreement with the Samsung Corporation
to purchase the remaining shares of Samsung Tesco Co. Ltd.
These shares are expected to be purchased in three tranches
in 2007, 2011 and 2012, The purchase price will reflect the
market value of these shares at the date of acquisition.

Under IAS 32, the net present value of the expected future
payments are shown as a financial liability. At the end of

each period, the valuation of the liability is reassessed with
any changes racognised in the profit or loss for the period.

Provisions

Provisions for oneraus leases are recognised when the Group
believes that the unavoidable costs of meeting the lease
obligations exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received under the lease.

IFRSs transitional arrangements and early adoption

The rules for first-time adoption of IFRSs are set outin IFRS 1,
which requires that the Group establishes its IFRS accounting
policies for the 2005/06 reporting date and, in general, apply
these retrospectively.

The standard allows a number of optional exemptions on
transition to help companies simplify the move to IFRSs.
The exemptions selected by the Group are set out below:

Business Combinations (IFRS 3}

The Group has elected to apply IFRS 3 prospectively from
the date of transition to IFRSs rather than to restate previous
business combinations.

Employee Benefits (JAS 19) — Actuarial gains and losses

on defined benefit pension schemes

The Group has chosen to recagnise all cumulative actuarial
gains and losses in respect of employee defined benefit plans
in fulk through reserves at the date of transition to IFRSs. Post-
transition, the Group is applying the rules of the amendment
to lAS 19, recognising actuarial gains and losses immediately
in the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense.
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Cumulative translation differences (JAS 21)

Cumulative foreign exchange movements on translation of
foreign entities on consolidation have been set to nil as at
29 February 2004.

Financial Instruments (IAS 32 and IAS 39)

The Group opted to take advantage of the one-year exemption
for implementation of the Financial Instruments standards.
Therefore, for the 2004/05 comparatives, financial instruments
continue to be accounted for and presented in accordance with
UK GAAP. For 2005/06 financial reporting, adjustments have
been made as at 27 February 2005 to reflect the differences
between UK GAAP and IAS 32 and IAS 39 {(note 33).

Recent accounting developments

IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ and amendments
to I1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements — Capital
Disclosures’ were issued in August 2005 and are effective for
accounting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2007,
These amendments revise and enhance previous disclosures
required by IAS 32 and IAS 30 ‘Discosures in the Financial
Statements of Banks and Similar Financial Institutions’. These
changes are not expected to have a material effect on the
results and net assets of the Group.

Other standards, amendments and interpretations not
expected to have a significant effect on the Group include:
IFRS 6 ‘Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources’,
amendrment to I1AS 39 ‘Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast
intragroup transactions’, amendment to [FRS 1, amendment
to IAS 39 and IFRS 4 ‘Insurance contracts’, IFRIC 5 ‘Rights

to interests arising from decormissioning, restoration and
environmental rehabilitation funds’ and IFRIC 7 ‘Applying the
restatement approach under IAS 29 ‘Hyperinflationary
accounting'.

Standards, amendments and interpretations still under review
as to their effect on the Group include: Amendment to 1AS 21
‘The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates: net
investment in a foreign operation’, IFRIC 4 '‘Determining
whether an atrrangement contains a lease’, IFRIC 6 ‘Liabilities
arising from participating in a specific market —waste electrical
and electronic equipment’, IFRIC 8 'Scope of IFRS 2' and
IFRIC 9 ‘Re-assessment of embedded derivatives’.




Note 2 Segmental reporting

The Board has determined that the primary segmental reporting format is geographical, based an the Group’s management and

internal reporting structure. Secondary informatian is reported by a single business segment, retail and associated activities.

The Rest of Europe reporting segment includes the Republic of Ireland, Hungary, Peland, the Czech Republic, Slovakia and Turkey.
The Asia reporting segment includes Thailand, South Korea, Malaysia and Japan. Given its pending transfer to the Carrefour Group,
our Taiwanese business (previously included within the Asia segment) has been classified as a discontinuing eperation in both the

current and prioryear.

Segment results, assets and labilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis. Unallocated iterns comprise mainly interest-bearing borrowings and taxation related assetsfiabilities.

Inter-segment turnover between the geographical areas of business is not material.

Geographical segments

Continuing operations

Rest of Discontinuing Totat
UK Europe Asia Total operation Group
Year ended 25 February 2006 £m Em £m Em £m £m
Revenue
Sales {excluding VAT) to external custorners 29,990 5,095 4,369 39,454 134 29,588
Result
Segment operating profit/{loss) 1,788 263 229 2,280 9) 2,271
Share of post-tax profit from Joint ventures
and Associates 78 - 4 82 1 83
Net finance costs (127) m {128)
Profit/(loss) before tax 2,235 9) 2,226
Taxation (649) (1 (650)
Profit/(ioss) for the year 1,586 (10) 1,576
Continuing operatiens
Rest of Qther/ Discontinuing Total
UK Europe Asia unallocated Total operation Group
Em £m £m £m £m Em £m
Assets and liabilities
Segment assets 14,906 3,888 3,012 167 21,973 114 22,087
Investments in Joint ventures and Associates 461 2 13 - 476 - 476
Total assets 15,367 3,890 3,025 167 22,449 114 22,563
Segment liabilities (5,025) (708} (692) (6,608} (13,033) (86) (13,119)
Total net assets 9,416 28 9,444
Other segment information
Capital expenditure:
- Property, plant and eguipment 1,673 549 417 - 2,639 3 2,642
— Investment property 1 10 10 - 21 - 21
- Intangible assets 121 11 7 - 139 - 139
Depreciation:
- Property, plant and equipment 508 146 95 - 749 4 753
- Investment property - 4 5 - 9 - 9
Amortisation of intangible assets 63 7 6 - 76 - 76
Impairment losses recognised in the
Income Statement (29} (18 - - (47 - 47
Reversatl of prior period impairment losses
through the Income Staterment 29 23 - - 52 - 52
Profit/(loss} arising on property-related items 90 6) 7 - 77 - 77
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 2 Segmental reporting continued

Continuing operations

Rest of Discontinuing Total
UK Europe Asia Total operation Group
Year ended 26 February 2005 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue
Sales to external customers 27,146 31818 2,902 33,866 108 33974
Result
Segrment operating profit/(loss) 1,556 243 153 1,952 6) 1,946
Share of post-tax profit from Joint ventures
and Associates 72 1 1 74 1 75
Net finance costs (132) N (133)
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,894 ()] 1,888
Taxation (541) - (541)
Profit/(loss) for the year 1,353 {6) 1,347
Continuing operations
Rest of Other/ Discontinuing Total
UK Europe Asia unaliocated Total operation Group
Em £m £m £m £fm £m Em
Assets and liabilities
Segment assets 13,206 3,755 2,486 214 19,661 78 19,739
Investment in Joint ventures and Associates 255 1 151 - 407 9 416
Total assets 20,068 87 20,155
Segment liabilities (4,030) (788) (563) (6,092) (11,475) {26} {11,501}
Total net assets 8,593 61 8,654
Other segment information
Capital expenditure:
— Property, plant and equipment 1,637 358 247 - 2,242 5 2,247
— Investment property - 88 7 - 95 1 96
- Intangible assets 90 9 8 - 107 107
Depreciation:
— Property, plant and equipment 487 110 67 - 664 2 666
— Investment property - 5 3 - 8 -~ 8
Amoaortisation of intangible assets 54 4 4 - 62 - 62
Profit/(loss) arising on property-related items 21 31 3) - 49 - 49
Business segments
The Group has one business segrment; retail.
2006 2005
£m £m
Revenue 39,588 33,974
Segment assets 22,087 19,739
Capital expenditure 2.802 2,450
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Note 3 Income and expenses

. 2006 2005
From continuing operations £m £m
The profit before tax and finance costs is stated after charging/{crediting) the following:
Other income
Profit arising on property-related items 7N (49)
Rental income, of which £140m (2005 — £93m) relates to investment properties (175) (119)
COther expenses
Direct operating expenses arising on rental earning investment properties 46 28
Cost of sales
Costs of inventories recognised as an expense 29,640 25,268
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment and investment property 758 672
Reversal of impairment of Property, plant and equipment &) -
Amortisation of internally-generated development intangible assets 56 46
Amaortisation of other intangibles 20 16
Operating lease expenses (a) 360 283
(a) Operating lease expenses nclude £71m (2005 — £69m) for hire of plant and machinery.
2006 2005
£m £m
Auditors’ remuneration
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services (see below) 3 2

Amounts payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and their associates by the Group in respect of non-audit services were
£3m (2005 —- £2m).

A more detailed analysis of auditors' remuneration on a worldwide basis is provided below:

2006 2005
£m £m

Audit services:
~ statutory audit 2.0 1.7
- audit-related 0.7 0.4
27 2.1
Further assurance services G4 0.7
Tax advisory services 25 1.4
Other services 02 0.2
34 2.0
Total auditors' remuneration 5.8 4.1

Fees for further assurance services principally comprise transactions support and accounting advice on treasury-related schemas.
In addition to the amounts shown above, the auditers received fees of £0.1m (2005 £0.1m) for the audit of the main Group
pension scheme,

A description of the work of the Audit Committee is set out in the corporate governance report on pages 21 to 23 and includes
an explanation of how auditor objectivity and independence is safequarded when non-audit services are provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Tescoplc 55




Notes to the financial staterments continued

Note 4 Employment costs, including Directors’ remuneration

2006 2005

£m fm

Wages and salaries 3,473 3,053
Social security costs 271 217
Post-employment benefits 335 273
Share-based payments expense — equity settled 190 173
4,269 3.696

The average number of employees during the year was: UK 261 578 (2005 - 245,286), Rest of Europe 62,925 (2005 - 55,781),
Asia 43,710 (2005 - 34,683) and the average number of full-time equivalents was: UK 175,459 (2005 — 163,006), Rest of Europe

55,160 (2005 — 47,204) and Asia 42,405 (2005 - 32,770).

Note 5 Finance income and costs

2006 2005
fm £m

Finance income
Bank interest receivable and similar income on cash and cash equivalents 89 99
Net pension finange income (note 23) 25 4
Total finance income (on historical cost basis) 114-“ 103
Finance costs
Interest payable ¢n short-term bank loans and overdrafts repayable within five years n {56}
Interest payable on long-term bank loans and overdrafts repayable after five years - 14)
Finance charges payable under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 6) (17
4% unsecured deep discount loan stock 2006 (a) (12} “an
0.7% 50bn JPY Medium Term Note (MTN) 2006 (2) (2)
6% 150m GBP MTN 2006 )] (9}
7%% 325m GBP MTN 2007 (24) (24)
51:9% 500m EUR MTN 2008 (18} (18)
6% 250m GBP MTN 2008 (15) {15}
5%% 350m GBP MTN 2009 {18} (18)
4%% 750m EUR MTN 2010 (25) (25}
6%% 150m GBP MTN 2010 (10} (10
4% RPI GBP MTN 2016 () (15) (15)
5%% 350m GBP MTN 2019 (19) (19}
3.322% LPI GBP MTN 2025 () (14) (14)
6% 200m GBP MTN 2025 (12) (i2)
5%% 200m GBP MTN 2033 {11} (1)
Other bonds (12) (8)
Capitalised interest 67 63
Total finance costs (on historical cost basis) (232) {235)
IAS 32 and IAS 39 unrealised finance costs ) -
Total finance costs 2410 (235)

(2} Interest payable on the 4% unsecured deep discount loan stock 2006 includes £7m (2005 — £6m) of discount amortisation.
{b) Interast payahle on the RPI GBP MTN 2016 includes £6m {2005 — £6m) of RPI related amortisation.
() Interest payable on the LP1 GBP MTN 2025 includes £7m (2005 — £7m) of RPI related armoertisation.
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Note 6 Taxation

Recognised in the Income Statement

2006 2005
£m £m
Current tax expense
UK corporation tax 855 426
Foreign tax 59 56
Adjustments in respect of prior years 50 70
664 412
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversa! of temporary differences (16) 96
Benefit of tax losses recognised 2) -
Benefit of tax losses recognised — adjustments in respect of prioryears (3 -
Adjustrments in respect of pricr years 7 33
14y 129
Total income tax experise from continuing and discontinuing operations 650 541
Income tax on discontinuing operation (note 7} (1) -
Tota! Income tax expense from continuing operations 649 541

UK corporation tax is calculated at 30% (2005 — 30%} of the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation in other jurisdictions is

calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

Reconciliation of effective tax charge for continuing operations

2006 2005
£m £m
Frofit befare tax 2,235 1,894
Effective tax charge at 30% 670) {568)
Effect of:
— non-taxable income/(non-deductible expenses) 25 (53)
~ differences in overseas taxation rates 26 22
~ adjustments in respect of prior years (54) 37
~ share of results of Joint ventures 24 21
Total income tax charge for the year from continuing operations (649) {541)
Effective tax rate 29.0% 28.6%
Tax on items charged to equity
20086 2005
£m £m
Current tax credit/{charge) on:
- foreign exchange movements 2 16
— |AS 32 and IAS 39 movement 5) -
(3) 16
Deferred tax credit/(charge) on:
—1AS 32 and IAS 39 movement 6) -
— share-based payments 11 9
- pensions 131 67
136 76
Total tax on items charged to equity 133 92
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 6 Taxation continued

Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recoghised by the Group and movements thereon during the current
and prior year:

Accelerated Retirement Short-term
tax benefit Share-based timing 145 32 and

depreciation obligation payments differences Tax losses 1AS 39 Tota!

£m Em £m £m Em £m Em
At 28 February 2004 (694) 202 40 21 5 - (426)
Charge to the Income Statement (99 (55 23 4 2) - (129
Charge to equity - 67 9 - - - 76
Forelgn exchange differences 5 - - 2 - - €3]
At 26 February 2005 (798) 214 72 27 3 - (482)
Adoption of 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 - - - - - 28 28
Charge to the Income Statement (35} 19 22 3 5 - 14
Charge to equity - 131 11 - - &) 136
Disposal of subsidiary - - - 1 - - 1
Foreign exchange differences 4) - - 1 - - (3}
(837) 364 105 32 8 22 (306)
Discontinuing operation (2) - - -~ - - {2y
At 25 February 2006 (839) 364 105 32 8 22 {308)

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset}
for financial reporting purposes:

2006 2005

£m £m

Deferred tax assets 12 14
Deferred tax liabilities 320y {496)
{308) (482)

No deferred tax is recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries and joint ventures, because the earnings
are continually reinvested by the Group and o tax is expected to be payable on themn in the foreseeable future. The temporary
difference unrecognised at the year end amounted te £461m (2005 - £322m).

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it is not probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the Group can vtilise the benefits.

2006 2005
£m £m
Deductible temporary differences 3 1
Tax losses (primarily discontinuing operation) 17 16
20 17
Note 7 Discontinuing operation and assets classified as held for sale
2006
£m
Assets of the disposal group 114
Non-cusrent assets classified as held for sale 54
Total non-current assets classified as held for sale and assets of the disposal group 168
Total Nabilities ditactly associated with the disposa!l group (86)
Total net assets classified as held for sale 82
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Note 7 Discontinuing operation and assets classified as held for sale continued

Discontinuing operation and the assets of the disposal group

On 30 Septernber 2005 the Group entered into an agreermnent to dispose of its operation in Taiwan to Carrefour as part of a transaction
to acquire Carrefour’s businesses in the Czech Repubfic and Slovakia. This operation, which is expected to be sold within twelve
months of the Balance Sheet date, has been classified as a disposal group. The assets of the business are presented separately

in the Balance Sheet, and the net resuit for the year presented within discontinuing operation int the Income Statemnent.

The proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the carrying value of the related net assets and accordingly no further impairment
losses have been recognised on the classification of these operations as held for sale.

The table befow shows the results of the Taiwanase business that are included in the results of the total Group for the current and
prior periods.

Income Statement

2006 2005
£m £m
Revenue 134 108
Cost of sales (111) (91}
Administrative expenses (32} (23)
Net finance costs (1] {1
Share of profit of discontinuing joint venture 1 1
Loss before tax of discontinuing operation 9 (6)
Tax related to trading loss (1) -
(10 (6)
The effect of the discontinuing operation on segment results is disclosed in note 2.
Cash Flow Statement
2006 2005
£m Em
Net cash flows from operating activities (6} 3
Net cash flows from investing activities {6) 4
Net cash flows from financing activities 10 2
(2) 1
Balance Sheet
2006
£m
Property, plant and equipment 68
Investment property 18
Investment in Joint venture 10
Inventories 9
Trade and other receivables 7
Cash and cash equivalents 2
Assets of the disposal group 114
Bank loans and overdrafts (X))
Trade and cther payables (28)
Tax liabilities (1)
Tota! liabilities directly associated with the disposal group {86)
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
2006
£m
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 54

The non-current assets classified as held for sale consist mainly of investment property held for sale.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 8 Dividends

2006 2005 2006 2005
pencelshare pencefshare £m £m

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Final dividend for the year ended 26 February 2005 527 4,77 410 365
interim dividend for the year ended 25 February 2006 2.53 2.29 199 177
7.80 7.06 609 542
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 25 February 2006 6.10 5.27 482 410

The proposed final dividend was approved by the Board of Directors on 24 April 2006 and is subject to the approval of shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting. The proposed dividend has not been included as a liability as at 25 February 2006, in accordance
with IAS 10 ‘Events after the balance sheet date’. It will be paid on 14 July 2006 to shareholders who are on the register of members
on 5 May 2006.

Note 9 Earnings per share and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted eamings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (adjusted for the effects of potentially dilutive options}.

The ditution effect is calculated on the full exercise of all ordinary share options granted by the Group, including performance-based
options which the Group considers to have been earned.

2006 2005
Potentially Potentially
dilutive dilutive
Basic  share aptions Diluted Basic share options Diluted
Profit (£m)
Continuing cperations 1,580 - 1,580 1,350 - 1,350
Discontinuing operation 10 - [{I®)] &) - {6)
Yotal 1,570 - 1,570 1,344 - 1,344
Weighted average number of shares (million) 7823 109 7,932 7,707 97 7,804
Earnings per share {pence}
Continuing operations 2020 (0.28) 19,92 17.52 0.22) 17.30
Discontinuing operation (0.13) - (0.13) (0.08) - (0.08)
Total 20.07 (0.28) 19.79 17.44 0.22) 17.22

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of
approval of these financial staterments which would significantly change the earnings per share calculations shown above.
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Note 10 Goodwill and intangible assets

Internally Pharmacy
generated and Other
development software intangible
costs ficencas assets Goodwill Total
£m Em £m £m £m

Cost
Al 26 February 2005 393 144 59 1,192 1,788
Foreign currency translation 1 3 4 19 27
Additicns 115 21 3 - 139
Acquisitions through business combinations - - - 27 27
Reclassification across categories 1 27 (23) ) 3
Disposals {52) (2) - (1) (55)
At 25 February 2006 458 193 43 1,235 1,929
Accurnulated amortisation and impairment losses
At 26 February 2005 190 82 10 98 380
Foreign currency translation - 2z - - 2
Amortisation for the year 56 19 1 - 76
Reclassification across categories - 8 (8} - -
Dispasals (52) {2) - - (54)
At 25 February 2006 194 109 3 98 404
Net carrying value
At 25 Fabruary 2006 264 84 40 1,137 1,525
At 26 February 2005 203 &2 49 1,094 1,408
Cost
At 28 February 2004 315 129 45 1,048 1,537
Foreign currency translation - 1 7 82 90
Additions 85 15 76 77
Disposals ) m - @) (16}
At 26 February 2005 393 144 59 1,192 1,788
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
At 28 February 2004 150 72 4 91 317
Foreign currency translation m [4}] k] 7 b
Amortisation for the year 46 1" 5 - 62
Disposals (5) - - - {5}
At 26 February 2005 190 82 10 98 380
Net carrying value
At 26 February 2005 203 62 49 1,094 1,408
At 28 February 2004 165 57 41 957 1,220

There are no intangible assets, other than goodwill, with indefinite useful lives.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 10 Goodwill and intangible assets centinued

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill arising on business combinations is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently
if there are indications that goodwill may be impaired. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to groups of cash-
generating units according to the level at which management monitor that goodwil.

Recoverable amounts for cash-generating units are based on value in use, which s calculated from cash flow projections for five
years using data from the Group’s latest internal forecasts, the results of which are reviewed by the Board. The key assumptions

for the value in use calculations are those regarding discount rates, growth rates and expected changes in margins, Management
astimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the cash-generating units. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past experience and expectations of future
changes in the market.

The forecasts are extrapolated beyond five years based on estimated growth rates {generally 3%-4%).

The pre-tax discount rates used to calculate value in use range from 9%-11% (2005 and 2004: 10%-13%). This discount rate is
derived from the Group's post-tax weighted average cost of capital as adjusted for the specific risks refating to each geographical
region.

in February 2006, 2005 and 2004 impairment reviews were performed by comparing the carrying value of goodwill with the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. Management determined that there
has been no impairment.

The components of goodwill are as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Em Em £

UK 466 463 414
Poland 331 323 252
Thailand 115 107 109
Japan 133 135 121
Turkey 55 49 43
South Korea 32 10 8
Other 5 7 10
1,137 1,094 957
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Note 11 Property, plant and equipment

Plant,
equipment,
fixtures and

Land and fittings and

buildings  motor vehicles Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At 26 February 2005 14,247 4,298 18,545
Foreign currency transtation 198 45 243
Additions (a) 1,935 707 2,642
Acquisitions through business combinations 20 3 23
Reclassification across categories (208) 11 (197)
Classified as held for sale {74 {15} (89
Disposals (555} (342) (897)
At 25 February 2006 15,563 4,707 20,270
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
At 26 February 2005 1,705 2,319 4,024
Foreign currency translation g 19 28
Charge for the year 250 503 753
Reclassification across categories m 9 -
Classified as held for sale (5) (6) (11}
Disposals (139) (262) (401)
Impairment losses 40 7 47
Reversal of impairment losses (44} (8} (52)
At 25 February 2006 1,815 2,573 4,388
Net carrying value {b){(c){d)
At 25 February 2006 13,748 2,134 15,882
Af 26 February 2005 12,542 1,979 14,521
Capital work in progress included above {e)
At 25 February 2006 . 699 82 781

{a) Includes £67m (2005 — £63m) in respect of interest capitalised, principally refating to fand and building assets. The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount
of finance costs capitalised during the year was 5.1% (2005 - 5.7%. Interest capitalised is deducted in determining taxable profit in the year in which it is incurred.
(b) Net carrying value includes capitalised interest at 25 February 2006 of £655m (2005 — £597m).
The cost of 1and and buildings includes £102m {2005 — £85m} in respect of assets held under finance leases. The related accumulated depreciation
at the end of the year was £1dm (2005 — £10m). These asse1s are pledged as security for the finance lease liabilities.
The cast of plant, equipment, fixture and fittings and motor vehiclas includes £388m (2005 - £392m) in respect of assets held under finance leases.
The related accumulated depreciation at the end of the yaar was £367m (2005 — £354m).

{c) The net carrying value of land and buildings comprises:
2006 2005
£m £m
Freehold 12,616 11,485
Long leasehold — 50 years or more 541 520
Short leasehold - less than 50 years 591 537
Net carrying value 13,748 12,542

(d) Carrying value of land and buildings includes £2m (2005 ~ £13m) relating 1o the prepayment of lease premiums.
(e) Capital workin progress does nat include land.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 11 Property, plant and equipment continued

Plant,
equipment,
fixtures and
Land and fittings and
buildings  motor vehicles Tetal
£m £m £m
Cost
At 28 February 2004 13,094 4,002 17,096
Foreign currency translation 502 81 383
Additions (2} 1,655 592 2,247
Acquisitions through business combinations 46 2z 48
Reclassification across categories {78) 53 (25)
Disposals (772) {432) (1,204)
At 26 February 2005 14,247 4,298 18,545
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
At 28 February 2004 1,619 2,224 3,843
Foreign currency translation 23 37 50
Charge for the period 223 443 666
Reclassification across categories 1 1 2
Disposals (161} (386) (547)
At 26 February 2005 1,705 2,319 4,024
Net carrying value (b)(c}{(d}
At 26 February 2005 12,542 1,979 14,521
At 28 February 2004 11,805 1,448 13,253
Capital work in progress included above ()
At 26 February 2005 540 74 614
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Note 11 Property, plant and equipment continued

\mpairment of Property, plant and equipment
The Group has determined that for the purposes of impairment testing, each store is a cash-generating unit. Cash-generating units
are tested for impairment if there are indications of impairment at the Balance Sheet date.

Recoverable amounts for cash-generating units are based on value in use, which is calculated from cash flow projections for five
years using data from the Group's latest internai forecasts, the results of which are reviewed by the Board. The key assumptions

for the value in use calculations are those regarding discount rates, growth rates and expected changes in margins. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the cash-generating units. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past experience and expectations of future
changes in the market.

The forecasts are extrapolated beyond five years based on estimated long term growth rates (generally 3%-4%).

The pre-tax discount rates used to calculate value in use range from 9%-11% (2005 and 2004: 10%-13%) depending on the specific
conditions in which each store operates. This discount rate is derived from the Group's post-tax weighted average cost of capital.
The Group's cash-generating units were reviewed for impairment on transition to IFRSs using the methodology and assumptions
outlined above. This review resulted in impairment losses of £142m as at 29 February 2004. Due to movements in foreign exchange
rates, the impairment losses increased to £152m as at 26 February 2005.

The following amounts have been (charged)/icredited to operating costs in the Income Statement during the current and prior year.

2006 2005
£m £m
Impairment losses
UK (29} -
Rest of Europe IR1:3] -
Asia - -
(47) -
Reversal of impairment losses
UK 29 -
Rest of Europe 23 -
Asia - -
52 -
Net reversal of impairment losses 5 -

The impairment losses relate to stores whose recoverable amounts (eithervalue in use or fair value less costs to sell) do not exceed
the asset carrying values. In all cases, impairment losses arose due to stores performing below budgeted trading levels.

The reversal of previous impairment losses arose principally due to improvements in stores’ performances over the last year and
a reduction in the weighted average cost of capital, which increases the net present value of future cash flows.

In all cases, the impairment losses charged or reversed during the year have been measured relative to the value in use of the stores,
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 12 Investment property

Em
Cost
At 26 February 2005 595
Foreign currency translation 36
Additions 21
Transfers 194
Classified as held for sale {58)
Disposals (3)
At 25 February 2006 785
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
At 26 February 2005 0
Foreign currency translation 2
Charge for the period 9
Classified as held for sale (n
At 25 February 2006 40
Net carrying value
At 25 February 2006 745
At 26 February 2005 565
Cost
At 28 February 2004 431
Foreign currency translation 49
Additions 96
Transfers 14
Disposals (55)
At 26 February 2005 595
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
At 28 February 2004 18
Foreign currency translation b
Charge for the period 8
Disposals (2}
At 26 February 2005 30
Net carrying value
At 26 February 2005 565
At 28 February 2004 473

The estimated fair value of the Group’s Investment property is £1,373m (2005 — £899m). This value has been determined by
applying an appropriate rental yield to the rentals eamed by the Investrment property. A valuation has not been performed by
an independent valuer.
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Note 13 Group entities

Significant subsidiaries
The Group consolidates its subsidiary undertakings; the principal subsidiaries are:

Share of issued ordinary share

Country of

Business activity capital, and voting rights incorporation
Tesco Stores Limited* Retail 100% England
Tesco Distribution Limited* Distributicn 100% England
Tesco Property Holdings Limited™ Property 100% England
Tesco Insurance Limited* Insurance 100% Guernsey
Valiant Insurance Company Limited Insurance 100% Reputtic of Ireland
One Stop Stores Limited (formerly T&S Steres Limited} Retail 100% England
Tesco Ireland Limited* Retail 100% Republic of Ireland
Tesco Global Aruhazak Rt.* Retail 99% Hungary
Tesco Polska Sp. z 0.0.* Retail 100% Poland
Tesco Stores CR a.s.* Retail 100% Czech Republic
Tesco Stores S Ras.* Retail 100% Slovakia
Samsung Tesco Co. Limited* Retail 89% South Korea
Ek-Chai Distribution System Co. Ltd* Retail 99% Thailand
Tesco Taiwan Co, Limited* Retail 100% Taiwan
Tesco Stores Malaysia Sdn Bhd* Retail 70% Mataysia
Tesco Stores Hong Kong Limited* Purchasing 100% Heng Kong
C Two-Network Co. Ltd* Retail 100% Japan
Tesco Kipa A.S. Retail 93% Turkey

* Held by an intermediate subsidiary.

All principal subsidiary undertakings operate in their country of incorporation.

The accounting period-ends of the subsidiary undertakings consolidated in these financial statements are an or around
25 February 2006, with the exception of Tesco Taiwan Co. Ltd which has an accounting period end of 31 December 2005,

A full list of the Group's operating subsidiary undertakings will be annexed to the next Annuat Return filed at Companies House.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of subsidiary undertakings to transfer funds to the parent, other than those

imposed by the Companies Act 1985.
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Note 13 Group entities continued

Interests in Joint ventures and Associates

The Group uses the equity method of accounting for joint ventures and associates. The following table shows the aggregate

movement in the Group’s investment in joint ventures and associates:

Joint ventures Associates Total

Em £m £m

At 28 February 2004 310 21 331

Additions 148 5 153
Effect of change in foreign exchange rates (5} 3 (8)
Share of profit/{loss) of Joint ventures and Associates 78* (3) 75*
Income received from Joint ventures and Associates (135) - {135)
At 26 February 2005 396 20 416

1AS 32 and IAS 39 restatement 13 - 13
Additions 35 1 36

Effect of change in foreign exchange rates 19 1 20
Share of profit/(loss) of Joint ventures and Associates 85> (2} 83*
Income received from Joint ventures and Associates {82) - {82)
Transferred to Non-current assets held for sale {10} - 4]
At 25 February 2006 456 20 476

* Includes £1m profit on the discontinuing Joint venture, Taiwan Charn Yang Developments Limited.

Joint ventures
The Group’s principal joint ventures are:

Business activily

Share of issued share
capital, loan capital and
debt securities

Country of incorporation

and principal country

of incorporation

Shopping Centres Limited Property Investment 50% England
BLT Properties Limited Property {nvestment 50% England
Tesco BL Holdings Limited Property Investment 50% England
Tesco British Land Property Partnership* Property Investment 50% England
Tesco Property Limited Partnership* Property Investment 50% England
Arena (Jersey) Management Limited* Property Investment 50% Jersey
The Tesco Property {No. 2) Limited Partnership* Property Investment 50% Jersey
Tesco Persanat Finance Group Limited Personal Finance 50% Scotland
Tesco Home Shopping Limited Mail Order Retail 60% England
Tesco Mobile Limited* Telecommunications 50% England
dunnhumby Limited* Data Analysts 53% England
Nutri Centres Limited* Complementary Medicines 50% England
Taiwan Charn Yang Developments Limited* Property investment 50% Taiwan
Hymall* Retail 50% Republic of China
Retail Property Company Limited* Property Investment 50% Thailand
Tesco Card Services Limited* Perspnal Finance 50% Thailand

* Held by an intermediate subsidiary.

The accounting period-ends of the joint ventures consolidated in these financial staterments range from 31 Decernber 2005 to

28 February 2006. Accounting peried-end dates different fram those of the Group arise for commercial reasons and depend upon

the requirements of the joint venture partner as well as those of the Group.
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Note 13 Group entities continued

Although Tesco Home Shopping and dunnhumby are 60% and 53% owned, respectively, they are treated as joint ventures in the
Group accounts because the parties to each of the ventures work together with equal powers to control the entities. Each venturer
in the respective entity retain the power of veto and overall key strategic, operational and financial decisions require the consent
of both parties.

The investment in Taiwan Charn Yang Drevelopments Limited has been transferred to assets held for sale due to its impending
transfer to Carrefour as part of the asset swap deal detailed in note 7.

The share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and profit of the joint ventures which are included in the consolidated financial
statements, are as follows:

2006 2005

£m £m

Assets 5,014 4,297
Liabilities (4,749) (4,054)
Goodwill 185 150
Cumulative unrecognised lasses b 3
456 396

Revenue 586 379
Profit for the period 85 78

The unrecognised share of losses made by joint ventures in the year to 25 February 2006 was £3m (2005 — £2m).

Associates
The Group’s principal associates are:

Business activity

Share of issued capital,
toan capital and debt
securities

Country of incorporation
and principal country
of operation

Greenergy Fuels Limited

Fuel Supplier

25%

England

GroceryWorks Holdings Inc

Internet Retailer

385%

United States of America

The share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and profit of the Group’s associates, which are included in the consolidated financial

staterments, are as follows:

2006 2005

£m £m

Assets 72 43
Liabilities {65) (36)
Goodwill 13 13
20 20

Revenue 174 103
Less for the period ) (3

The accounting period end of the associates consolidated in these financial statements range from 31 December 2005
to 28 February 2006.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of associated undertakings to transfer funds to the parent, other than
those imposed by the Companies Act 1985,
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 14 Other investments

2006 2005

£m £m

Shares — unlisted - 7
Shares — listed 4 -
4 7

Other investrents are available-for-sale financial assets consisting of ordinary shares, and therefore have no fixed maturity date or

coupon rate.

The fairvalue of the unlisted available-for-sale investments has been estimated using a valuation technique based on assumptions
that are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The fair value of the listed available-for-sale investments is based on

quoted market prices at the Balance Sheet date.

The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group’s Other investments during the year:

£m

At 26 February 2005 7
Restatement as at 27 February 2005 under [AS 39 ()]
At 27 February 2005 - restated -
Additions 2
Revaluation through equity 2
At 25 February 2006 4
Note 15 Inventories

2006 2005

£m £m
Gooeds held for resale 1,457 1,306
Development properties 7 3
1,464 1,309

Accumnulated capitalised interest within development properties at 25 February 2006 was £0.4m (2005 — £0.6m).
Note 16 Trade and other receivables

2006 2005

£m £m

Prepayments and accrued income 86 48
Finance lease receivables (note 31) 17 -
Qther receivables 648 585
Amounts owed by Joint ventures and Associates 141 136

892 769

Included within Trade and other receivables are the following amounts receivable after
more than cne year:

2006 2005

£m £m

Prepayments and accrued income - ?
Finance lease receivables 1 -
Other receivables 118 60
Amounts owed by Joint ventures and Associates 121 126
250 188
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Note 17 Cash and cash equivalents

2006 2005
Em fm
Cash at bank and in hand 964 800
Shert-term deposits 361 346
1,325 1,146
The effactive rate of interest on short-termn deposits is 3.9% and the average maturity term is 2 weeks.
Note 18 Trade and other payables
Current
2006 2005
£m £m
Trade payables 2,832 2,819
Other taxation and social security 216 221
Other payables 1,257 1,236
Amounts payable to Joint ventures and Associates 79 29
Accruals and deferred income 693 663*
Dividends 6 6
5,083 4,974

* Includes £163m attributable to realised gains on terminated interest rate swaps. Under IFRS these have been reclassified as part of the 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 adjustments {note 33).

Non-current

2006 2005
£m £m
Other payablies 29 21
Note 19 Borrowings
Current
Effective
interest rate
Effective  after hedging
interest rate transactions Maturity 2006 2005
Parvalue % Y year £m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts (2} 45 4.5 2006 1,013 471
4% unsecured deep discount loan stock £125m 10.2 10.8 2006 122 -
6% 150m GBP Medium Term Note (MTN) £150m 6.0 4.9 2006 158 -
0.7% 50bn JPY MTN ) ¥50bn 07 4.8 2006 247 -
QOther MTNs 4.8 4.8 2006 86 -
Finance leases (note 31) 8.3 8.3 - 20 1"
1,646 482

(@) Includes £9rn {2005 — £9m) of loans fror Joint ventures and Associates.

(b} The MTNs denominated in currencies other than Pounds Sterling have been swapped into Pounds Sterling liabilities.
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Note 19 Borrowings continued

Non-current

Effective
interest rate
Effective  after hedging

interest rate transactions Maturity 2006 2005

Parvalue % % Year £m £m

Finance leases {note 31) - 109 10.9 - 84 77
4% unsecured deep discount loan stock £125m 10.2 10.2 2006 - 116
6% MTN £150m 5.0 49 2006 - 150
0.7% MTN (&} ¥50bn 0.7 4.8 2006 - 285
7.5% MTN £325m 7.6 48 2007 344 325
6% MTN £250m 6.0 49 2008 268 250
5.25% MTN (b €500m 5.3 5.0 2008 366 345
5.125% MTN £350m 53 48 2009 355 350
6.625% MTN £150m 6.7 6.7 2010 153 150
4.75% MTN (b) €750m 48 5.2 2010 548 528
4% RPI MTN (<) £229m 6.5 6.5 2016 236 226
5.5% MTN £350m 5.6 5.6 2019 349 350
3.322% LPIMTN (d) £235m 5.9 5.9 2025 236 228
6% MTN £200m 6.1 6.4 2029 214 200
5.5% MTN £200m 5.6 5.7 2033 213 200
Other MTNs (e) - 25 2.5 - 278 334
Qther loans {f) - 53 5.3 - 98 449
3,742 4,563

(5) The MTNs denominated in currencies other than Pounds Sterling have been swapped into Pounds Sterling liabilities.
(¢} The 4% RPi MTN is redeemable at par, indexed for increases in the RPI over the life of the MTN,

(d) The 3.322% LP! MTNs are redeemable at par, indexed for increases in the RP1 over the fife of the MTN.
The maximum indexation of the principal in any one year is 5%, with a minimum of 0%.

(&) The other MTNs are of various maturities and include Pounds Sterling and foreign currency dencminated notes, swapped into floating rate Pounds Sterling.

{h Various bank loans maturing between 2007 and 2008.

Borrowing factlities

The Group has the following undrawn committed facilities available at 25 February 2006, in respect of which all conditions
precedent had been met as at that date:

2006 2005

£m Em

Expiring within one year - -
Expiring between one and two years - 561
Expiring in maore than two years 1,750 -
1,750 561

All facilities incur commitment fees at market rates and would provide funding at floating rates.
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Note 20 Financial instruments

An explanation of the ohjectives and policies for holding and issuing financial instruments is set out in the Operating and financial

review on page 16.

The following tables provide details of financial instruments in accordance with the relevant IFRSs (includirg IAS 32 and IAS 39,
which the Group adopted as at 27 February 2005). Comparative figures for the year ended 26 February 2005 (before the adoption

of IAS 32 and IAS 39) are also provided in the tables that follow those for the current year.

Carrying values of derivative financial instruments and other liabilities in the Balance Sheet:

2006
Assets Lizbilities
£m £m
Current
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments 1" {69}
Forward foreign currency contracts 59 (170)
70 (239)
Non-current
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments - {46)
Forward foreign currency contracts - (2)
Put option on Samsung Tesco Co. Limited minority interest - (246}
- (294}
Fair values
Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed below:
2006
Carrying Fair
value value
£m £m
Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the Group’s operations:
Short-term borrowings (1,626) (1,641}
Long-term borrowings (3,658} (3,848)
Finance leases {(Group as lessor — note 31} 17 17
Finance leases (Group as lessee — note 31} {104) {104)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,325 1,325
Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate and currency profile:
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments (104) (104)
Ferward foreign currency contracts (113) (113)
Put option on Samsung Tesco Co. Limited minority interest (246} (246}
{4,509} (4,714)

The fairvalues of financial instruments and derivatives have been determined by reference to prices available from the markets on
which the instruments are traded. The fair value of all other items have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows

at prevailing interest rates.
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Note 20 Financial instruments continued

Financial instruments under IFRS (including IAS 32 and IAS 39}

Analysis of interest rate exposure of financial assets and liabilities
The interest rate exposure of financial assets and liabilities of the Group as at 25 February 2006, after taking into account the effect
of interest rate swaps, was:

Within More than
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years S years Total
£m £m Em £m £m fm £m
Fixed rate
Finance lease receivables 6 6 5 - - - 17
Bank and other loans (147 (161) - (98) (153) (861) (1,420)
Finance lease payables (20) {11) (8) (3) (3) (59) (104)
Floating rate
Cash and cash eqguivalents 1,325 - - - - - 1,325
Bank and other loans (1,479) (386) {662) (355) {555) (427) (3,864)

Hedging activities

Fairvalue hedges

The Group uses interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps to hedge the fair value of fixed rate bonds, this means the fixed rate
bonds are hedged against changes to their fair value resulting from changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

The fairvalue of swaps used for fairvalue hedging at the Balance Sheet date was a liability of £1 00m.

Cash flow hedges

The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options te hedge the cost of future purchases of goods for resale,
where those purchases are denominated in a currency other than that of the purchasing company. The hedging instruments are
primarily used to hedge purchases in Euros and US Dollars. The cashflows hedged will occur within one year of the Balance

Sheet date.

At the Balance Sheet date, the total notional amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts to which the Group has
committed was £548m.

The fairvalue of currency derivatives that are designated as effective cash flow hedges was an asset of £4m. This amount has been
deferred as a component of equity.

Net investment hedges
The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts, currency denominated borrowings and currency options to hedge the exposure
of a proportion of its non-Sterling denominated assets against changes in value due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The fairvalue of these instruments at the Balance Sheet date was a liability of £150m.

The Graup has a Korean Won denominated liability relating to the future purchase of the minority shareholding of its subsidiary,
Samsung Tesco Co. Limited. This liability has been designated as a net investment hedge on a proportion of the assets of Samsung
Tesco Co. Limited. The carrying value of the liability at the Balance Sheet date was £246m.

Financial instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting
The Group has a number of financial instruments which do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

These instruments include forward foreign exchange contracts, currency options, caps, collars and interest rate swaps.

The fairvalue of these instruments at the Balance Sheet date was a liability of £5m.
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Note 20 Financial instruments continued

Financial instruments under UK GAAP FRS 13 *Derivatives and other financial instruments: disclosures’ (relating to the

comparative period ended 26 February 2005)

An explanation of the objectives and policies for holding and issuing financial instruments is set outin the Operating and financial
review on page 16. Other than where these items have been included in the currency risk disclosures, short-term receivables and

payables have been excluded from the following analysis.

Analysis of interest rate exposure and currency of financial liabilities

The interest rate exposure and currency profile of the financial labilities of the Group as at 26 February 2005, after taking into

account the effect of interest rate and currency swaps, were:

2005
Flpating rate Fixed rate

liabilities liabilities Total
£m Em £m

Currency
Sterling - 2,203 2,203
Euro 577 24 601
Thai Baht 550 - 550
Czech Krona 335 139 474
Slovak Krena 13 3 44
Japanese Yen 23 141 164
Korean Won 654 - 654
Chinese Yuan 127 127
Other 149 22 171
Gross liabilities 2,428 2,560 4,988
Fixed rate financial liabilities
2005
Weighted Weighted
average average time
interest rate for which
26 Feb 2005 rate is fixed
% Years

Currency
Sterling 5.7 7
Euro 5.4 1
Japanese Yen 13 5
Czech Krona 39 3
Slovak Krona 43 3
Malaysian Ringgit 79 12
Taiwanese Dollar 4.5 -
Weighted average 55 b

Floating rate liabilities as at 26 February 2005 bore interest at rates based on relevant national LIBOR equivalents. The interest rate
profile of the Group was further managed by the purchase of Euro interest rate collars with an aggregate notional principal of
£145m. The average strike rate of the interest rate caps purchased was 6.76%, while the average strike rate of the interest rate floors
sold was 2.98%. The average maturity of the collars as at 26 February 2005 was two and a half years. The value of these contracts as

at 26 February 2005, if realised, would have resulted in a loss of £1.7m.

Sterling interest rate caps with an aggregate notional principal of £600m were purchased during the year ended 26 February 2005.
The strike rate on these caps was 6% and the average maturity was five years. The value as at 26 February 2005 of these contracts,

if realised, would have been £3.5m.

Retail Price Index funding of £226m, maturing in 2016, was autstanding as at 26 February 2005 and was classified as fixed rate
debt. The interest rate payable on this debt was 4% and the principal was linked to the Retail Price Index. Limited Price index
funding, of £228m, maturing in 2025, was outstanding as at 26 February 2005 and was classified as fixed rate debt. The interest
rate payable on this debt was 3.322% and the principal was linked to the Retail Price Index. The maximum indexation of the

principal in any one year is 5.0% and the minimum is 0.0%.
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Note 20 Financial instruments continued

Financial instruments under UK GAAP FRS 13 (relating to the comparative period ended 26 February 2005) continued

Analysis of interest rate exposure and currency profile of financial assets
The interest rate exposure and currency profile of the financial assets of the Group as at 26 February 2005 were:

2005

Cash at

bank and Short-term

in hand deposits Other Total
Em Em £m £m
Sterling 411 231 104 746
QOther currencies 389 115 4 508
Total financial assets 800 346 108 1,254

An investment in collateralised Deutsche Bank preference shares of £150m was held at 26 February 2005, paying fixed interest
of 4.3%.

Other financial assets, in respect of amounts owed by undertakings in which the Company has a participating interest, attracted

a rate of interest of 5.7% (being LIBOR plus a margin). Surplus funds as at 26 February 2005 were invested in accordance with
approved limits on security and liquidity and bore rates of interest based on relevant LIBOR equivalents. Cash at bank and in hand
included non-interest bearing cash and cash in transit.

Currency exposures

Within the Group, the principal differences on exchange arising, which are taken to the Income Statement, relate to purchases made
by Group companies in currencies other than their reporting currencies. After taking account of forward currency purchases used to
hedge these transactions, there were no significant balances on these exposures as at 26 February 2005. Also, rolling hedges of

up to 18 months duration were maintained against the value of investments in, and fong-term intercompany loans to, overseas
subsidiaries and, to the extent permitted in 1AS 21, differences on exchange were taken to the Statement of Recognised Income

and Expense.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

2005
Bookvalue Fairvalue
£m £

Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the Group’s operations:
Short-term borrowings {471) (469)
Long-term borrowings (4,486) (4,696)
Finance leases (Group as lessee) (88) (88)
Short-term deposits 346 346
Cash at bank and in hand 800 80G
Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate and currency profile:
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments - 181)
Interest rate options 4 2
Forward foreign currency contracts - {15)
Currency options 2 6)

{3,893) (4,307)
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Note 20 Financial instruments continued

Financial instruments under UK GAAP FRS 13 (relating to the comparative period ended 26 February 2005) continued
Other significant financia! instruments outstanding as at 26 February 2005 were £479m nominal value forward foreign exchange
contracts hedging the cost of foreign currency denominated purchases. On a marking-to-market basis, these contracts showed

a loss of £15m. The fairvalues of interest rate swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts and long-term fixed rate debt were
determined by reference to prices available from the markets on which the instruments were traded. The fairvalues of all other items
were calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates.

Hedges
Gains and losses on instruments used for hedging interest rates and currency risks, unrealised as at 26 February 2005, and those
racognised in the year ended 26 February 2005 were as follows:

Unrecognised Deferred
Gains Losses Total Gains Losses Total
£m £m £m £m £m fm
At 28 February 2004 6 (214) (208) 211 - 21
Arising In previous years and recognised
in the year ended 26 February 2005 (1} 44 43 (48} - (48)
Arising in the pericd to be recognised in future years 9 (44) {35) - - -
At 26 February 2005 14 (214) (200) 163 - 163
Note 21 Provisions
Property
provisions
£m
At 26 February 2005 9
Additions 1
Amount credited in the year 3
At 25 February 2006 7

Property provisions comprise future rents payable net of rents receivable on onerous and vacant property leases, provisions for
terminal dilapidations and provisions for future rents above market value on unprofitable stores. The majority of the provision is
expected to be utilised over the period to 2017.

The balances are analysed as follows:

2006 2005

£m £m

Current 2 3
Non-current 5 6
7 9
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Note 22 Share-based payments

The Group has not taken advantage of the transitional provisions of IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payment’ in respect of equity-settled
awards but instead applied IFRS 2 retrospectively to all awards granted, but not vested, as at 28 February 2004.

The total Income Statement charge for the year recognised in respect of share-based payments is £190rm (2005 - £1 73m) which
is made up of share option schemes and share bonus payments.

a) Share option schemes
The Company bad eight share option schemes, all of which are equity-settled schemes, in operation during the year:

i) The savings-related share option scheme (1981) permits the grant to employees of optians in respect of ordinary shares linked
to a building society/bank save-as-you-earn contract for a term of three or five years with contributions from employees of an
amount between £5 and £250 per four-weekly period. Options are capable of being exercised at the end of the three or
five-year period at a subscription price not less than 80% of the average of the middle-market quotations of an ordinary share
over the three dealing days immediately preceeding the offer date.

i) The Irish savings-related share option scherme (2000) permits the grant to Irish employees of options in respect of ordinary
shares linked to a building society/bank save-as-you-earn contract for a term of three or five years with contributions from
ernployees of an amount between €12 and €320 per four-weekly period. Options are capable of being exercised at the end
of the three or five-year petiod at a subscription price not less than 80% of the average of the middle-market quotations of
an ordinary share over the three dealing days immediately preceeding the offer date.

iy The approved executive share option scheme (1994) was adopted on 17 October 1994. The exercise of options granted under
this scheme will normally be conditional upon the achievement of a specified performance target related to the growth in
earnings per share over a three-year period. No further options will be granted under this scheme and it has been replaced by
the discretionary share option plan (2004). There were no discounted options granted under this scheme,

iv} The unapproved executive share option scheme (1996) was adopted on 7 June 1996. This scheme was introduced following
legislative changes which limited the number of options which could be granted under the previous scheme. The exercise of
options granted under this scheme will normally be conditional upon the achievemnent of a specified performance target related
to the growth in eamings per share over a three-year period. No further options will be granted under this scheme and it bas
been replaced by the discretionary share option plan (2004). There were no discounted options granted under this scheme.

v) The international executive share option scheme (1994} was adopted on 20 May 1994. This scherne permits the grant to selected
non-UK executives of options to acquire ordinary shares on substantially the same basis as their UK counterparts. The exercise of
options granted under this scheme will normally be conditional on the achievement of a specified performance target related to
the growth in earnings per share over a three-year period. No further options will be granted under this scheme and it has been
replaced by the discretionary share option plan (2004). There were no discounted options granted under this scheme.

vi) The executive incentive plan (2004) was adopted on 4 July 2004, This scheme permits the grant of options in respect of
ordinary shares to selected executives. Options are normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant
for nil consideration.

vii) The performance share plan (2004} was adopted on 4 July 2004, This scheme permits the grant of options in respect of
ordinary shares to selected executives. Options are normally exercisable between four and ten years from the date of grant for nil
consideration. The exercise of aptions will normally be conditional on the achievement of specified performance targets related
to the return on capital employed over a three-year period.

viii} The discretionary share option plan (2004} was adopted on 4 July 2004, This scheme permits the grant of approved,
unapproved and international options in respect of ordinary shares to selected executives. Options are normally exercisable
between three and ten years from the date of grant at a price not less than the middle market quotation or average middle
market quotations of an ordinary share for the dealing day or three dealing days preceeding the date of grant. The exercise of
options will normally be conditional on the achievement of a specified performance target related to the annual percentage
growth in earnings per share over a three-year period. There will be no discounted options granted under this scheme.
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Note 22 Share-based payments continued

The following tables reconcile the number of share options outstanding and the weighted average exercise price (WAEP):
For the year ended 25 February 2006

Approved Unapproved
Savings-related Irish savings-related share option share oplicn  International executive Nil cost
share option scheme share option scheme scheme scheme share option scheme share options
Cptions WAEP Options WAEP Options WAEP Options WAEP COptions WAEP Options WAEP
Qutstanding at
26 February
2005 186,022,500 19478 4,895,103 190.80 21,290,693 222,10 97,695,342 227.08 23025502 22710 1,126,257 0.00
Granted 44347 668 24800 1673357 24800 4,401,080 31275 17,4831 88 31275 8989,07M1 30954 2,333,201 0.00
Forfeited (1%,451,171) 200.07 (416,444) 19211 (1,316,210) 233.62 (4,543,756) 239.06 (1,086,847) 240.94 - -
Exercised (37,752,217) 175,82 (1,446,993} 168.25 (6,428,026) 209.19 (15,115,453) 226.56 (2,830,270) 239.54 - -
Qutstanding at
25 February
2006 181,166,780 211.42 4,705,023 21796 17,947,537 24811 95,519,321 242,28 28,097,456 25169 3,459,458 0.00
Exercisable as at
25 February
2006 5,904,791 19690 227,107 16995 7,721,660 2317 28,646347 23285 7,958,413 224.75 - -
Exercise price 159.00 to 159.00 to 205.00 to 164,00 to 176.70 to
range (pence) 198.00 198.00 259.00 259.00 259.00 Nil
Weighted average
remaining
contractual
life (years) 0.19 0.19 5.02 497 4.73 -
For the year ended 26 February 2005
Approvegd Unapproved
Savings-related Irish savings-related share option share option  International executive Nil cost
share option scheme share option scheme scheme scheme share option scheme share options
Qptions  WAEP Options  WAEP Options ~ WAEP Options  WAEP Options ~ WAEP Options  WAEP
Qutstanding at
28 February
2004 187,050,572 179.99 4,444,839 17403 25,854,991 217.07 107,563,724 20813 21,501,380 215.87 - -
Granted 48,551,270 232.00 1,996,397 232.00 3,299,752 253.30 25,624,301 25330 5,942,435 25330 1,126,257 0.60
Forfeited {15,350,601) 184.54 480,687y 19226 (1,837,930) 24230 (3,351,952) 23455 (367,038) 241.31 - -
Exercised (34,228,741} 171.36 (265,446) 19226 (6,026,120) 211.44 (32,140,731) 18377 (4,051,275) 204.67 - -
Qutstanding at
26 February
2005 186,022,500 19478 4,895,103 18542 21,290,693 22210 97,695342 227.08 23,025,502 22710 1,126,257 0.0
Exercisable as at
26 February
2005 4,438,485 176.28 89,057 198.00 11,320,445 211.41 24885840 211.43 7,072,253 213.25 - -
Exercise price 151.00to 90.30 10 164.00 to 176,70 to
range (pence} 198.00 198.00 247.00 247400 247.00 Nil
Weighted average
remaining
contractual
life (years) 0.19 0.20 517 5.02 5.22 -
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 22 Share-based payments continued

Share options were exercised on a regular basis throughout the year. The average share price during the year to 25 February 2006
was 317.79 pence (2005 — 277.87 pence).

The fairvalue of share options is estimated at the date of grant using the Black-5choles option pricing model. The following table
gives the assumptions applied to the options granted in the respective periods shawn. No assurnption has been made to
incorporate the effects of expected early exercise.

2006 2005

Savings- Savings-
related Executive Nif cost related Executive Nil cost
share option share option option share option share option option
schemes schemes schemes schemes schemes schemes
Expected dividend yie!d (%) 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
Expected volatility (%) 28% 28% 28% 28% 28% 28%
Risk-free interest rate {%) 1.4% 4.2% 4.2% 4.6% 49% 4.9%
Expected life of option (years) Zor5 6 [ 3ors & 6
Weighted average fair value of options granted (pence) 93.55 77.24 256,75 73.97 65.93 210.9
Probability of forfeiture (%) 20-25% 10% 0% 20-25% 10% 0%
Weighted average exercise price (pence) 248.00 312,75 0.0 232.00 288.25 0.0

Volatility is a measure of the amount by which a price is expected to fluctuate during a period. The measure of volatility used in Tesco
PLC option pricing models is the annualised standard deviation of the continuously campounded rates of return on the share over a
period of time. In estimating the future volatility of the Company's share price, the Board consider the historical volatility of the share
price over the most recent period that is generally commensurate with the expected term of the option, taking into account the
remaining contractual life of the option.

b) Share bonus schemes
Eligible UK employees are able to participate in Shares in Success, an all-employee profit sharing scheme. Each year, shares are
awarded as a percentage of eamings up to a statutory maximum of £3,000.

Senior management also participate in performance-related bonus schemes. The amount paid to employees is based on a
percentage of salary and is paid partly in cash and partly in shares. Bonuses are awarded to eligible employees that have completed
a required service period and depend on the achievement of corporate targets.

The Executive Directors participate in short-term and long-term bonus schemes designed to align their interests with those of
shareholders. Full details of these schemes can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

The fairvalue of shares awarded under these schemes is their market value on the date of award. Expected dividends are not
incorporated into the fairvalue,

The number and weighted average fairvalue (WAFV) of share borwses issued during the period was:

2006 2005

Shares WAFY Shares WAFY

Number Pence Number Pence

Shares in Success — May 2005 22,337,747 309.75 25,331,808 247.25
Executive incentive scheme 16,328,179 309.88 12,287,315 249,88
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Mote 22 Share-based payments continued

) Historical fair value information

The fairvalue of all awards relating to pre-February 2004 but impacting the Income Statement in these financial statements are

included below:

Award date Plan type Fair value of individual award at grant date (pence)
Qctober 1999 Save As You Earn — 5 year scheme 69
May 2000 Executive incentive scheme 209
June 2000 Save As You Earn - 5 year scheme 74
Qctober 2000 Save As You Earn - 5 year scheme 90
April 2001 Executive incentive scheme 258
April 2001 Executive options 73
May 2001 Executive incentive scheme 246
Novernber 2001 Save As you Earn — 5 year scheme 86
Novermnber 2001 Save As you Earn - 3 year scheme 76
April 2002 Executive incentive scheme 255
April 2002 Executive options 77
May 2002 Executive incentive scheme 262
November 2002 Save As You Earn — 5 year schemne 62
November 2002 Save As You Earn - 3 year scheme 56
April 2003 Executive options 49
May 2003 Executive incentive scheme 203
May 2003 Shares in Success 197
November 2003 Save As You Earn - 5 year scheme 80
November 2003 Save As You Earn — 3 year scheme 72

Note 23 Post-employment benefits

Pensions

The Group operates a variety of post-employment benefit arrangements, which cover the majority of employees worldwide. These
include funded defined contribution and funded and unfunded defined benefit plans. The most significant of these are the funded
defined benefit schemes for the Group’s employees in the UK, the Republic of Ireland and South Korea.

Defined contribution plans

The contributions payable for defined contribution schemes of £7m (2005 — £2m) have been fully expensed against profits in the

current year.

Defined benefit plans

United Kingdom

The principal plan within the Group is the Tesco PLC Pension Scheme, which is a funded defined benefit pension scheme in the UK,
the assets of which are held as a segregated fund and administered by trustees. An independent actuary, using the projected unit
method, carried out the latest triennial actuarial assessment of the scheme as at 34 March 2005.

At the date of the last actuarial valuation the actuarial deficit was £153m. The market value of the schemes’ assets represented 95%
of the banefits that had accrued to members, after allowing for expected increases in earnings and pensions in payment.

The T&S Stores PLC Senior Executive Pension Scheme is a funded defined benefit scheme open to senior executives and certain
other employees at the invitation of the company. An independent actuary, using the projected unit method, carried out the latest
actuarial assessment of the scheme as at 1 April 2004.

Overseas
The most significant overseas scheme is the funded defined benefit scheme which operates in the Republic of Ireland. An independent
actuary, using the projected unit method, carried out the fatest actuarial assessment of the scheme as at 1 April 2004,

The valuations used for IAS 19 have beer based on the most recent actuarial valuations and updated by Watson Wyatt Limited to
take account of the requirements of IAS 19 in order to assess the fiabilities of the schemes as at 25 February 2006. The schemes’
assets are stated at their market values as at 25 February 2006. Buck Consultants (Ireland) Limited have updated the most recent
Republic of Ireland valuation. The liabilities relating to post-retirement healthcare benefits have aiso been determined in accordance
with IAS 19, and are incorporated in the following tables.
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Note 23 Post-employment benefits continued

Principal assumptions

The valuations used have been based on the most recent actuarial valuations and updated by Watson Whyatt Limited to take account
of the requirements of IAS 19 in order to assess the liabilities of the schemes as at 25 February 2006. The major assumptions, on a
weighted average basis, used by the actuaries were as follows:

2006 2005 2004

% % %

Rate of increase in salaries 4.0 39 3.8
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 2.7 2.6 2.5
Rate of increase in deferred pensions 2.7 2.6 2.5
Rate of increase in career average benefits 2.7 2.6 2.5
Discount rate 48 5.4 5.7
Price inflation 2.7 26 2.5

The main financial assumption is the reat discount rate, i.e. the excess of the discount rate over the rate of price inflation. If this
assumption increased/decreased by 0.1%, the UK defined benefit obligation would decreasefincrease by approximately £110m and
the annual UK current service cost would decreasefincrease by between £43m and £15m.

UK mortality assumptions

Following analysis of the mortality trends under the Tesco PLC Pension Scheme in the UK, which was carried out as part of the
formal valuation of the Scheme as at 31 March 2005, it was decided to alter the mortality assumptions used in the formal valuation.
The updated mortality tables as at 31 March 2005 were PMA92COO for male members and PFA92CO0 for female members. This
change has been carried through into the calculation of the pension liabilities in the Balance Sheet as at 25 February 2006 for the
main UK fund.

The following table illustrates the expectation of life of an average member retiring at age 65 at the Balance Sheet date and
a mernber reaching age 65 at the same date +25 years.

At 25 Feb At 26 Feb

2006 ) 2005

In years Inyaars

Retiring at Reporting date at age 65: Male 17.5 16.4
Female 21.8 203

Retiring at Reporting date +25 years at age 65: Male 18.4 182
Female 230 211

The assets in the defined pension schemes and the expected rates of refurn were:
2006 2005 2004
Long term Long term Long term

rate of Market rate of Market rate of Market

return value return value return value

% £m % £m % £m

Equities 8.1 2416 8.2 1,908 8.1 1,399
Bonds 48 656 5.4 560 57 445
Property 6.4 253 6.8 183 69 92
Cther 3.7 123 3.5 67 3.8 43
Total market value of assets 3,448 2,118 1,979
Present value of liabilities relating to unfunded schemes 7N (12) 5)
Fresent value of liabilities relating to partially funded schemes (4,642) (3,441) (2,648)
Pension deficit (1,211) (735) (674)
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Note 23 Post-employment benefits continued

Changes in the fairvalue of defined benefit pension plan assets are as follows:

2006 2005
£m £m
Qpening fairvalue of plan assets 2,718 1,979
Expected return 209 156
Actuarial gains 309 66
Contributions by employer 270 437*
Actual member contributicns 6 ]
Foreign currency transfation differences - 2
Benefits paid (64) 72
Closing fairvalue of plan assets 3,448 2,718
* Includes additional contribution of £200m paid in February 2005.
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:
2006 2005
Em fm
Opening defined benefit abligation {3,453) (2,653)
Service cost (328) {272)
Interest cost (184) (152)
Losses on change of assumptions (727 (282)
Experience losses (24) (14)
Foreign currency translation differences 1 (2)
Benefits paid 64 {72}
Actual member contributions {6) (6)
Closing defined benefit obligation (4,659) (3,453)

The amounts that have been charged to the Income Statement and Statement of Recognised Income and Expense for the year
ended 25 February 2006 are set out below:

2006 2005
£m £m
Analysis of the amount charged to Operating profit:
Current service cost 328 272
Total charge to Operating profit 328 272
Analysis of the amount credited/(charged) to Finance incame:
Expected return on pension schernes’ assets 209 156
Interest on pension schemes’ liabilities (184) (152)
Net pension finance income {note 5) 25 4
Total charge to the Income Statement 303 268
2006 2005
£m £m
Analysis of the amount recognised in the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense:
Actual return less expected return on pension schemes’ assets 309 66
Experience gains and losses arising on the schemes’ liabilities (24} (14)
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the schemes’ liabilities {727) {282)
Total actuarial loss recognised in the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense 442y (230)
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Note 23 Post-employment benefits continued

Movement in deficit during the year

Deficit in schemes at beginning of the year

Cursent service cost

Other finance (charge)income 25 4 (6)
Contributions 270 437 162
Foreign currency translation differences m - -
Actuarial {loss)/gain (442) (2309 140
Deficit in schemes at end of the year (1,211 (735) 674}

* Includes additional contribution of £200m paid in February 2005.

Post-employment benefits other than pensions

The Company operates a scheme offering post-retiremant healthcare benefits. The cost of providing these benefits has been
aceounted for on a similar basis to that used for defined benefit pension schemes.

The liability as at 25 February 2006 of £10m (2005 — £8.5m), was determined in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries,
In 2005/06, £0.5m has been charged to the Income Statement and £0.7m of benefits were paid.

A change of 1.0% in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have the follawing effect:

2006

£m

Effect on the annual service and interest cost 0.1
Effect on defined benefit obligations 1.0

Expected contributions

The Group expects to make contributions of approximately £320m to defined benefit pension schemes in the UK and overseas

in the year ending 24 February 2007.

Note 24 Called up share capital

Qrdinary shares of 5p each

Nurnber Em
Authorised:
At 26 February 2005 10,600,000,000 530
Authorised during the year 100,000,000 5
At 25 February 2006 10,700,000,000 535
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
At 26 February 2005 7,783,169,542 389
Scrip dividend election 53,639,219 3
Share options 57,668,156 3
At 25 February 2006 7,894,476,917 395

During the financial year, 111 million shares of 5p each were issued for an aggregate consideration of £290m, which comprised
£167m for scrip dividend and £123m for share options.

Between 25 February 2006 and 24 April 2006, options on 3,425,477 ordinary shares have been exercised under the terms of the
savings-related share option scheme (1981) and the lrish savings-related share option scheme (2000). Between 25 February 2006
and 24 April 2006, aptions over 5,945,937 options have been exercised under the terms of the executive share option schemes
(1994 and 1996) and the discretionary share option plan (2004).

As at 25 February 2006, the Directors were authorised to purchase up to a maximum in aggregate of 778.7 million ordinary shares.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at the meetings of the Company.
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Note 25 Statement of changes in equity

Other
lssued reserves Retained earnings
share Share Merger Hedging  Translation Treasury Retained Minority
capital premium reserve reserve rasaryes shareg earnings interests Total
At 26 February 2005 389 3,704 40 - 11 (87) 4,546 51 8,654
Changes in accounting policy relating
to the adoption of 1AS 32 and IAS 39 - - - - - - (314) - (314
27 February 2005 - restated 389 3,704 40 - 1 {87) 4,232 51 8,340
Foreign currency translation differences - - - - 25 - - 7 32
Actuaria! fosses on defined
benefit plans - - - - - (442} - {442}
Tax on items taken directly to
or transferred from equity - - ~ - 2 - 131 - 133
Increase in fairvalue of
available-for-sale financial assets - - ~ - - - 2 - 2
Gains on cash flow hedges - - - 39 - - - - 39
Cost of share-based payments - - - - - 38 45 - 83
Issue of shares 6 284 - - - - - - 290
Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,570 6 1,576
Equity dividends authorised
in the year - - - - - - (609) - (609)
At 25 February 2006 395 3,988 40 39 38 (49) 4,929 64 9,444
Cther
lssued reserves Retained earnings
share Share Merger Translation Treasury Retained Minority
capital premium reserve reserves shares eamings interests Total
At 29 February 2004 384 3,470 40 - (42} 3,841 45 7,738
Foreign currency transiation differences - - - 1 - - 3 14
Actuarial losses on defined
benefit plans — - - - - (230) - (230}
Tax on items taken directly to
or transferred from equity - - - - - 92 - 92
Cost of share-based payments - - - - {45) 41 - @
Issue of shares 5 234 - - - - - 239
Profit for the year - - - - - 1,344 3 1,347
Equity dividends autherised
in the year - - - - - (542} - (542)
At 26 February 2005 389 3,704 40 11 (X)) 4,546 51 8,654
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Note 25 Statement of Changes in Eguity continued

Share premium account
The share premium account is used to record amounts received in excess of the nominal value of shares on issue of new shares.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial staternents of foreign
cubsidiaries. It is also used to record the movements in net investment hedges.

Treasury shares

During the year, the qualifying employee share ownership trust (QUEST) subscribed for 10 million from the Company, 0.1%

of called-up share capital as at 25 February 2006 (2005 - 10 million, 0.19%). An amount of £12rn (2005 — £16m) represents
contributions to the QUEST from subsidiary undertakings.

The employee benefit trusts hold shares in Tesce PLC for the purpose of the various executive share incentive and profit share
schemes. At 25 February 2006, the trusts held 48.4 million shares (2005 — 70.9 miliion), which cost £140m (2005 — £185m) and
had a market value of £163m (2005 - £219m).

Merger reserve
The merger raserve arose on the acquisition of Hillards plc in 1987.

Other
The cumulative goodwill written-off against the reserves of the Group as at 25 February 2006 amounted to £718m (2005 - £718m).

Note 26 Business combinations

On 1 March 2005 the Group acquired the trade and assets of Aram-Mart, which operates a chain of 12 hypermarkets in Korea,
The consideration paid for this business was £49m cash.

The net assets and results of the acquired business are included in the consolidated accounts of the Group from the date of
acquisition. Acguisition accounting has been applied and the goodwill arising has been capitalised and is subject to annual
impairment testing.

The goodwill acquired in the business combination listed below has been allocated to the single group of cash-generating units
represented by the acquired business, as this is the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored internally.

The fairvalue of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Aram-Mart are:

Fair value Recognised

Carrying value adjustments  on acquisition

£m £m £m

Property, plant and eguipment 16 7 23
Inventories 2 - 2
Trade and other receivatrles 5 - 5
Trade and other payables Q)] - {n
Net assets acquired 22 7 29
Cash consideration 49
Goodwill arising on acquisition 20
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Note 26 Business combinations continued

The net cash outflow arising from the acquisition is as foflows:

Net cash acquired with the subsidiary

Cash paid as consideration

Net cash outflow

From the date of acquisition, the acquired business contributed revenue of £111m and made a £1.3m loss which is included
in the profit of the Group.

The Group made a number of other immaterial acquisitions during the year, mostly of small store operations, recognising £7/m
of goodwill.

Note 27 Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are
not disclosed in this note. Transactions between the Group and its joint ventures and associates are disclosed helow:

i) Trading transactions

Sales to Purchases from Amounts owed by Amounts owed to

related parties* related parties related parties related parties

2006 2005 2006 2008 2006 2005 2006 2005

£m £m Emn Em £m £m £m fm

Joint ventures 624 761 195 132 19 6 - 7
Associates - - 502 324 - 79 22

* Consists of sales of services, loan interest and assets transferred

ii) Non-trading transactions

Leans to Loans from Injection of

related parties related parties equity funding

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

£m £m Em £m £m £m

Joint ventures 122 130 9 9 35 3
Associates - - - - 1 4

Transactions between the Group and the Group’s pension plans are disclosed in note 23.

Tesco Stores Limited is a member of one or more partnerships to whom the provisions of the Partnerships and Unlimited
Companies (Accounts) Regulations 1993 apply (‘Regufations’). The accounts for those partnerships have been consolidatad
into these accounts pursuant to regulation 7 of the Regulations.

iii) Transactions with key management personnel

Only members of the Board of Directors of Tesco PLC are deemed to be key management personnel. It is the Board wha have
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group. Key management personnel compensation

is disclosed in the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration report.

During the year, there were no other material transactions or balances between the Group and its key management personnel
or members of their close family.

Tesco plc 87




Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 28 Reconciliation of profit before tax to net cash generated from operations

2006 2005
£m £m
Profit before tax 2,235 1,894
Net finance costs 127 132
Share of post-tax profits of Joint ventures and Associates (82) (74)
Operating profit 2,280 1,952
Operating loss of discontinuing operation C}] (Y]
Depreciation and amortisation 838 743
Prafit arising on property-related items 7N (49
Loss on dispesal of non-property assets 4 -
Release of impairment provisions 5) -
Share-based payments 142 1314
Additional pension contribution - {200)
Increase in inventories {146} (67
Increase in trade and other receivables (38) (48)
Increase in trade payables 89 337
Increase in other payables 334 216
Decrease in working capital (a) 239 438
Cash generated from cperations (b) 3,412 3,009
(a) The decrease inworking capital includes the impact of translating foreign currency working capital movements at average exchange rates
rather than year end exchange rates.
(b) The subsidiaries acquired during the year have not had a significant kmpact on Group operating cashflows.
Note 29 Analysis of changes in net debt
Opening
adjustment Other
AL 26 Feb for IAS 32 Net debt of non-cash At 25 Feb
2005 & IAS 39 Cashflow  disposal group changes 2006
£m Em £m Em £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 1,146 - 165 (2) 16 1,325
Finance 'ease receivables - - - - 17 17
Derivative financial instruments - 40 (22) - 52 70
Cash and receivables 1,146 40 143 {2) 85 1,412
Bank and other borrowings (471) 63) (1,074} 57 {75} {1,626)
Finance lease payables an - 6 - (19 20
Derivative financial instruments - (258) 300 - (281} {239)
Debt due within one year (482) (321} (768} 57 (371) (1,885)
Bank and other borrowings (4,486) 55 939 - (58) {3,658)
Finance lease payables 77 - - - (7} 84
Derivative financial instruments - (402 34) - 142 (294)
Debt due after one year (4,563) (455) 905 - 77 (4,036)
(3,899} {736) 280 55 (209} {4,509}
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Note 30 Commitiments and contingencies

Capital commitments
On 25 February 2006 there were commitments for capital expenditure contracted for, but not provided, of £1,578m
{2005 — £416m), principally refating to the store development programme.

Contingent liabilities
The Company has irrevocably guaranteed the Yiabilities as defined in section 5(c) of the Republic of Ireland (Amendment Act) 1986,
of various subsidiary undertakings incorporated in the Republic of Ireland.

Tesco Personal Finance, in which the Group owns a 50% joint venture share, has commitments, described in its own financial
statermnents as at 31 December 2005, of formal standby facilities, ¢redit lines and other commitments to lend, totalling £6.0bn
(2005 — £5.2bn). The amount is intended to provide an indication of the volume of business transacted and not of the underlying
credit or other risks.

For details of assets held under finance leases, which are pledged as security for the finance lease liabilities, see note 11.

There are a number of contingent liabifities that arise in the normal course of business which if realised are not expected to result
in a material liability to the Group. In connection with the railway tunnel collapse at Gerrards Cross, the Group is currently assessing
a number of potential claims. Due to the nature of those claims it is nat cureently possible to assess their potential impact, therefore
no provision has been made. The final outcome is not expected to be material to the Group.

Note 31 Leasing commitments

Finance [ease commitments — Group as lessee
Future minimum lease payments under finance leases and hire purchase contracts, together with the present value of the net
minimum lease payments are as follows:

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 23 12 20 14
Between two and five years 37 32 27 23
After five years 132 126 57 54
Total minimum lease payments 192 170 104 88
Less future finance charges (88) {82)
Present value of minimum lease payments 104 38
Analysed as:
Currentt finance lease payatles 20 11
Non-current finance lease payables 84 77
104 88

The Group has finance leases forvarious iterns of plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings. There are also a simall number of buildings
which are held under finance leases. The fairvalue of the Group’s lease obligations approximate to their carrying value.
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Note 31 Leasing commitments continued

Finance lease receivables — Group as lessor
future minimurm lease receivables under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease receivables
are as follows:

Present vaiue of

Minimum lease receivables minimum lease receivables

2006 2005 2006 2005

£m Em £m £m

Within one year 7 _ 6 -

Between two and five years 12 - 11 -

Tota! minimum lease receivables 19 - 17 -
Less unearned finance income (3] -
Net lease receivables 17 —

Analysed as:

Current finance lease receivables 6 -
Non-current finance lease receivables 11 -
17 -

The Group entered into finance leasing arangements with UK staff for certain of its electronic equipment as part of the Computers
for Staff scheme. The average term of finance leases entered into is 3 years. The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the
contract date for all of the lease term. The average effective interest rate contracted approximates 4,6% (2005 - nil) per annum.
The fairvalue of the Group's finance lease receivables at 25 February 2006 is estimated at £16m (2005 — nil).

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2006 2005

£m £m

Within one year 315 220
Between two and five years 1,105 771
After five years 3,795 2,808
Total minimum lease payments 5,215 3,799

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certaint of its retail, distribution and office properties.
The leases have varying terms, purchase options, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

Operating lease receivables — Group as lessor
The Group both rents out its Investment properties and also sub-lets various leased buildings under operating leases. At the Balance
Sheet date, the following future minimum lease payments are contractually receivable from tenants:

2006 2005

Em £m

Within one year 84 79
Between two and five years 234 204
After five years 283 247
Total minimum lease payments 601 530
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Note 32 Explanation of transition to IFRSs

This is the First year that the Group has presented its financial statements under IFRSs.

The accounting policies set out in note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 25 February
2006, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 26 February 2005 and in the
preparation of an opening IFRS Balance Sheet as at 28 February 2004 (the Group's date of transition to IFR55).

An explanation of how the transition from UK GAAP to IFRSs has affected the Group’s financial position, financial performance
and cash flows is set out in the following tables and the accompanying notes.

Reconciliation of profit

For the year ended 26 February 2005

Presentation

Reported  Share-based Business Employee of Vs and Deferred
under payments combinations Leasing benefits Associates tax Total IFRS Restated
UK GAAP IFRS 2 IFRS 3 A5 17 1AS 19 1AS 28131 1A 12 adjustments  under IFRSs .
£m £m £m £m £m Em Em £m fm
Revenue 33,974 - - - -~ - - - 33,974
Cost of sales (31,271) - - (1N (C)] - - [€3))] (31,322)
Gross profit 2,703 - an (40} - - {51) 2,652
Administrative expenses (754} {52) 56 - (3 - - m (755)
Prefit/(loss) on property-
related itermns 53 - - {4) - - - (4) 49
Operating profit 2,002 (52} 56 ()] (45) - - (56} 1,946
Share of post-tax profits from
Joint ventures and Associates 130 - 5 4 - [GLY) - (55 75
finance income 99 - - - 4 - - 4 103
Finance costs (269) - - (1 - 34 - 33 (236)
Profit before tax 1,962 52) 61 (12) 41 (30 - (74) 1,888
Taxation (593) 16 - 5 12 32 (13) 52 (541}
Profit for the year 1,369 (36) 61 N (29 2 (13) (22) 1,347

Note; The above table represents the Income Statement prior to the reclassification of the Taiwanese business as a disposal group (note 7).
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Note 32 Explanation of transition to IFRSs continued

Reconciliation of equity
As at 29 February 2004 (date of transition to IFRSs)

Reported Business
under combinations Pensicns Dividends
UK GAAP IFRS 3 145 19 1AS 10
£m £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwih and intangible assets 965 - - -
Property, plant and equipment 14,094 - - -
Investment property - - - -
Investments in Joint ventures and Associates 330 - - -
Other investments 6 - -
Deferred tax assets - - - -
15,395 - - -
Current assets
Inventories 1,199 - - -
Trade and other receivables 826 - (12) -
Investrnents 430 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 670 - - -
3,125 - (12) -
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (4,364) - 10 365
Shert-term borrowings (844) - - -
Current tax liabilities (308) - - -
Provisions - - - -
(5,516} - 10 365
Net current liabilities (2,391 - {2} 365
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings (4,348) - - -
Post-emnployment benefit obligations ~ - (674) -
Other non-current liabilities 22) - - -
Deferred tax liabilities (579) - 199 -
Provisions (14 - - -
(4,961) - (475) -
Net assets 8,043 - (477} 365
Equity
Share capital 384 - - -
Share premium account 3,470 - - -
QOther reserves 40 - - -
Retained earnings 4.104 - 477) 365
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 7.998 - 477 365
Minority interests 45 - - -
Total equity 8,043 - 477) 365
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Investment Intangible Share-based Impairment Deferred
property assets Leasing payments of fixed assets tax Restated
1A5 40 145 38 1AS 17 IFRS 2 1AS 36 15 12 Other under IFRSs
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
- 255 - - - - - 1,220
(473) (255) 29 - {142} - - 13,253
473 - - - - - - 473
- - - - - - 1 331
- - - - - -~ - 6
- - - - - - 12 12
- - 29 - (142) - i3 15,295
- - - - - ~ - 1,199
- - {3} - - - - 811
- - - - - - (430) -
- - - - - - 430 1,100
- - (3) - - - - 3,110
- - n - - - 3 (3,987)
- - 3) - - - - (847)
- - - - - - - (308)
- - - - - - @ @
- - (4) - - - m {5,148)
- - (7) - - - 1) (2,036)
- - (30} - - - - (4,376)
- - - - - - - (674)
- - - - - - ) @)
- - L] 17 15 9 (12) (438)
- - 2 - - - 4 (8)
- - 27 17 15 {79 1) (5,521)
- - (5) 17 {127 9 1 7,738
- - - - - - ~ 384
- - - - - - - 3,470
- _ - - - Z - 40
- - (5) 17 (127 79 1 3,799
- - (5) 17 (120 79) 1 7,693
- - - - - - ~ 45
- - (5) 17 (127 (79} 1 7,738
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 32 Explanation of transition to IFRSS continued

Reconciliation of Equity
As at 26 February 2005 {date of Jast UK GAAP financial staterments)

Reported Business
under cambinations Pensions Dividends
UK GAAP IFRS 3 1AS 19 145 10
£m £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangible assets 1,044 58 - -
Property, plant and equipment 15,495 - - -
Imvestment property - - = -
Investrnents in Joint ventures and Associates 407 3 - -
Qther investments 7 - - -
Creferred tax assets - - - -
16,953 63 - -
Current assets
Inventories 1,309 - -~ -
Trade and other receivables 1,002 - 230) -
Investrments 346 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents BOG - - —
3,457 - (230 -
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (5,374) - 14 410
Short-term borrowings {477) - - -
Current tax liabilities (221 - - -
Provisions - - - -
{6,072) - 14 410
Net current liabilities (2,615) - (216} 410
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings (4,511) - - -
Post-employment benefit obligations - - {735) -
Other non-current liabilities 200 - - -
Deferred tax liabilities (731) - 279 -
Provisions {19) - - -
(5,281} - (456) -
Net assets 9,057 63 (672) 410
Equity
Share capital 389 - - -
Share premium account 3,704 - - -
Other reserves 40 - - -
Retained earnings 4873 63 (672} 410
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 9,006 63 672) 410
Minority interests 51 -~ - -
Total equity 9,057 63 (672) 410
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Investment intangible Share-based Impairment Deferred

property assets Leasing payments of fixed assets tax Restated
1A5 40 1AS 38 IAS 17 IFRS 2 145 36 1A5 12 Other under IFRSs
Ermn £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
- 306 ~ - - - - 1,408
(565) (306) 49 - {152) - - 14,521
565 - - - - - - 565
- - 4 - - - - 4186

- - - - - - - 7

- - - - - - 14 14

- - 53 - {152) - 14 16,931

- - - - - - - 1,309

- - {3) - - - - 769

- - - - - - (346) -

- - - - - - 346 1,146

- - (3) - - - - 3,224
- - 7} @) - - 1 (4,974}
- - (5) - - - - (482)
- - - - - - - (221
- - - - - - 3) ®)
- - (22) (8) - - (2) {5,680)
- - (25) (8 - - (2) (2,456)
- - 52) - - - - {4,563)
- - - - - - - {735)
- - - - - - (1) 21
- - 6 41 17 94 (14) (496)
- - 7 - - - 6 6)
- - (39) 4 17 (94) (9 (5,821}

- - 1 33 (135) {94} 3 8,654

- - - - - - - 389

- - - - - - - 3,704

- - - - - - - 40

- - (N 33 (135) 94) 3 4,470

- - {11) 33 (135) (94) 3 8,603

- - - - - - - 51

- - {11) 33 (135) (94} 3 8,654
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 32 Explanation of transition to IFRSs continued

Notes to the reconciliations of equity and profit
The following describes the most significant adjustments arising from transition to IFRSs.

Share-based payment {IFRS 2)
a) Share Option Schemes
The main impact of IFRS 2 for the Group is the expensing of employees’ and Directors’ share options.

The expense is calculated with reference to the fairvalue of the award on the date of grant and is recognised over the vesting period
of the scheme, adjusted to reflect actual and expected levels of vesting. We have used the Black-Scholes model to calculate the fair
value of options on their grant date.

To ensure better comparability, the Group has applied IFRS 2 retrospectively to all options granted but not fully vested as at
29 February 2004, rather than just to those granted after 7 Novemnber 2002,

In 2004/05, application of IFRS 2 results in a pre-tax charge 1o the Income Statement of £48m; the pre-tax effect is partially offset
by a deferred tax credit of £16m. Deferred tax is caiculated based on the difference between market price at the Balance Sheet

date and the option exercise price. As a result the tax effect will not correlate to the charge. The excess of the deferred tax over the
cumulative Income Statement charge at the tax rate is recognised in equity (in 2004/05 this amounted to a credit of £9m to retained
earnings). The deferred tax assets recagnised in February 2004 and February 2005 relating to the share option schemes are £25m
and £49m, respectively.

b} Share Bonus Schemes

Under UK GAAP the Group expensed share bonus schemes by applying the rules of UITF 17. Whereas the UK GAAP Profit and loss
account charge was based on the intrinsic value of the award, the IFRS 2 charge is based on the fairvalue. This results in an
additional charge of £4m to the Incorne Statement in 2004/05.

As a result of IFRSs, deferred tax assets recognised under UK GAAP relating to share bonus schemes have reduced by approximately
£8m at both the 2004 and 2005 Balance Sheet dates.

Goodwill arising on Business Combinations (IFRS 3)

Under IFRS 3, goodwill is not amortised on a straight-line basis but instead is subject to annual impairment testing, Consequently,
the goodwill balances were reviewed for impairment at February 2004 and February 2005 and no impainment adjustments

were identified.

In terms of adjustments to the income Statenent in 2004/05, the non-amortisation of goodwill results in an increase of pre-tax
profit of £61m. There are no associated tax impacts.

In the February 2005 Balance Sheet, a foreign exchange gain of £2m has been recognised through reserves relating to the
non-amertisation of goodwill; therefore, the total adjustment to net assets relating to goodwill amounts to £63m.

Recognition of dividends {IAS 10)

Under IFRSs dividends declared after the Balance Sheet date are not recognised as a Fiability as at that Balance Sheet date.

The final dividend of £365m declared in April 2004 relating to the 2003/04 financial year has been reversed in the opening Balance
Sheet and charged to equity in the Balance Sheet as at 26 February 2005. Simifarly, the final dividend accrued for the 2004/05
financial year of £410m has been reversed in the IFRS Balance Sheet as at 26 February 2005 and has been charged to equity

in the Balance Sheet as at 25 February 2006.

Leasing (IAS 17)

There are two impacts that have arisen from the adoption of IAS 17 - firstly, the reclassification of some leases between operating
and finance leases, and secondly, the treatment of fixed rental uplifts.

Reclassification between operating leases and finance leases

The finance lease tests under UK GAAP and IFRSs are broadly similar except that I1AS 17 requires the Group to consider property
leases in their component parts (i.e. land and building elements separatefy).
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Note 32 Explanation of transition to IFRSs continued

Following a detailed review of our property lease portfolio, a small number of ‘building’ leases have been reclassified as finance
jeases and brought onto the Balance Sheet as at 29 February 2004, based on the criteria of IAS 17, This led to a relatively small
increase in Property, plant and equipment, and a similar increase in the finance lease creditor.

The following adjustrents have been made at the opening Balance Sheet and as at 26 February 2005:

29 February 26 February

2004 2005

£m £m

Property, plant & equipment 29 49
Adjustment to net assets (4} (5)

The associated impact on the Income Statement of the above is that some UK GAAP operating lease expenses are replaced with
depreciation and financing charges for the building elernents of the reclassified leases. Over the life of the lease, the total Income
Statement charge remains the same, but the timing of expenses will change, with more of the total expense recognised earlier

in the lease term. The net pre-tax impact on the Income Statement is immaterial for the year ended 26 February 2005.

In 2004/05 there was a one-off Income Statement adjustment of £4m, relating to the deferral of some profit from the sale and
leaseback transaction completed in April 2004, which instead will be recognised over the 25-year lease term.

Fixed rental uplifts

The Group has a number of leases that contain minimum rental uplifts at predetermined rent review dates. Some of these leases
are with external landtards and some with the Group’s property joint ventures. The International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee {FRIC) has recently clarified that it is necessary to account for these increases on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease. Previously, the Group charged such increases to the Income Statement in the year they arose.

The totat amount payable over the life of the lease remains unchanged but the timing of the Income Statement charge changes.
The excess of the rent charged to the Income Staternent over the cash payment in any given period will be held on the Balance
Sheet in Trade and other payables. This change in accounting treatment has the following effect on the Balance Sheets as at

29 February 2004 and 26 February 2005, and the Income Statement for 2004/05.

29 February 2004/05 26 February

2004 ncome 20605

Balance Sheet Staternent  Baiance Sheet

£m £m £m
Operating profit impact 4} (12} (13}
Joint ventures and Associates - 4 4
Deferred tax - 3 3
impact on net assets/profit after tax {1 (5) (6}

Employee benefits (IAS 19)

Post-employment benefits

For UK GAAP reparting, we applied the measurement and recagnition policies of SSAP 24 *Accounting for pension costs’ for pensions
and other post-employment benefits, whilst providing detailed disclosures for the alternative measurement principles of FRS 17
‘Retirement Benefits'.

IAS 19 takes a similar approach to accounting for defined benefit schemes as FR5 17, thus on transition, the deficit disclosed under
FRS 17 has been recognised in the Balance Sheet. At the opening Balance Sheet, this resulted in a pre-tax reduction in net assets of
£676m representing the sum of the deficit plus the reversal of a SSAP 24 debtor in the UK GAAP Balance Sheet as at 29 February
2004. An associated deferred tax asset of £199m has been recognised in respect of the pension deficit. Therefore the total
adjustmaent to net assets as at 29 February 2004 was £477m.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 32 Explanation of transition to IFRSs continued

Thereafter, the Group has chosen to apply the amendment to [AS 19 which allows actuarial gains and losses to be recognised
immediately in the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense ie. the actuarial gains and losses will be taken directly to equity.

The incrementat pre-tax Income Statemnent charge for 2004/05 from the adoption of 1AS 19 is £41m. This is split between the
current service cost (increases operating costs by £45m) and the return on plan assets (increases finance income by £4m). The
related tax effect of this is a £12m credit to the Income Statement. The actuarial loss on the scheme for 2004/05, recognised
through reserves, is £230m, with an offsetting tax adjustment of £67m,

The February 2005 1AS 19 pension deficit is £735m, with an associated deferred tax asset of £279m,

Joint ventures (IAS 31) and Associates (IAS 28)
The Group applies the equity method of accounting for joint ventures (JVs) and associates, which is largely consistent with how they
were accounted for under UK GAAP.

The adoption of IFRSs leads ta a change in the presentation of the Group’s share of the results of our JVs and associates. Under UK
GAAP, we included our share of JV and associate operating profit before interest and tax and showed our share of their interest and
tax in the respective Group lines within the Profit and Loss Account. Under IFRSs, JV and associate profit is shown as a net figure f.e.
post interest and tax. This has the effect of reducing profit before tax, but reduces the tax charge. Overall, there is no impact on the
Group profit after tax as this is purely a presentational change.

Another impact of using the equity method of accounting for JVs and associates under IFRSs is that when the Balance Sheet
investment relating to a loss-making JV or associate reduces to nil then no further losses should be recognised in the Income
Staternent. Under UK GAAR losses would continue to be recognised. This change has led to a small adjustment in the opening
Balance Sheet of £1m and an increase in JV and associate profit of £2m in 2004/05,

Impairment of assets {IAS 36}

Under IAS 36, individual assets are reviewed for impairment when there are any indicators of impairment. Where individual assets
do not generate cash flows independently from one another, the impairment reviews are carried out at the ‘Cash-Generating Unit’
level, which represents the lowest level at which cash flows are independently generated. The ilfustrative examples in IAS 36 suggest
that for retailers this is at the individual store level.

Following impairment reviews at the opening Balance Sheet date, we identified a small number of stores which required provisions
for impairment of £142m, This had the effect of reducing the total fixed asset balance by approximately 1% as at 29 February 2004.

A similar review was performed for 2004/05 but no further stores required an impairment provision. However, due to movements in
foreign exchange rates, the overall provision set against fixed assets increased by £10m — this consolidation adjustment has been
taken through equity, with no impact on the 2004/05 Income Statement.

The methodology and assumptions applied in the impairment reviews conducted on transition to IFR5s can be found in note 11.

IAS 36 has the additional effect of reducing the deferred tax liability by £15m as at February 2004 and £17m as at February 2005
(the mavement year-an-year relates to foreign exchange differences which have been taken to equity). The deferred tax adjustments
arise because the impairment reviews have reduced the carrying values of certain assets qualifying for capital allowances, with no
corresponding change in the tax base.

Intangible assets (IAS 38)
Under UK GAAP, we included licences and capitalised development costs within tangible fixed assets on the Balance Sheet.
Under I1AS 38, ‘Intangible Assets’, such items are disclosed separately on the face of the Balance Sheet.

As a result, there is a rectassification of £255m in the opening Balance Sheet, and £306m in the Balance Sheet as at 26 February
2005, between Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets. There is no impact on the Income Statement from this
reclassification.
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Note 32 Explanation of transition to [FRSS continued

Investment properties (IAS 40)

Under UK GAAP, we included all owned property assets within Tangible fixed assets on the Balance Sheet. Under IAS 40,
‘Investment Properties’, we are reguired to split aut any property which earns rental income or is held for capital appreciaticn.

As a result, there is a reclassification of £473m in the opening Balance Sheet and £565m in the Balance Sheet as at 26 February
2005 between Property, plant and equipment and Investment property. There is no impact on the Income Statement from this
reclassification.

Deferred and current taxes (IAS 12)

Under UK GAAP deferred tax was recognised in vespect of all timing differences that had originated but not reversed by the Balance
Sheet date and which could give rise to an obligation to pay more or less taxation in the future.

Deferred tax under IAS 12 ‘income Taxes' is recagnised in respect of all termporary differences at the Balance Sheet date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying value for financial reporting purposes.

The change to a Balance Sheet liability method of providing for deferred tax leads to a number of adjustments, as follows:

29 Fehruary 2004405 26 February
2004 tncome 2004/95 2005
Met assets Statement Reserves Net assets
£m £m £m £m
Impact of 1A5 12 a9 (13} (2)* (94)
Tax effect of accounting changes 232 33 78* 343
Net impact on tax balance/profit after tax 153 20 76 249
JV and Associate presentation change 32
Total impact on tax 52

* Includes foreign currency translation differences in respect of foreign operations

The significant components of the Balance Sheet adjustments are the recognition of deferred tax assets on the pension deficit and
share-based payments, less deferred tax provisions for potential future gains arising from rolled-over gains and for the potential
future tax liabilities arising from fair value adjustments recorded for business combinations. Neither of these provisions were
previously recognised under FRS 19.

Other adjustments

Other adjustments arise from the reclassification of money-market deposits from current asset investrments to cash and cash
equivalents (as a result of the definition within 1AS 7 ‘Cash Flow Statements’), and other minor presentation differences.

Significant changes to the Cash flow statement for 2004/05
None of the adjustments arising from IFRSs relate to cash, and therefore there is no impact on reported cash flows.

However, IAS 7 ‘Cash flow staternents’ extends the definition of cash to ‘cash and cash equivalents’ which includes movements
oh short-term deposits. This results in a change in presentation of the cash flow information to include these cash equivalents.

£m
increase in cash as reported under UK GAAP 1214
Movement on short-term deposits {cash equivalents under IFRSs) (97)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents {per [FRS definition} 24
Cash and cash equivalents as at 29 February 2004 4,100
Effact of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents 22
Cash and cash equivalents as at 26 February 2005 1,146
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Note 33 Effect of adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 on Financial instruments

The Group adopted 1AS 32 and IAS 39 from 27 February 2005 and has taken the exemption available under IFRS 1 not to restate
comparatives for IAS 32 and IAS 39. The analysis below details the transitional adjustments arising from the adoption of |AS 32

and IAS 39 as at 27 February 2005.

Financial Financial
Instruments: Instruments:
Presentation Recogniticn
Under IFRSs and and Under IFRSs
(excluding IAS Disclosure  Measurement  (including IAS
32 and [AS 39) 1AS 32 1AS 39 32 and IAS 3%
Em £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangible assets 1,408 - - 1,408
Property, plant and equipment 14,521 - - 14,524
Investment property 565 - - 565
Investments in Joint ventures and Associates 416 - (10) 406
Other investments 7 - (7) -
Deferred tax assets 14 - - 14
16,931 - 7} 16,914
Current assets
Inventories 1,309 - - 1,309
Trade and other receivables 769 - 64 705
Derivative financial instruments - - 40 40
Cash and cash equivalents 1,146 - - 1,146
3,224 - {24) 3,200
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (4,974) - 475 (4,499)
Financial tiabilities
— Borrowings (482} - (63) (545}
- Derivative financial instruments - - (258} (258)
Current tax liabilities (221) - - {(221)
Provisions (3) - - 3
(5,680) - 154 {5,526)
Net current liabilities (2,456) - 130 (2,3526)
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Note 33 Effect of adoption of IAS 32 and I1AS 39 on Financial instruments continued

Financial Financial
Instruments: Instruments:
Presentation Recognition
Under IFRSs and and Under IFRSs
(excluding 1AS Disclosure  Measurement  (including IAS
32 and 1AS 39) 1AS 32 1AS 39 32 and 1AS 39)
£m Em £m £m
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings (4,563) - (53) (4,616)
— Derivative financial instruments and other liabilities (a) - (228) (174) (402)
Post-employment benefit obligations (735} - - (735)
Other non-current liabilities 21) - - 21
Deferred tax liabilities (b} (496) - 28 (468)
Provisions (6} - - )]
(5,821} (228) (199) (6,248)
Net assats 8,654 (228) (86) 8,340
Equity
Share capital 389 - - 389
Share premium account 3,704 - - 3,704
Other reserves 40 - - 40
Retained earnings 4,470 (228) (86) 4,156
Equity attributable te equity holders of the parent 8,603 (228) (86) 8,289
Minority interests 51 - - 51
Total equity 8,654 (228) (86) 8,340
Notes
(a} The Group has entered into an agreesment with the Samsung Corporation to purchase the remaining shares of Samsung Tesco Co. Limited. These shares are expected

®
(c

LA

{

to be purchased in three tranches in 2007, 2014 and 2042. The purchase price will reflect the market value of these shares at the date of acquisition.
Under IAS 32, the net present value of the future payments are shown as a financial liability, the value of which was £228m at 27 February 2005.
The deferred tax impacts of the introduction of IAS 32 and IAS 39 as at 27 February 2005 is £28m.

In 2003, the Group monetised profitable interest rate swaps. The amount realised was held in deferred income and amortised through the interest line
in the Income Statement.

On transition to IAS 32 and TAS 39, the remaining credit balance held in deferred income of £163m was transferred to retained earnings.

Under IFRS 1, there is a corresponding credit of £163m to the value of financial liabilities, which is subsequently amaortised through the interest line
in the Income Statement.

The net effect is a transfer of £163m from deferred income ta financial fabilities, with ng impact on the Income Statement and net assets.

Other adjustments are due to the marking-te-market of financial instruments and the reclassification of other creditors and debtors which are defined
as net borrowings under IFRSs.
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Five year record

UK GAAP IFRS
2002 2003 2004 2005 2005! 20067
53 wks
Financial statistics
Group sales (£m} 25,401 28,280 33,557 37,070 36,957 43137
Revenue excluding VAT (£m)
UK 19,821 24,309 24,760 27,146 27,146 29,990
Rest of Europe 2,181 2,664 3,385 3,818 3,818 5,005
Asia 1,398 2,031 2,669 3,010 2,902 4,369
23,400 26,004 30,814 33,974 33,866 39,454
Operating profit3 (£m)
UK 1,245 1,289 1,486 1,666 1,556 1,788
Rest of Europe 90 134 171 249 243 263
Asia 17 69 121 149 153 229
Totat Group 1,322 1,492 1,778 2,064 1,952 2,280
Operating profit margin3
UK 6.1% 6.0% 6.0% 6.1% 5.7% 6.0%
Rest of Europe 41% 5.0% 5.1% 6.5% 6.4% 5.2%
Asia 1.2% 3.4% 4.5% 5.0% 5.3% 5.2%
Total Group 5.6% 5,7% 5.8% 6.1% 5.8% 5.8%
Goodwill amortisation {£rm) {v] (23) (54) {67} - -
Share of resuits of Joint ventures and Associates4 (£m) 22 42 59 69 74 82
Net finance costs4 {£m) (140) (166) (209) (136) {132) {127}
Profit before tax (Em) 1,194 1,345 1,574 1,930 1,894 2,235
Faxation? (£Em) (364) (399) (472) 561 (541) {649}
Minority interests (Em) - - (2) (3} (3) (&)
Loss for the period from discontinuing operaticns (£m) - - - - [{3)] (10)
Profit for the financial year attributable to
equity holders of the parent (£m) 830 946 1,100 1,366 1,344 1,570
Underlying profit — UK GAAPE (Em) 1,221 1,401 1,708 2,029 N/a Nfa
Underlying profit — IFRSE (£m) Nfa Nia Nfa Nfa 1,925 2,277

1 The 2005 IFRS financial statistics have been restated to remove the Taiwanese business which is held for sale.

2 Results for the year ended 25 February 2006 include 52 weeks for the UK and RCI and 14 months for International.

3 Operating profit includes integration costs and profit/{loss) arising on sale of fixed assets. Operating margin is based upon revenue exclusive of VAT

4 Share of results of Joint ventures and Associates is stated net of the interest and tax of the Group's J¥s and Associates. The Group's charges for interest and tax have been
reduced by these amounts.

s Consists of the net result of the Taiwanese business which is held for sale.

6 JK GAAP underlying profit excluded net profit/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets, integration costs and goodwill amortisation. IFRS underlying profit exciudes 1AS 32 and [AS 39
and the 1AS 19 charge for defined benefit pension schemes, which is replaced by the nermal cash contributions. For the years 2002 to 2005 the above information is
presented under UK GAAP as previously published. If IFRSs had been applicable for these years the main adjustments would have been similar to those in Note 32.
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UK GAAP IFRS
2002 2003 2004 2005 20051 20062
53 wks
Enterprise value? (£m) 21,290 16,896 23,866 27,853 27,910 30,841
Diluted earnings per shared 11.86p 13.42p 14.93p 17.50p 17.30p 19.92p
Basic earning per share8 12.05p 13.54p 15.05p 17.92p 17.52p 20.20p
Dividend per share® 5.60p 6.20p 6.84p 7.56p 7.56p 8.63p
Return on shareholders’ funds10 227% 22.3% 21.8% 22.7% 23.2% 24.9%
Return on capital employed*! 10.8% 10.2% 10.4% 11.5% 11.8% 12.7%
Group statistics
Number of stores12 979 2,291 2,318 2,334 2,334 2,672
Total sales area ~ 000 sq ft12/13 32,491 39,944 45,402 49,135 49,135 55,215
Full-time equivalent employees 171,794 188,182 223,535 242,980 242,980 273,024
UK retail statistics
Number of stores 729 1,982 1,878 1,780 1,780 1,898
Total sales area -~ 000 sg ft!3 18,822 21,829 232N 24,207 24,207 25,919
Average store size (sales area — sq f)14 28,576 29,455 30,890 31,677 31,677 32,816
Fuil-time equivalent employees 121,272 133,051 152,408 163,006 163,006 175,459
UK retail productivity (£)
Revenue per employee!3 163,443 160,157 162,459 166,534 166,534 170,923
Profit per employee!s 10,019 9,688 9,750 10,220 9,564 10,190
Weekly sales per sq ft16 22.43 21.86 22.48 23.89 23.89 25.06

7 Market capitalisation plus net debt.

8 Diluted and basic earnings per share are on a centinuing operations basis.

% Dividend per share relating to the interim and proposed final dividend.
19 Profit before tax divided by average shareholders’ funds.

11 The numeratoris profit before interest, less tax, The denominator is the calculated average of net assets plus net debt plus dividend creditor less net assets held for sale.
12 i addition there are 39 stores operated by cur Hymall joint venture in China, which have 3,505,000 sq ft of sales area.

13 Store sizes exciude lobby and restaurant areas.
14 Average store size excludes Express and One Stop stores.

15 Based on average number of full-time equivalent employees in the LIK, revenue exclusive of VAT and operating profit.
16 Based on weighted average sales area and sales excluding property development,
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Tesco PLC - Parent company Balance sheet s febrary 2006

2006 . 2005
(restated)
notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Investments in subsidiaries and Joint ventures 5 7,582 9,805
Current assets
Derivative financial instruments 10 70 . -
Debtors 6 4,857 2,702
Current asset investments 7 0 150
5,017 2,852
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings 3 (1,008) (329)
Derivative financial instruments 10 (239} -
Other creditors 8 (1,397} (2,391}
(2,644) (2,720)
Net current assets 2,373 132
Total assets less current liabilities 9,755 9,937
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
Barrowings 9 (3,5600) {4,037
Derivative financial instruments 10 (48) -
(3,608) (4,037)
Net assets 6,147 5,900
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 13 395 389
Share premium account 14 3,988 3,704
Profit and loss reserve 14 1,764 1,807
Total equity 6,147 5,900

Accounting policies and notes forming part of these financial statements are on pages 105 to 112.

1

Terry Leahy
Andrew Higgi

*

Directors

The parent Com inancial statements were approved by the Board on 24 April 2006
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Notes to the Parent company financial statements

Note 1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared under UK
GAAP using the historical cost convention modified for the
revaluation of certain financial instruments and in accordance
withs applicable accounting standards and the Companies
Act 1985.

A summary of the Company’s significant accounting poficies
are set out below.

Exemptions

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption
avaitable under section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 and
not presented a Profit and loss account for the Company alone.

The Company has also taken advantage of the exemption from
preparing a Cash flow statement under the terms of FRS 1
‘Cash flow statements’. The cash flows of the Company are
included in the Tesco PLC Group financial statements.

The Company is also exempt under the terms of FRS 8
‘Related Parties’ from disclosing related party transactions with
entities that are part of the Tesco PLC Group.

Changes in accounting policies
The Company has adopted the following standards in these
financial statements:

s FRS 17 ‘Retirement Benefits’ — full requirements

= FRS 20 ‘Share-based payment’

¢ FRS 21 ‘Events after the balance sheet date’

» FRS 25 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure and presentation’
» FRS 26 ‘Financial Instruments: Measurement’

+ FRS 28 ‘Corresponding amounts’

The adoption of each of these standards represents a change
in accounting policy and the comparative figures have been
restated accordingly, except where the exemption to restate
comparatives has been taken for FRS 25 and FRS 26, which
have been adopted from 27 February 2005. Details of the
effect of the prior year adjustments are given in note 15.

Money market deposits

Money market deposits are stated at cost. All income from
these investments is included in the Profit and loss account
as interest receivable and similar income.

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures
Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are stated at cost
less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment.

Foreign currencies
Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into
Pounds Sterling at the financial year end exchange rates.

Share-based payments

Employees of the Company receive part of their remuneration
in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services in exchange for shares or rights gver
shares (equity-settled transactions).

The fairvalue of employee share option plans is calculated at
the grant date using the Black-Scholes model. In accordance
with FRS 20 the resulting cost is charged to the Profit and loss
account over the vesting period. The value of the charge is
adjusted to reflect expected and actual levels of vesting.

Where a subsidiary awards options over the shares of the
Company, this is treated as a capital contribution.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
Company’s Balance Sheet when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Debtors

Debtors are not interest-bearing and are stated at their
nominal value, reduced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts.

Current asset investmernts

Investments are classified as either held-for-trading or available-
for-sale, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair
value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fairvalue for
available-for-sale investments are recognised directly in equity,
untif the security is disposed of oris determined to be
impaired; at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is included in the net profit or loss for

the period.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instrurnents are classified
according to the substance of the contractual amangements
entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that gives a
residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting
all of its liabilities.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initiatly recorded
at the value of the amount received, net of attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between cost and redemption value being recognised
in the Profit and loss account over the period of the borrowings
on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
value of the amount received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting ~
Accounting policy for year ended 25 February 2006

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising
from operating, financing and investment activities. The
Company does not hold or issue derivative financiat
instruments for trading purposes, however if derivatives do not
qualify for hedge accounting they are accounted for as such,
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Notes to the Parent company financial statements continued

Note 1 Accounting policies continued

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative financial
instrurments are stated at fair value. The fairvalue of derivative
financial instruments is determined by reference to market
values for similar financial instrurnenits, or by discounted

cash flows or by the use of option valuation models. Where
derivatives do not gualify for hedge accounting, any gains or
losses on remeasurement are immediately recognised in the
Profit and loss account. Where derivatives qualify for hedge
accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship and the item being
hedged. To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship
must be documented and tested for effectiveness,

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Company is
required to document from inception the relationship between
the itern being hedged and the hedging instrument. The
Company is also required to document and demonstrate an
assessment of the relationship between the hedged item and
the hedging instrument, which shows that the hedge will be
highly effective on an ongeing basis. This effectiveness testing
is performed at each period-end to ensure that the hedge
remains highly effective.

Fair value hedging

Derivative financial instruments are classified as fair value
hedges when they hedge the Company's exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability. Any gain or
loss from remeasuring the hedging instrument is recognised
immediately in the Profit and loss account. Any change in the
fair value of the hedged item, attributable to the hedged risk,
is adjusted against the carrying value of the hedged item and
recognised immediately in the Profit and loss account.

Derivative financial instruments qualifying for fair value hedge
accounting are principally interest rate swaps.

Cash flow hedging

Derivative financial instruments are classified as cash flow
hedges when they hedge the Company’s exposure to variability
in cash flows that are either attributable to a particular risk
associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecasted transaction.

The effective element of any gain or loss from remeasuring the
derivative instrument is recognised directly in equity.

The associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity
and recognised in the Profit and loss account in the same
petiod or periods during which the hedged transaction affects
the Profit and loss account. Any element of the remeasurement
of the derivative instrument which does not meet the criteria for
an effective hedge is recognised immediately in the Profit and
loss account.
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Derivative instruments qualifying for cash flow hedging
are principally forward foreign exchange transactions and
currency options.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires oris sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. At that point in time, any cumulative
gain or loss on the hedging instrument recogrised in equity

is retained in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs. f

a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is transferred to
the Profit and loss account.

Net investment hedging

Derivative financial instruments are classified as net investment
hedges when they hedge the Company’s net investment in an
overseas operation. The effective element of any gain or loss
from remeasuring the derivative instrument is recognised
directly in equity. Any ineffective element is recognised
immediately in the Profit and loss account. Gains and losses
accumulated in equity are included in the Profit and loss
account when the foreign operation is disposed of.

Derivative instruments qualifying for net investment hedging
are principally forward foreign exchange transactions.

Derivative financial instruments — Accounting policy for year
ended 26 February 2005

Derivative instruments utilised by the Company are interest
rate swaps, floors and caps, forward start interest rate swaps,
cross currency swaps, forward rate agreements and forward
exchange contracts and options. Termination payments made
or received in respect of derivatives are spread over the life

of the underlying exposure in cases where the underlying
exposure continues to exist. Where the underlying exposure
ceases to exist, any termination payments are taken to the
Profit and loss account.

Interest differentials on derivative instruments are recognised
by adjusting net interest payable. Premia or discount on
derivative instruments are amartised over the shorter of the
litfe of the instrument or the underlying exposure.

Currency swap agreements are valued at closing rates of
exchange, Forward exchange contracts are valued at
discounted closing forward rates of exchange. Resulting gains
or losses are offset against foreign exchange gains or losses
on the related borrowings or, where the instrument is used to
hedge a commiitted future transaction, are deferred until the
transaction oceurs or is extinguished.




Note 2 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

2006 2005
Em £m
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging the following:
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit services
- statutory audit* 05 0.5
- audit-related 03 -
08 0.5
*Includes fees for the audit of the Group financial statements.
Note 3 Employment costs
2006 2005
£m £m
Wages and salaries 16 13
Social security costs 8 1
Pension costs 2 1
Share-based payment expense — equity settled 2 2
28 17
The average number of employees during the yearwas: 15 (2005 - 15).
Note 4 Dividends
For details of equity dividends see note 8 in the consclidated Group financial statements.
Note 5 Fixed asset investments
Shares in Group  Loans to Group Shares in
undertakings undertakings  Joint ventures Total
Em £m £m £m
As at 26 February 2005 5,897 3,524 145 9,566
Restatement for FRS 20 ‘Share-based payment’ 239 - - 239
As at 27 February 2005 - restated 6,136 3,524 145 9,805
Additions 1,314 - 33 1,347
Disposals (230 (3,524) (16} {3,770)
As at 25 February 2006 7,220 - 162 7,382
For a list of the Company’s principal operating subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures see note 13 in the Group financial
statements.
Note 6 Debtors
2006 2005
£m Em
Amournts owed by Group undertakings 4,710 2,436
Amounts owed by Joint ventures and Associates 97 103
Other debtors 50 163
Total 4,857 2,702

Included within amounts due from joint ventures and associates is £97m (2005 — £103m) due after more than one year.
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Notes to the Parent company financial statements continued

Note 7 Current asset investments and deposits

2006 2005
£m £m
Bonds and certificates of deposit a0 150
Note 8 Other creditors
2006 2005
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Corporation tax 122 101
Qther tax and social security - 2
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 1,252 1,957
Other liabilities 2 315
Accruals and deferred income 21 16
1,397 2,391
Note 9 Borrowings
Effective
interest rate
Effective  after hedging
Parvalue interest rate transactions Maturity 2006 2005
% %o year Em £m
Bank loans and overdrafts {a) - 4.5 4.5 - 395 329
4% unsecured deep discount loan stock £125m 10.2 10.2 2006 122 116
6% Medium Term Notes (MTN} £150m 6.0 49 2006 158 150
0.7% 50bn JPY MTN (b} ¥50bn 0.7 4.8 2006 247 285
7.5% MTN £325m 7.6 48 2007 344 325
6% MTN £250m 6.0 4.9 2008 268 250
5.25% 500m Eurc MTN (b) £€500m 5.3 5.0 2008 366 345
5.125% MTN £350m 53 48 2009 355 350
6.625% MTN £150m 6.7 6.7 2010 153 150
4.75% 750m Euro MTN (b) €750m 48 5.2 2010 548 528
4% RPf MTN () £229m 6.5 6.5 2016 236 226
5.5% MTN £350m 5.6 56 2019 349 350
3.322% LPI MTN (d) £235m 5.9 5.9 2025 236 228
6% MTN £200m 6.1 6.4 2029 214 200
5.5% MTN £200m 5.6 5.7 2033 213 200
Other MTNs (e} - 2.5 25 - 364 334
4,568 4,366
(@) Includes £9m (2005 - £9m} of loans from Jeint ventures and Associates.
(b) The MTNs denominated in currencies other than Pounds Sterling have been swapped into Pounds Sterling liabilities.
() The 4% RPI MTN is redeemable at par, indexed for increases in the RPI over the life of the bond.
{d) The 3.322% LPI MTN is redeemable at par, indexed for increases in the RPI over the life of the bond. The maximum
indexation of the principal in any ane year is 5%, with a minimum of 0%.
(e) The other MTNs are of various maturities and include Pounds Sterfing and foreign currency denominated notes.
2006 2005
£m £m
Repayment analysis:
Amounts falling due within ene year 1,008 329
Amounts falling due between one and two years 477 655
Amounts falling due between two and five years 1,795 1,452
Amounts faliing due after more than five years 1,288 1,930
4,568 4,366
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Note 10 Derivative financial instruments

An explanation of the objectives and policies for holding and issuing financial instruments is set out in the Operating and financial

review on page 16.

Carrying values of derivative financial instruments in the Balance Sheet:

2006
Assets Liabilities
£m Em
Current
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments 1 69}
Forward foreign currency contracts 59 {170)
70 (239)
Non-current
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments - (46)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 2)
- (48)
Fair values
Fairvalue of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed below:
2006
Carrying Fair
value value
£m £m
Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the Company’s operations:
Short-term borrowings {1,008) {1,003)
Long-term borrowings (3,560) (3,665)
Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate and currency profile:
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments (104) (104)
Forward foreign currency contracts {113) (113)
{4,785) (4,885)

The fair value of financial instruments and derivatives has been determined by reference to prices available from the markets on
which the instruments are traded, The fairvalue of all other items has been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows

at prevailing interest rates.

Analysis of interest rate exposure of financial assets and liabilities
The interest rate exposure of financia! assets and liabilities of the Company as at 25 February 2006, after taking into account the

effect of interest rate swaps, was:

Mare than
Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5years Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em Em
Fixed rate
Bank and other loans (122} (133} - (98) (153) (861) (1,367)
Floating rate
Bark and other loans (886) (344) (634) (355) (555) 427 {3,201}
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Notes to the Parent company financial statements continued

Note 10 Derivative financial instruments continued

Hedging activities

Fairvalue hedges

The Company uses interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps to hedge the fair value of fixed rate bonds.

The fixed rate bonds are hedged against changes to their fair value resulting from changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates.

The fair value of swaps used for fairvalue hedging at the Balance Sheet date was a liability of £99m.

Cash flow hedges

The Company uses forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options to hedge the cost of future purchases of goods
for resale, where those purchases are denominated in a currency other than that of the Company. The hedging instruments are
primarily used to hedge purchases in Euros and US Dollars. The cash flows hedged will occur within one year of the Balance
Sheet date.

At the Balance Sheet date, the total notional amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts to which the Company
has committed was £548m.

The fairvalue of currency derivatives that are designated as effective cash flow hedges was an asset of £4m. This amount has been
deferred as a component of equity.

Net investment hedges
The Company uses forward foreign exchange contracts, currency denominated borrowings and currency options to hedge the
exposure of a proportion of its non-Sterling denominated assets against changes in value due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The fairvalue of these instrurnents at the Balance Sheet date was a liability of £117m,

Financial instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting
The Company has a number of financial instruments which do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

These instruments include forward foreign exchange contracts, currency options, caps, collars and interest rate swaps.

The fair value of these instruments at the Balance Sheet date was a liability of £5m.

Note 11 Share-based payments

Tesco PLC’s equity settled share-based payment schemes comprise various share option schemes designed to reward Executive
Directors. For further information on these schemes, including the valuation models and assumptions used, see note 22 to the
Group financial statements.

The number of options and weighted average exercise price (WAEP) of share option schemes relating to Tesco PLC's employees are:
For the year ended 25 February 2006

Approved Unapproved
Savings-related share oplion share option Nil cost
share option scheme scheme scheme share aptions
Options WAEP QOptions WAEP Options WAEP Options WAEP
Qutstanding at
26 February 2005 43,206 194.83 278,679 114.42 10,667,969 23095 1,126,257 0.00
Granted 7,788 248.00 28,776 312.75 2,405,116 312.75 2,333,201 0.00
Exercised (8,520) 198.0C (262,890) 109.62 (1,005,058) 248.02 - -
Qutstanding at
25 February 2006 42,474 203.95 43,965 27293 12,068,027 245.83 3,459,458 0.00
Exercisable as at
25 February 2006 - - - - 4,185,280 - - -
Exercise price range (pence) - - - - - 164.00 to
259.00 - Nil
Weighted average remaining
contractual life (years) - - - - - 5.36 - -
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Note 11 Share-based payments continued

For the year ended 26 February 2005

Approved Unapproved
Savings-related share aption share option Nil cost
share option scheme scheme scheme share options
Options WAEP Options WAEP Options WAEP Options WAEP
Outstanding at
28 February 2004 60,545 178.19 521,981 126,77 11,838,482 212.40 - 0.00
Granted 8,544 232.00 - - 2,503,453 253.25 1,126,257 0.00
Forfaited (6,443} 185.98 - - - - - -
Exercised (19,440} 162.26 (43,902} 205.00 {3,673,966) 186.38 - -
Qutstanding at
26 February 2005 43,206 194.83 278,079 114.42 10,667,969 230.95 1,126,257 0.00
Exercisabie as at
26 February 2005 - - 74,634 - 3,174,895 - - -
Exercise price range (pence) - - - 205.00 - 164.00 to
247.00 - Nil
Weighted average remaining
contractual life (years) - - - 3.30 - 3.80 - -

Note 12 Pensions

The Company has adopted the full requirements of FRS 17 for the first time in the current year. This has had no financial impact
and therefore no prior year adjustment has been presented.

The Company participates in the Tesco PLC Pension Scheme which is a multi-employer scheme within the Tesco Group and
cannot identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme. Accordingly, as permitted by FRS 17, the Company
has accounted for the scheme as a defined contribution schemne, and the charge for the period is based upon the cash
contributions payable.

The total cost of the scheme to the Group was £292m (2005 — £258m). Further disclosure relating to the Tesca PLC Pension
Scheme can be found in note 23 of the Group financial statements.

Mote 13 Share capital

Ordinary shares of 5p each

Number £m
Authorised:
At 26 February 2005 10,600,000,000 530
Authorised during the year 100,000,000 5
At 25 February 2006 10,700,000,000 535
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
At 26 February 2005 7,783,169,542 389
Scrip dividend election 53,639,219 3
Share options 57,668,156 3
At 25 February 2006 7,894,476,917 395

During the financial year, 111 million shares were issued for an aggregate consideration of £290m, which comprised £167m for scrip
dividend and £123m for share options.

Between 25 February 2006 and 24 April 2006, options over 3,425,477 ordinary shares have been exercised under the terms of the
savings-related share option scheme (1981) and the Irish savings-related share option scherne (2060). Between 25 February 2006
and 24 April 2006, options over 5,945,937 ordinary shares have been exercised under the terms of the executive share gption
schemes (1994 and 1996) and the discretionary share option plan (2004).

As at 25 February 2006, the Directors were authorised to purchase up to 8 maximum in aggregate of 778.7 million ordinary shares.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at the meetings of the Company.
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Note 14 Reserves

2006 2005
£m £m
Share premium account
At the start of the year 3,704 3,470
Premium on issue of shares less costs 120 143
Scrip dividend election 164 91
At the end of the year 3,988 3,704
Profit and loss reserve
As previously reported 1,136 683
Prior year adjustments: (Note 15)
FRS 20 ‘Share-based payment’ 261 94
FRS 21 'Events after the balance sheet date’ 410 365
FRS 26 ‘Financial instruments: Measurement’ (60} -
Deferred tax on changes in accounting policies 24 -
Profit and loss reserve restated 1,771 1,142
Gain{{loss) on foreign currency net investments 17 72)
Tax effect of exchange adjustment offset in reserves - 16
FRS 20 ‘Share-based payment’ 186 169
Dividend (609) {542)
Profit after tax for the financial year 399 1,094
At the end of the year 1,764 1,807

Note 15 Prior year adjustments

The prioryear adjustments relate to the implementation of FRS 17, FRS 20 and FRS 21, while FRS 25 and FRS 26 do not affect
comparatives and are only applied to the current period.

FRS 20 ‘Share-based payment”

The Company operates a range of share-based incentive schemes (both awards of options and awards of shares) and has applied
the requirements of FRS 20 for the first time in these financial staterments. Under FRS 20, an expense is recognised in the Profit and
loss account for all share-based payments calculated based on the fairvalue at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricing
model. Compliance with FRS 20 increased reserves by £34m at 29 February 2004.

FRS 21 ‘Events after the balance sheet date™:

This standard sets out amended requirements for accounting for events after the Balance Sheet date. Following the introduction of
this standard, dividends are only recognised at the Balance Sheet date if they are declared before that date. The final dividend for
2003/04 was declared in April 2004, therefore the dividend charge recognised in the Profit and Yoss account and the dividend
creditor recognised in the Balance Sheet have been reversed. This resulted in an increase in reserves of £365m at 29 February 2004.
Due to similar treatment of the 2004/05 dividend, reserves at 26 Fehruary 2005 have increased by £41 Om.

FRS 25 ‘Financial instruments: Disclosure and presentation’:

FRS 25 supersedes FRS 13 and substantially amends FRS 4 ‘Capital instruments’, This standard is effective for the Company from
27 February 2005, However, as the consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the [FRS equivalent standard
(1AS 32), the parent Company is exempt from the disclosure requirements,

FRS 26 ‘Financial instruments: Measurement’;

FRS 26 applies to all listed entities for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005 and prescribes new accounting rules relating
to financial instruments and hedge accounting. This standard has been adopted in full in these financial statements and the
requirement applied prospectively from 27 February 2006.

The deferred tax adjustments on the implementation of the above named standards results in a £24m adjustment to reserves
at 27 February 2005 (2004 — nil).
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Tesco PLC

We have audited the parent company financial statements of
Tesco PLC for the year ended 25 February 2006 which comprise
the Balance Sheet and the related notes. These parent
comnpany financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein. We have also audited the
information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is
described as having been audited.

We have reported separately on the Group financial
statements of Tesco PLC for the year ended 25 February 2006,

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report,
the Directors’ remuneration report and the parent company
financial statements in accordance with applicable {aw and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the parent company financial
statemnents and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report
to be audited in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
ireland). This report, including the opinion, has been prepared
for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and
for no other purpase. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept
or assumne responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent

in writing.

We repart to you our opinion as to whether the parent
company financial statements give a true and fair view and
whether the parent company financial statements and the part
of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.
We also report to you if, in aur opinion, the Directors’ report is
not cansistent with the parent company financial statements,
if the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we
have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
Directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report
and consider whether it is consistent with the audited parent
company financial statements. The other information
comprises only the Operating and financial review, the
Directors’ report, the Corporate governance statement and the
unaudited information in the Directors’ remuneration report.
We consider the implications for our report if we become aware
of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with
the parent company financial statements. Our responsibilities
do not extend to any other infarmation.

Basis of audit opinion

Wa conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
parent company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ remuneration report to be audited. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the Directors in the preparation of the parent
company financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the parent company financial
statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report
to be audited are free frorn material misstaterment, whether
caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our
opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the parent comparnty financial
staternents and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report
to be audited.

Opinion
in our opinion:

« the parent company financial statements give a true and
fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the company’s
affairs as at 25 February 2006; and

+ the parent company financial statements and the part
of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985
o ,{:‘,Low--v._ﬁmy-fs L_t_fp

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

London 24 April 2006
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